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VIRGINIA REGISTER

The Virginia Regisfer is an official state publication issued
every other week throughout the year. Indexes are published
quarierly, and the iast index of the year is cumulative.

The Virginia Regisfer has several functions. The full text of all
regulations, both as proposed and as finaily adopted or changed
by amendment, is required by law to be published in the Virginia
Register of Regulations.

In addition, the Virginia Register is a source of other
information about state government, including all Emergency
Regulations issued by the Governor, and Executive Orders, the
Virginia Tax Bulletin issued periodically by the Depariment of
Taxation, and notices of all public hearings and open meetings of
state agencies.

ADOPTION, AMENDMENT, AND REPEAL OF REGULATIONS

An agency wishing to adopt, amend, or repeal regulatiens must
first publish in the Virginia Register a notice of proposed action;
a basis, purpose, impact and summary statement; a notice giving
the public an opportunity to comment on the proposal; and the
text of the proposed regulations.

Under the provisions of the Administrative Process Act, the
Regisirar has the right to publish a summary, rather than the full
text, of a regulation which is considered to be too lengthy. In
such case, the full text of the reguiation will be available for
public inspection at the office of the Registrar and at the office
of the promulgating agency.

Following publication of the proposal in the Virginia Register,
sixty days must elapse before the agency may take action on the
proposal.

During this time, the Governor and the General Assembly will
review the proposed regulations. The Governor will transmit his
comments on the regulations to the Registrar and the agency and
such comments will be published in the Virginia Register.

Upon receipt of the Governor’s comment on a proposed
regulation, the agency (i) may adopt the proposed regulation, if
the Governor has no objection to the regulation; (i) may modify
and adopt the proposed regulation after considering and
incorperating the Governor’s suggestions;, or (iii) may adopt the
regulation without c¢hanges despite the Governor's
recammendations for change.

The appropriate standing committee of each branch of the
General Assembly may meet during the promuigation or final
adoption process and file an objection with the Registrar and the
promulgating agency. The objection will be published in the
Virginia Register. Within twenty-one days after receipt by the
agency of a legislative objection, the agency shall file a response
with the Registrar, the objecting legislative committee, and the
Governor. .

When final action is taken, the promulgating agency must again
publish the text of the regulation as adopted, highlighting and
explaining any substantial changes in the finai regulation. A
thirty-day final adoption period will commence upon publication in
the Virginia Register.

The Governor will review the final regulaticn during this time
and if he objects, forward his objection {o the Registrar and the
agency. His objection will be published in the Virginia Register. If
the Governor finds that changes made to the preposed regulation
are substantial, he may suspend the regulatory process for thirty
days and require the agency to solicit additional public comment
on the substantial changes.

A regulation becomes effective at the conclusion of this
thirty-day final adoption period, or at any other later date
specified by the promulgating agency, unless (i) a legisiative
objection has heen filed, in which event the regulation, unless
withdrawn, becomes effective on the date specified, which shall

be after the expiration of the twenty-one day extension period; or
(ii) the Governor exercises his authority to suspend the regulatory
process for solicitation of additional public comment, in which
event the regulation, unless withdrawn, becomes effective on the
date specified, which shall be after the expiration of the period
for which the Governor has suspended the regulatory process.

Proposed action on regulations may be withdrawn by the
promuigaiing agency at any time bhefore the regulation becomes
final.

EMERGENCY REGULATIONS

If an agency determines that an emergency situation exists, it
then requests the Governor to issue an emergency regilation. The
emergency regulation becomes operative upon its adoption and
filing with the Registrar of Regulations, unless a later date is
specified. Emergency regulations are limited in time and cannot
exceed a twelve-month duration. The emergency regulations will
be published as quickly as possible in the Virginia Regisier.

During the time the emergency status is in effect, the agency
may proceed with the adoption of permanent regulations through
the usual procedures (See “Adoption, Amendment, and Repeal of
Regulations,” above). If the agency does not choose to adopt the
regulations, the emergency status ends when the prescribed time
limit expires.

STATEMENT

The foregoing constitutes a generalized statement of the
procedures to be followed. For specific statutory language, it is
suggested that Article 2 of Chapter 1.1:1 (§§ 9-6.14:6 through
9-6.14:9) of the Code of Virginia be examined carefully.

CITATION TO THE VIRGINIA REGISTER

The Virginia Register is cited by volume, issue, page number,
and date. 1:3 VAR, 75-77 November 12, 1984 refers to Volume 1,
Issue 3, pages 75 through 77 of the Virginia Register issued on
November 12, 1984.

“The Virginia Register of Regulations” (USPS-001831) is
publisied bi-weekly, except four times in January, April, July and
QOctober, for $100 per year by the Virginia Code Commission,
General Assembly Building, Capitol Square, Richmond, Virginia
23219. Telephone (804) 786-3591. Second-Class Postage Rates Paid
at Richmond, Virginia. POSTMASTER: Send address changes to
the Virginia Register of Regulations, 910 Capitol Street, 2nd Floor,
Richmond, Virginia 23219.

The Virginia Register of Regulations is published pursuant to
Article 7 of Chapter 1.1:1 (§ 9-6.14:2 et seq.) of the Code of
Virgima. Individual copiles are available for $4 each from the
Registrar of Regulations.

Members of the Virginia Code Commission: Joseph V. Gartlan,
Ir., Chairman, W. Tayloe Murphy, Jr., Vice Chairman; Russell M.
Carneal; Bernard S. Cohen; Frank S. Ferguson; L. Cleaves
Manning; E. M. Miller, Jr; Theodore V. Morrison, Jr.; William
F. Parkerson, Jr.; Jackson E. Reasor, Jr.

Staff of the Virginia Register: Joan W. Smith, Registrar of
Regulations; Jane D. Chaffin, Assistant Registrar of Regulations.
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NOTICES OF INTENDED REGULATORY ACTION

Symbel Key ¥
1 Indicates entries since last publication of the Virginia Register

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS (STATE BOARD OF)
Weotice of Intended Regulatory Action

Netfice is hereby given in accordance with § 9-6.14:7.1 of
the Code of Virginia that the State Board of Corrections
intends to consider promulgating regulations entitled: VR
230-01-96. Regulations for Private DRManagement and
Operatien of Prison Facilities. The purpose of fthe
proposed action is to establish minimum standards for the
administration and operation of private oprisons. The
agency intends to hold a public nearing on the proposed
regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: § 53.1-286 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitted until February 24,
1995,

Contact: Amy Miller, Regulatory Coordinator, Depariment
of Corrections, 6900 Atmore Dr.,, Richmond, VA 23225
telephone (804) 674-3119.

VA.R. Doc. No. R95-224; Filed January 4, 1995, 12:05 p.m.

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTAMNCE SERVICES
+ Motice of Intended Regulatery Acticn

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Department of
Medical Agssistance Services iniends (0 consider
promulgating regulations entitled: ¥R 466-01-§6.2, Vaccines
for Children Administiration Fee, The purpese of the
proposed action i$ to promulgate permanent regulations to
supersede the current identical emergency regulation for
the vaccines adminisiration fee. The regulation that the
agency intends to propose for public comment period is a
preprinted page issued by the Health Care Financing
Administration for inclusion in ali State Plans for Medical
Assistance. This regulation will incorporate into the State
Pian the required administration fee for the Vaccines for
Children Program in conformance with federal
requirements. The agency does not intend to hold public
hearings on this issue.

Statutory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code ¢f Virginia.
Writien comments may be submitted until March 22, 1085,

to Sally Rice, Division of Clien{ 5Services, Department of
Medical Assistance Services, 600 East Broad Sireet, Suite

1300, Richmond, Virginia 23219.

Contaet: Victoria P. Simmons, Regulatory Coordinator,
Department of Medical Assistance Services, 600 E. Broad
Si{, Suite 1300, Richmond, VA 23219, telephone (804)
371-8850.

VAR. Doc. No. R§5-858; Filed February 1, 1885, 11:19 am.
DEPARTMENT OF MINES, MINERALS AND ENERGY
Board of Minera! Miping Examiners
Motice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency’s
public participation guidelines that the Board of Mineral
Mining Examiners infends to consider repealing regulations
entitled: VR 488-84-2, Board of Fxaminers Certification
Regulations. The purpose of the proposed action is fo
replace the provisions in the Board of Examiners
regulations governing mineral miner certifications with
ones promulgated under the new Boeard of Mineral Mining
Examiners established by the 1894 General Assembly. The
agency intends to hold a public hearing on the proposed
repeal afier publication.

Statutory Authority: § 45.1-161.46 C of the Code of Virginia.
Writfen comments may be submitted until March 8, 1995,

Comtact: Comrad T. Spangler, Chairman, Board of Mineral
Mining Examiners, Division of Mineral Mining, P.C. Box
3727, Charlottesville, VA  22803-0727, telephone {804)
961-5000 or toll-free 1-800-828-1120 (Virginia Relay Center)

Va.R. Doc. No. RY5-247; Filed January 17, 1995, 3:32 p.m,
Motice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency's
public parficipation guidelines that the Board of Mineral
Mining Examiners intends to comnsider promulgating
regulations entitled: VR 488-84-3. Certification
Requirements for Mineral Miners. The purpose of the
proposed action is to establish a separate regulation setting
requirements for the certification of mineral miners, The
1984 General Assembly esfablished the Board of Mineral
Mining Examiners as a board separate from ithe Board of
Examiners, which previcusly oversaw certification of both
coal and mineral miners. The agency intends to hold a
public hearing on the proposed regulation after publication.

Statutory Authority: § 45.1-161.45 C of the Code of Virginia.
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Notices of Intended Regulatory Action

Written comments may be submitted until March 8, 1995.

Centact: Conrad T. Spangler, Chairman, Board of Mineral
Mining Examiners, Division of Mineral Mining, P.0. Box
3727, Charlottesville, VA 22903-0727, telephone (804)
061-5000 or toll-free 1-800-828-1120 (Virginia Relay Center)

VA.R. Doc. No. R85-248; Filed January 17, 1995, 3:31 p.m.

DEPARTMENT OF STATE POLICE
Notice of Intended Regulatory Action

Notice is hereby given in accordance with this agency's
public participation guidelines that the Department of State
Police intends to consider promulgating regulations
entitled: VR 545-81-18. Repgulations Governing the
Operation and Maintenance of the Sex Offender
Registry. The purpose of the proposed regulation is to
repiace emergency regulations currently in effect. The
Department 0f State Police is required to govern the
 operation and maintenance of the Sex Offender Registry as
required by § 19.2-380.1 of the Code of Virginia. No public
hearing is planned after publication of the proposed
regulation.

Statutory Authority: § 19.2-390.1 of the Code of Virginia.

Written comments may be submitfed until February 23,
1995.

Comtact: Lieutenant John G. Weakiey, Assistant Records
Management Officer, P.0O. Box 27472, Richmond, VA 23261,
telephone (804) 674-2022.

va.R. Doc. No. R95-223; Filed January 4, 1995, 12:22 p.m.
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PROPOSED REGULATIONS

For information concerning Proposed Regulations, see information page.

beer stricken indicates proposed text for deletion.

: Symbol Key
Roman type indicates existing text of regulations. /fafic fype indicates proposed new text. Language which has

DEPARTMENT OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES
{(CRIMINAL JUSTICE SERVICES BOARD)

Title of Regulation: VR 249-83-2. Regulations Relating to
Private Security Services.

Statutory Authority: § 9-182 of the Code of Virginia.

Public Hearing Date: May 3, 19956 — 9 a.m.
Written commenis may be submitted through April 21,
1995,
{See Calendar of Events section
for additional information)

Basis: Pursuant to the statutory authority set forth in §
9-182 of the Code of Virginia, the Criminal Justice Services
Board (CJISB) will amend and revise iis regulations
relating to private security services. The primary basis for
amending the regulations is o incorporate necessary
amendments resulting from the approval of House Bills
393 and 395 hy the -1994 General Assembly and the
Governor. The fwo bills establish a mandate for the
Department of Criminal Justice Services (DCIS) fto
regulate through registration and/or licensure personal
protection specialists and electronic security businesses and
personnel on and after July 1, 1995. Therefore, the CJISB
must amend eXisting regulations te set minimum standards
and procedures for the application, registration, and
training of the new additional private security professionals
of which the new laws mandate regulation,

Purpose: The purpese of these regulations is to set forth a
regulatory program which mandates and prescribes
standards, requirements, and procedures that best serve to
protect the public safety and welfare from unqualified,
unscrupulous, and incompetenf persons engaged in the
activities of private securily services. Private security
services includes the personnel engaged in personal
protection specialists and electronic security services.

Substance: Key provisions of these regulations include (i)
Part I, which identifies, defines and includes electronic
securify business in the definition of private security
services business and incorporates designated employees of
an electronic security business and personal protection
specialist in the definition of “Private security services
business personnel”; (i) Part VII, which sets forth the
compulsory minimum {raining standards and requirements
for those persons ideniified, defined and incorporated in
the definition of private securify services business
personnel; and (iii) Part XI, which prescribes standards of
~conduct and sets forth prohibited practices for persons
engaged in the activities of private security services.

Issues: The primary advantages
provide to the general public are to: (i) set forth
standards, procedures, and requirements that serve to
protect the safety and welfare of the general public from
deceptive or misleading private security services business
practitioners; and (ii} secure the public safety and welfare
against incompetent, unscrupulous and ungualified persons
by establishing methods of licensure, certification and
registration that serve to enhance the competency of
persons performing or engaged in the activities of private
security services. A possible disadvantage of these
regulations to the general public is that businesses may
pass the costs of licensure, certification and registration on
to the general public through the fees charged¢ for the
services of those businesses. The primary advantage that
these regulations provide to the Commonwealth is that the
regulations establish the necessary standards, procedures,
and requirements that serve to protect the public safety
and welfare against incompetent, unscrupulous and
unqualified persons engaged in the aciivities of private
security services as mandated by the Code of Virginia.
There are no known disadvaniages of these regulafions for
the Commonwealth.

that these regulations

Estimated Impact:

A. Projected Number of Persons Affected: The estimated
number of persens affected by these regulations is
projected to be approximately 11,000 to 14,000, This
projection includes owners of private security businesses,
employees of such businesses, training directors,
instructors, and others that may be engaged in the
activities of private security services,

B. Projected Cost For Implementation; These proposed
regulations amend and revise the existing regulations
relating to private security services. The projected agency
cost associated with the implementation of electronic
security businesses and personnel and personal protection
specialists into the existing regulations is approximately
$142,845 for FY 94-05. The $142,845 figure was arrived at
by estimating the costs related to computer programming
associated with the new categories, reprogramming of the
computer generated photo identification cards and revision
of the necessary forms and applications to administer the
program and the addition of one fulltime employee
(FTE). The projected agency cost to implement these
proposed regulations does not differ significantty from the
cost associated with implemeniing the existing regulations.
A proposed budget which represents the agency's best
estimate .of the costs projected to implement these
regulations has been developed and is on file with the
department.
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Audits, training inspections, and compliance investigations
are integral components of these regulations. To perform
these functions, statewide travel is anticipated for three
FTE’s. Travel costs may include lodging, meals, and
automobile expenses. Projected annual cost for travel to
assure compliance is estimated to be approximately
$21,600.

Additionally, projected cost associated with compliance
may include the costs associated with the adjudication
process. Such costs may include hearing officer or
attorney fees, court reporter, and service of process. This
cost is not expected to exceed $11,000 annually. The
projected annual cost for compliance is estimated tfo be
$110,000.

C. Projected Industry Cost for Compliance: These
regulations will be part of a special fund program. The
industry, through registration, licensing and certification
fees, provides the funding for this program. No general
fund money is allocated for this program. Therefore, the
estimated cost to the industry for compliance and
implementation for FY 1985 is $142,845 and for FY 1896
the estimated industry cost is $257,570.

Affecied Locality: Further, these regulations do not impact
disproportionately upon any locality.

Summary:

The purpose of these regulations is to set forth a
regulatory program that profects the public from
unscrupulous, Iincompetent or unqualified persons
engaging in the activities of private securify services;
and to prescribe standards and procedures fhat will
guide the department and inform the general public of
the methods, process, and requirements relating fo the
administration, operation, licensing, registration,
training, and certification of persons engaged in the
activities of private security services.

These proposed regulations establish requirements and
prescribe procedures as to how te obfain a private
Security services business license, a private security
services registration or a ftraining certification.
Additionaily, these regulations set forth standards of
training, standards of conduct, and prohibited practices
relating to persons engaged In the activities of private
security services.

Essentially, these regulations address the operation,
administration, and enforcement procedures relating fto
private securify services; establish methods, standards,
and procedures for (raining, registration, and
certification of private Ssecurity services business
personnel, and set forth standards of conduct and
prohibited practices for persons engaged in the
business or activities relating to private security
Services.
VR 240-03-2.

Regulations Relaling {o Private Security

Services.

PART L
DEFINITIONS,

& 1.1. Definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in these
regulations, shall have the following meaning, unless the
context clearly indicates otherwise.

“Alarm responden!” means a natural person who
respends to the first signal of alarm of the home, business
or property of the end user.

“Armed security officer” means a security officer , as
defined below, who carries or has immediate access to a
firearm or other deadly weapon in the performance of his
duties.

“Armored car personnel” means persons who transport
or offer to transport under armed security from one place
to another, money, negotiable instruments or other
valuables in a specially equipped motor vehicle with a
high degree of security and certainiy of delivery.

“Board” means the Criminal Justice Services Board or
any successer hoard or agency.

“Bodyetard” means a seeurily officer, armed oF

“Central station dispatcher” means a natural person who
monitors burglar alarm signal devices, burglar alarms or
any other electrical, mechanical or electronic device used
to prevent or detect burglary, theft, shoplifting, pilferage
or similar losses; used to prevent or detect inirusion; or
used primarily to summon aid for other emergencies.

“Certified scheoo! director’” means the chief
administrative officer of a certified training school.

“Certified training school” means a training school which
provides instruction in at least the minimum (training
mandated and is certified by the department for the
specific purpose of ftraining private security services
business personnel.

“Class” means a minimum of 5) minutes of instruction
on-a particular subject.

“Combal load” means tactical loading of shotgun while
maintaining coverage of threat area.

“Compliance agent” means a natural person who is an
owner of, or employed by, a licensed private security
services business, The compliance agent shali assure the
compliance of the private security services business with
all applicable requirements as provided in § 3-183.3 of the
Code of Virginia.

Virginia Register of Regulations
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“Courier” means any armed person who transports or
offers to transport from one place to another documenis
or other papers, negotiable or nonnegotiable insiruments,
or other smali items of value that require expeditious
service.

“Department” means the Department of Criminal Justice
Services or any SUCCESSOr agency.,

“Director” means the chief administrative officer of the
depariment.

“Electronic security business” means any person who
engages in the- business of or undertakes to (i) install,
service, maintain, design or consult in the design of any
electronic security equipment to an end user; or (ii)
respond to or cause a response to electronic security
equipment for an end user.

"“Electronic securilty employee” means a natural person
who is employed by an electronic security business in any
capacity which may give him. access to information
concerning the design, extent or status of an end user’s
electronic security equipment.

“Electronic securily equipment” means elecironic or
mechanical alarm signaling devices including burglar
alarms or holdup alarms or cameras used to detect
intrusion, concealment or theft.

“Electronic securily sales representative” means a
natural person who sells electronic security equipment on
behalf of an electronic security business to the end user,

“Electronic security technician” means a natural person
who installs, services, maintains or repairs electronic
security equipment.

“End user” means any person who purchases or leases
electronic security equipment for use in that person’s
home or business.

“Engaging in the business of providing or undertaking to
provide private security services” means any person who
solicits business within the Commonwealth of Virginia
through advertising, business cards, submission of bids,
contracting, public notice for private security services,
directly or indirectly, or by any other means.

“Firearms certification” means the verification of
successful completion of either initial or retraining
requirements for handgun or shotgun training, or both.

“Firm” means a business entity, regardless of method of
organization, applying for a private securily services
business license or for the renewal or reinstatement of
same, ‘

“Guard dog handler” means any person employed by a
private security services business to handle degs in the
performance of duty in protection of property or persons.

“Inservice training requiremen!” means the compulsory
in-service training standards adopied by the Criminal
Justice Services Board for private security services
business personnei.

“Licensed firm” means a business entity, regardless of
methed of organization, which holds a wvalid private
security services business license issued by the depariment.

“Licensee” means a licensed private security services
husiness,

“Locksmith security equipment” means mechanical,
electrical or electro-mechanical locking devices for the
control of ingress or egress that do not primarily detect
intrusion, concealment and theft

"On dufy” means that time during which a registrant or
unarmed security officer receives or is entitled to receive
compensation for employment for which a registration or
training certification is required and that time while he is
traveling, immediately before and after the period of
actual duty, to and from the place of duly.

“Person” means any individual, group of individuals,
firm, company, corporation, parinership, business, trust,
association, or other legal entity.

“Personal protection specialist” speeigtist,” en angé afier
July L 1995, means any person who engages in the
business of providing protection from bodily harm to
another.

“Principal” means any soie proprietor, officer or
director of the corporation, member of the association, or
pariner of a licensed firm or applicant for licensure.

“Private investigator’” means any person who engages in
the business of, or accepts employment to make,
investigations to obtain information on {i) crimes or civil
wrongs; (ii) the location, disposition, or recovery of stolen
property; (iii) the cause of accidents, fires, damages, or
injuries to persons or to property;, or (iv) evidence to be
used before any court, board, officer, or investigative
commiittee.

“Private securify services business” means any person
engaged in the business of providing, or who undertakes to
provide, (i} armored car personnel, security officers,
personal protection specialists, private investigators,
couriers, or guard dog handlers to another person under
contract, express or implied; or (i) alarm respondenis,
central station dispatchers, electronic security employees,
electronic security sales representatives or electronic
gecurity technicians to another person under contract,
express or implied.

“Private security services business personnel” means
each employee of a private security services business who
is employed as an unarmed security officer, armed
security officer/courier, armored car personnel, guard dog
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handier private investigator, persomal protection specialist,
aglarm respondeni, cenfral station dispatcher, electronic
security employee, electronic security sales representative
or electronic security technician.

“Registrant” means any individual who has met the
requirements for registration in any of the categories
listed under “registration category.”

“Registration’ means a method of regulation whereby
certain personnel employed by a private security services
business are required to obtain a registration from the
depariment pursuant to Part V of this regulation.

“Registration cafegory” means any one of the following
categories: (i) armed security officer/courier, (ii) guard
dog handler, (iii) armored car personnel, (iv) private
investigator, (v) personal protection specialist, (vi} alarm
respondent, (vii) central station dispatcher, (viii) electronic
security sales representative, or (ix) electronic security
technician.

“Security officer” means any person employed by a
private security service business to safeguard and protect
persons and property or (0 prevent theft, loss, or
concealment of any tangible or intangible personal
property.

“Session” means a group of classes comprising the total
hours of mandated training in any of the following
categories: unarmed security officer, armed security
officer/courier, persomal protection specialist, armored car
personnel, guard dog handler, private investigator, alarm
respondent, ceniral station dispaicher, electronic security
sales representative, electronic securily technician or or
compliance agent.

“Store detective” means a security officer in the context
of these regulations.

verification of the
training requirement

“Training certification” means
successful completion of any
established in these regulations.

“Training requirement” means any initial or retraining
standard established in these regulations.

“Unarmed securily officer” means a security officer who
does not carry or have immediate access to a firearm or
other deadly weapon in the performance of his duties.

“Unarmed security officer training cerfification” means
verification that the individual has passed the Virginia
Criminal Records Search (VSP-167), and of the successful
completion of either initial or in-Service unarmed security
officer training requirements.

“Undercover person” means a private investigator in the
context of these regulations.

“Uniform” means any clothing with a badge, patch or

leftering which clearly identifies persons to any observer
as private Security services business personnel, not
law-enforcement officers.

PART IL
SCHEDULE OF FEES.

§ 2.1. Schedule of fees.

A The fees listed below reflect the cosis of handling,
issuance, and production associated with administering and
processing applications for [licensing, registration,
certification and other administrative requests for services
relating to private security services.

Categories Fees
Initial business HCENSE .....covvviiiiiiirirniirnnns $600
Business license renewal .......................... $250
Initial compliance agent ..............cccoviiien... $126
Initial registration ........... ... .. ... . ... $ 76
Registration renawal ........ ...l $ 35
Initial training school ..., $500
Training schoel renewal .............c.ciiieeen. $250
Firearms training credit ..............c.ccooiienn.. $ 25
IOSETBCEOT . o ittt i § 50
Instructor renewal .....coiiiiiiiiiii e $ 10

Initial unarmed security officer training certification

...................................................... 315
Unarmed security officer training certification renewal

...................................................... $ 15
Application for exemplion ................ccovennn. §35
Unarmed secyrity officer training sessien .......: § 18
Private investipator traiping sessien ... . .. - & 25
Armered ear treining sessten ... § 15
Arined security officer raining session ........... $ 15
Firearms tradning SeSSI6H ... ... . ... .. .cocieiies & 16
Guard dog bondler trafins sessten ... ... § 15
Iservice Hainiag session ... i ieeeenes & 18
Firearms refraiming sessteor ... ...oiieennnn. $ 18
Fingerprint card processing ................oount. § 41
Additional registration categories .................. $ 25
Replacement photo identification .................. $15
Training completion roster form . ... ............ §1a

§ 2.2. Reinstatement fee.

A, The department shall collect a reinstatement fee for
registration, license, or certification, renewal applications
not received on or before the expiration date of the
expiring registration, license, or certification.

B. The reinstatement fee shall be 509 above and
beyond the renewal fee of the registration, license,
certification, or any other credential issued by the
department wherein a fee Is established and renewal is
required.

§ 2.3. Dishenor of fee payment due to nonsufficient funds.

A. The department may suspend the regisiration, license,.
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ceriification, or authority it has granted any person,
licensee or registrant who submits a check or similar
instrument for payment of a fee required by statute or
regulation which is not honored by the financial institution
upon which the check or simiiar instrument is drawn.

B. The suspension shall become effective upon receipt of
written nofice of the dishonored payment. Upon
notification of the suspension, the person, registrant or
licensee may request that the suspended registration,
license, certification, or authority be reinstated, provided
payment of the dishonored amount plus any penalties or
fees required under the statute or regulation accompany
the request. Suspension under this provision shall he
exempt from the Administrative Process Act.

PART III
LICENSING PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS.

& 3.1. Initial licensing requirements for a private security
services husiness.

Each person seeking a license as a private security
services business shall file an application furnished by the
departmeni{ accompanied by a nonrefundable application
fee of $600. Each principal of the business entity applying
for a private security services business license must be
listed on the application and is responsible for the firm's
adherence to the Code of Virginia and these regulations .
Each person listed on the application shall complete a
supplemental business license application and submit his
fingerprint cards on one completed set of two fingerprint
cards along with a nonrefundable fee of $41; however, a
maximumn of two sets of fingerprint cards may accompany
the application at no additional cost. Licenses shall be
issued for a period not to exceed 12 months. All forms
shall be completed in full compliance with the instructioens
provided by the department. Applicants shall meet or
exceed the requirements of §§ 3.2 through 3.14 prior to
the issuance of a license.

§ 3.2. Surety bond or insurance required.

Fach person seeking a license as a private security
services business shall secure a surety bond in the amount
of $25,000, executed by a surety company authorized to do
business in Virginia, or a certificate of insurance showing
a policy of comprehensive general liability insurance with
a minimum coverage of $100,000 and $300,000, issued by
an insurance company authorized to do business in
Virginia. Documentation of continuous and current
coverage of the surety bond or comprehensive geperal
liability insurance must be filed and mainfained with the
department.

§ 3.3. Irrevocable consent.

Each nonresident applicant for a license or nonresident
licensee shall, on a form provided by the department, file
and maintain with the department an irrevocable consent
for the department to serve as service agent for all

actions filed in any court in this Commonwealth.

§ 3.4. Compliance agent
requirements; duties and
retention and replacement.

reguired ; certification
responsibilities; restriction;

A. Each firm applying for a license as a private security
services business shall designate at least one individual as
compliance agent who is not designated as compliance
agent for any other licensee. To become a compliance
agent, an individual shall file a properly completed
application furnished by the department and conform to
the following requirements and procedures:

1. Be a minimum of 18 years of age;

2. Have three years of managerial or supervisory
experience in a private security services husiness, or
in a federal, state, or local law-enforcement agency, or
in a related field;

3. Successfully complete the applicable compliance
agent training requirements pursuant to §§ 79 F and
7.10 E and achieve a minimusn of 7005 passing score
on the compliance agent examination;

4. Be designated by a licensed private security
services business as its compliance agent;

5. Be in good standing in every jurisdiction where
licensed or registered in private securify services; and

6. Submit his fingerprints on two completed fingerprint
cards, as provided by the department, and a
nenrefundable application fee of $126.

B. The compliance agent shall at all times comply with
the following:

1. Ensure that the licensed firm is in full compliance
with the Code of Virginia and these regulations;

2. Ensure that VSP Form-167 has been preeessed by
submitted to the Virginia State Police for processing
before the individual may begin work, and mainteined
maintain a copy in the firm’s files for each unarmed
guard as required by § 9-183.3 of the Code of Virginia;

3. Ensure the maintenance of documentary evidence
that each unarmed guard has complied with, or been
exempied from, the compulisory minimum training
standards as required by § 9-183.3 of the Code of
Virginia;

4. Ensure that the licensed firm does not utilize or
otherwise employ any person as an unarmed security
officer in excess of 90 days prior to the completion of
the compulsory minimum {raining standards for
unarmed security officer;

5. Maintain training, employment, and payroll records
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which document the licensee’s compliance with the
Code of Virginia and these regulations;

6. Ensure that an irrevocable consent for the
department to serve as service agent for all actions
filed in any court in this Commonwealih is submitted
to the department within 30 days after the licensee
moves to a location outside Virginia.

C. No individuat shall be certified by the department as
a compliance agent for more than one licensee ai any
given time,

D. 1. Each licensee shall maintain at least one
individual as a compliance agent who has met the
requirements of § 3.4 of these regulations and has been
certified by the department.

2. Each licensee shall notify the department in wrifing
within 10 calendar days of the termination of
employment of a certified compliance agent.

3. Within 90 days of termination of the employment of
a licensee’s sole remaining compliance agent, the
licensee shall submit ; ern a form provided by the
department the name of a new compliance agent who
has met the requirements of § 3.4 of these regulations.

§ 3.5. Criminal history records search.

Upon application for a private security services business
license, each compliance agent and principal of the
applicant firm shall submit to fthe depariment fheir
fingerprints on one completed sef of two fingerprint cards
on forms provided by the department, and a $41
nonrefundable fee for each set of fingerprint cards beyond
the allowable fwo sets provided with the initial business
application, The department shall submit those fingerprints
to the Virginia State Police for the purpose of conducting
a Virginia Criminal History Records search and a National
Criminal Records search to determine whether the
individual or individuals have a record of conviction.

§ 3.6. Unclassifiable fingerprint cards.

Fingerprints cards found to be unclassifiable will be
returned to the applicant. Action on the application will be
suspended pending the resubmittal of classifiable
fingerprint cards. The applicant should be so notified in
writing and shall submit new fingerprint cards and a
nonrefundable fee of $41 to the department before the
processing of his application shall resume. However, no
such fee may be required if the rejected fingerprint cards
are included and attached to the new fingerprint cards
when resubmitted.

§ 3.7. Basis for denial of licensure.
A. The department may deny licensure to a firm in

which any compliance agent or principal has been
convicted in any jurisdiction of any felony or of a

misdemeanor involving moral tarpitude, sexual olfense,
drug offense, physical injury or property damage. Any Dlea
of nolo contendere shall be considered a conviction for the
purposes of these regulations. The record of a conviction,
authenticated in such form as to be admissible in evidence
under the laws of the jurisdiction where convicted, shall
be admissible as prima facie evidence of such conviction.

B. The department may deny licensure to a firm in
which any compliance agent or principal has not
maintained good standing in every jurisdiction where

licensed or registered or has had his license or
regisiration denied upen initial application, suspended,
revoked, surrendered, not renewed, or otherwise

disciplined in connection with a disciplinary action prior io
applying for licensure in Virginia.

C. The department may deny licensure to a firm for
other just cause.

§ 3.8. Physical address.

Each firm applying for a private security services
business license shall provide the department with iis
physical address in Virginia at which records required to
be maintained by the Code of Virginia and these
regulations are kept and available for inspection by the
department. A post office box is not a physical address.

§ 3.9. Authority fo inspect.

Each licensee shall permit the department to inspect,
review, or copy thogse documents, business records or
training records in the compliance agent’s or licensed
firm's possession that are required to be maintained by
the Code of Virginia and these regulations.

§ 3.10. Display of license,

The private security services business license issued by
the department shall be prominenfly displayed for public
inspection at all times.

§ 3.11. Change of ownership ot entity.

A. Each licensee shall report in writing to the
department any change in its cownership or principals
which does not result in the creation of a new legal entity.
Such written report shall be received by the department
within 30 days after the occurrence of such change and
shall include the application form, fingerprint cards and a
nonrefundable fee of $41 for each new individual.

B. A new license is required whenever there is any
change in the ownership or manner of organization of the
licensed enfity which results in the creation of a new legal
entity.

§ 3.12. Change of name or address.

Each licensee shall upon application, and at all times,
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keep the department informed of its physical address, and
shall report in writing fo the department any change in its
name or physical address no later than 15 days after the
effective date of that change. Name change reports shall
be accompanied by certified frue copies of the documenis
which establish the name change. A post office box is not
a physical address.

§ 3.13. Transfer of license prohibited.

Each license shall be issued to the legal business entity
named on the application, whether it be a sole
proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or other legal
entity, and shall' be valid only for the legal entity named
on the license. No license shall be assigned or otherwise
transferred to another legal entity.

§ 3.14, Exemptions.

The direeter department may grant a temporary
exemption from the requirement of licensure for a period
of not more than 30 days in a situation deemed an
emergency by the department.

§ 3.15. Probation, suspension, and revocation.

The certified compliance agent and licensed private
security services business shall be subject to disciplinary
action for violations or noncompliance with the Code of
Virginia or these regulations. Disciplinary action shall be
in accordance with procedures prescribed by the
Administrative Process Act (§ 9-6.14:1 et seq. of the Code
of Virginia). The disciplinary action may include but is not
limited to a letfer of censure, fine, probation, suspension
or revocation of the firm’s private security services
business license or his status as compliance agent.

PART IV.
RENEWAL OF LICENSE.

Artele 1o

$ 4.1. Renewal notification; invalid license.

A. The departmenti will mail to the last known address
of the licensee a renewal notification. Failure of the
licensee to renew prior to the expiration of the license
shall be the sole responsibility of the licensed firm’s
compliance agent.

B. A private security services business license not
renewed on or before the expiration date of the license
shall become null and void. Operaiing 'a private security
services business without a valid private security services
business license is a violation of § 9-183.3 of the Code of
Virginia and these regulations.

§ 4.2. License expiration ; renewal, reinstatement .

A.  All licenses issued to private security services

businesses shall be valid for a period not to exceed 132
months.

§ 43 License renewsl; reinstatemment:

A; B. Applications for license renewal must be received
by the department at least 30 days prior to expiration.
License renewal applications received by the department
after the expiration date shall be subject to all applicable
nonrefundable renewal fees plus reinstatement fees.

B C The departmeni may renew the license for a
period not {o exceed 12 months {rom fhe expiration date
of the license when ihe following are received by the
department:

1. A properly completed renewal application;
2. A nonrefundable license renewal fee of $250; and

3. Documentiation that the firm has in force a policy
of comprehensive general liability insurance or a
surety bond in at least the amount required by § 3.2
of these regulations ; documentation of continuous and
current coverage of the surety bond or comprehensive
general liability insurance must he filed and
maintained with the department .

& D. Each compliance agent listed on the license
renewal application shall have satisfactorily completed all
applicable training requirements,

B. E. Each principal or compliance agent listed on ihe
license renewal application shall be in good standing and
free of disciplinary action in every jurisdiction where
licensed or registered,

E- F. A renewal application received by the department
within 180 days following the expiration date of the license
ghall be accompanied by a nonrefundable renewal fee of
$250 and a nonrefundable reinstatement fee of $125.

¥ G. No license shall be renewed or reinstated when
the application and fee are received by the depariment
more than 180 days following the expiration date of the
license. After that date, the applicant shall meet all initial
licensing requirements.

G- H. The department may deny renewal or
reinstatement of a license for the same reason as it may
refuse initial licensure or discipline a licensese.

PART V.
REGISTRATION PROCEDURES AN
REGUIREMENTS.

§ 5.1, Initial registration requirements.

Individuals seeking registration under § 9-183.3 of the
Code of Virginia shall file an application furnished by the
department which shall bhe accompanied by a
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nonrefundable application fee of $76. Each applicant shall
meel or exceed the following regquirements prior fo the
issuance of a registration:

1. Be at least 18 years of age;

2. Disciose to the department his physical address (a
post office box is not a physical address);

3. Submit ene set of two completed fingerprint cards
on forms provided by the depariment;, and

4. Provide evidence of the successful comipletion of all
initial training requiremenis for each registration
category requested.

§ 5.2. Additional categories and iraining certifications.

Registered individuals seeking additional registration
categories or tiraining certifications shall file an
application, furnished by the department, documenting that
the following training requirements for the requested
categories or training certifications have been met:

1. The nonrefundable fee for each filing is $25.

2. Individuals may avoid paying a separate fee for
additional categories or iraining certifications when
evidence of satisfactory completion of the training
requirements for each additional <category or
certification accompanies a renewal application for
registration.

§ 5.3. Criminal history records search.

Upon receipt of an initial registration application, the
department shall submif the fingerprints of the applicant
to the Virginda State Police for the purpose of conducting
a Virginia Criminal History Records search and a Nationat
Criminal Records search to determine whether the
applicani has a record of conviction. Applicants submiiting
unclassifiable fingerprint cards shall be required to submit
his fingerprints on new fingerprint cards along with a
nonrefundable fee of $41. However, no such fee shall be
requirad if the rejecied fingerprint cards are included and
attached to the new fingerprint cards when resubmitied. In
the case of registration renewal application for armored
car persounel only, a Virginia Criminal History Records
search and a national criminal records search to

determine whether the applicant has a record of
conviction shall be conducted.
§ 5.4, Temporary registration,

The department may issue a letter of temporary

registration to individuals seeking registration under §
5-183.3 of ihe Code of Virginia for not more than 120 days
while awaiting the results of the national fingerprint
search, provided the applicani has met the conditions and
requirements set forth in §§ 3.1 through 55 of these
regulations, and the Virginia Criminal Records search

proved negative.
§ 5.5. Duties and responsibilities of registrant.

The registrant must at ali iimes comply with the

following;

1. Carry the a valid regisiration isswed by the
department at all times while on duty;

2. Perform those duties authorized by his registration
only while employed by a licensed private security
services business and only for the clients of the
licensee. This shail not be construed to prohibit an
individual who is registered as an armed security
officer from being employed by a nonlicensee as
provided for in § $-183.2 of the Code of Virginia,

3. Carry or have immediate access to firearms while
on duty only while possessing & valid firearms
certification;

4. Carry a firearm concealed while on duty only with
the expressed authorization of the licensed private
security services business employing the registrant and
only in compliance with § 18.2-308 of the Code of
Virginia;

5. Transport, carry and utilize firearms while on duty
only in a manner whick does not endanger the public
heaith, safety and welfare;

6. If authorized to make arrests, make arrests in full
compliance with the law and using only the minimum
force necessary to effect an arrest;

7. Engage in no conduct which through word, deed or
appearance suggests that a regisirant is a
law-enforcement officer or other government official;

8. Display one’s registration while on duty in response
to the request of a law-enforcement officer e eother
orderly persen , depariment persconel or clieat ;
however, this reqguirement shall not apply to armored
car personnel or personal profection specialisis ;

9. Never perform any unlawful or negligent act
resuiting in a loss, injury or death to any persomn;

10. ¥ear while on dulyy Private securily personnel are
not required lo wear a uniform while on duty;
however, if wearing the military style or
law-enforcement style uniformn of a private security
licensee whiek has while on duly, that uniform must
have :

a. At least one insignia clearly ideniifying the name
of the licensed firm employing the individual and,
except armored car personnel, & name plate or tape
bearing, as a minimum, the individual's last name
and first and middle initials attached on the
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outermost garment, except rainwear worn only to
protect from inclement weather; and

b. No patch or other writing (i) containing the word
“police” or any other words suggesting a
law-enforcement officer; (ii) containing the word
“officer” unless used in conjunction with the words
“security”; or (i) resembling any umiform patch or
insignia of any duly constituted law-enforcement
agency of this Commonwealth, its political
subdivisions or of the federal government. This

restricfion shall not apply to individuals who are’

also duly sworn special police officers, to the extent

that they may display words which accurately
represent that distinction:

11. Mever uwse Ulfilize a vehicle in the conduct of a
private security services business whiek uses eof
displays a flashing red; blue or amber Heht exeept

Froall herized by the Code ef Virgini
only as provided in the Code of Virginia and these
regulations ; '

12. Never use or display the state seal of Virginia as
a part of any logo, stationery, business card, badge,
patch, insignia or other form of identification or
advertisement; :

13. Never display the uniform, badge or other insignia
while not on duty;

14. During the course of any private investigation,
never provide information obtained by any licensed
firm and its employees to any person other than the
client who employed the licensee to obtain that
information, without the client’s prior written consent.
Provision of Information in response to official
requests from law-enforcement agencies, or from the
department, shall not constitute a violation of these
regulations. Provision of information to
law-enforcement agencies periinent to criminal activity
or to planned criminal activity shall not censtitute a
violation of these regulations;

15. Inform the department in writing within 30 days of
pleading guilty or nolo contendere or being convicted
or found guilty of any felony or of a misdemeanor
involving maeral turpitude, sexual offense, drug offense,
physical injury or property damage;

16. Ianform the department in writing within 30 days
after having been found guilty by any court or
administrative hody of competent jurisdiction to have
violated the private security services business statutes
or regulations of that jurisdiction, there being no
appeal therefrom or the time for appeal having
elapsed;

17. Acting as a registrant only in such a manner as to
not endanger the public health, safety and welfare;

18. Engage in no unethical, fraudulent, or dishonest
conduct;

19. Never represent as one’s own a registration issued
to another individual, or represent oneself as certified
compliance agent of a licensee, training school, school
director or instructor unless so certified by the
department;

20. Never falsify, or aid and abet others in falsifying,
training records for the purpose of obfaining a license,
registration, unarmed security officer training
certification, or certification as a compliance agent,
training school, school director or instructor.

§ 5.6. Replacement photo identification.

Registered individuals seeking a replacement
identification shall submit to the department:

phoio

1. A properly completed application;

2. Copy of training completion forms; and

3. A nonrefundable processing fee of $15.
§ 5.7. Transfer of registration prohibited.

Each registration shail be issued to the individual named
on the application and shall be valid only for use by that
individual. No registration shall be utilized by any
individual other than the individual named on the
registration. No registration shall be transferred to another
individual.

§ 5.8. Change of name or address.

Each registrant shall upon application, and at all times,
keep the department informed of his physical address and
shall report in writing to the department any change in
his name or physical address no later than 15 days after
the effective date of that change. A post office box is not
a physical address.

§ 5.9. Basis for registration denial.

A. The department may deny regisiration to any person
who:

1. Has heen convicted in any jurisdiction of any felony
or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, sexual
offense, drug offense, property damage or physical
injury. Any plea of nolo coniendere shall be
considered a conviction for purposes of these
regulations. The record of a conviction, authenticated
in sach form as to be admissible in evidence under
the laws of the jurisdiction where convicted, shall be
admissible as prima facie evidence of such conviction;
or

2. Has failed to maintain his license or registration in
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good standing in every jurisdiction where licensed or
registered as private security persennel, or has been
fined or had amy private security license or
registration denied vpon initial application, suspended,
revoked, surrendered, noi renewed, or otherwise
disciplined in connection with a disciplinary action
prior to applying for registration or licensure in

Virginia.
B. The department may deny registration to an
individual for other just cause.
& 5.10. Exemptions.
The direetsr department may grant a temporary

exemption from the requirement of regisiration for a
period of not more than 30 days in a situation deemed an
emergency by the department.

§ 5.11. Probation, suspension, and revocation,

The registrant shall be subject to disciplinary action for
violations or noncompliance with the Code of Virginla and
these regulations. Disciplinary action shall be in
accordance with the Adminisirative Process Act (§ 9-6.14:1
el seq. of the Code of Virginia). The disciplinary action
may include bui is not limited to a leiter of censure, fine,
probation, suspension, or revecation of his registration.

§ 5 5.12. Registration expiration, renewal, reinstatement.

A. The department will mail a renewal notification to
the last known address of the regisirant. Failure of the
registrant to remew prior to the expiration date of the
registration shall be ihe sole responsibility of the
individual regisirant.

B. A private security services registration not renewed
on or hefore the expiration dafe of {he registration shall
become null and void. Performing private security services
duties without a valid private security services registration
is a violation of the Code of Virginia.

C. 1. All registrations issued on or after July 1, 1993,
shall be valid for a peried not to exceed 12 months.

2. All regisirations issued prier to July 1, 1993, shall
expire on the expiration date of the registration.

D. 1. Applications for registration renewal must be
received by the department at least 30 days prior to
expiration. A registration renewal application received by
the department after the expiraiion date shall be subject
to all applicable nonrefundable renewal {ees plus
nonrefundable reinstatement fees.

2. The department may renew the registration for a
period not to exceed 12 months from the expiration
date of the expiring registration when the following
are received by the department:

a. A properly completed renewal application;

b. Evidence of satisfactory completion of the
applicable training or retraining requirements for
each registration category and each training
certification requested; and

¢. A nonrefundable registration renewal fee of $35.

E. 1. Registration renewal applications received within
180 days following the expiration date shall be
accompanied by a nonrefundable renewal fee of $35 and a
nonrefundable reinsiatement fee of $17.50.

2. No registration shall be renewed or reinstated when
the application for renewal and fee are received by
the department after 180 days following the expiration
date of the registration. After that date, the applicant
shali meet then current initial registration
requirements,

3. The date on which the application and fee are
received by the depariment shall determine whether
the registrant is eligible for renewal or reinstatement
or is required to apply for initial registration.

4, The depariment may deny renewal or reinstatement
of a registration for the same reason as it may refuse
initial registration or discipline a registrant.

§ &3% 5.13. Firearms certification, expiration, renewal.

A. An individual who has successfully completed the
handgun firaining requirements may submit a properly
completed application for registration with handgun
certification.

1. Handgun certification will be documented on the
registration and shall expire on the expiration date of
the registration.

2. The department may grant a handgun certification
upon receipt of the following:

a. A properly completed application; and

b. Documentary evidence of satisfactory completion
of the applicable handgun training requirements.

B. An individual who has successfully met the handgun
training requirements, and has successfully compieted the

shotgun {raining requirement, may submit a properly
completed application for registration with shotgun
certification.

1. Shotgun certification will be documented on the
registration and shall expire on the expiration date of
the registration.

2. The department may grant a shotgun certification
upon receipt of the following:
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a. A properly completed application; and

b. Documentary evidence of satisfactory completion
of the applicable shoigun training requirements.

C. All handgun and sholgun certifications shall be issued
for a period not to exceed 12 months and shall become
null and void on the expiration date of the registration.
“Firearms endorsements” issued prior to July 1, 1983, shall
become nuli and wvoid on the expiration date of the
endorsement.

D. The department may renew handgun and shoigun
certifications for a period not to exceed 12 months from
the expiration date of the registration when the following
are received by the department:

1. A properly
application;

completed registration renewal

2. Evidence of satisfactory completion of all applicable
training, firearms retraining and inservice training
requirements; and

3. A nonrefundable fee of $35. (One $35 fee for
registration renewal includes firearms certifications if
all requirements have been met).

E. The department may deny renewal of a firearms
certification for the same reason as it may refuse initial
firearms certification or discipline a registrant.

PART VL
UNARMED SECURITY OFFICER TRAINING
CERTIFICATION PROCEDURES AND
REQUIREMENTS.

§ 6.1. Training certification.

A. Each person employed or utilized as an unarmed
security officer shall successfully complete the compulsory
minimum training standards for unarmed security officers
and make application to the department for the issuance
of an unarmed security officer {raining certification,
except that such persons may be employed for not more
than 90 days while completing the compulsory minimum
{raining standards.

B. Individuals seeking unarmed security officer training
certification shall file an application provided by the
department which shall he accompanied by a
nonrefundable processing fee of $15. Each applicant shall

meet or exceed the following requirements prier to
issuance of an unarmed security officer (raining
certification:

1. Be at least 1§ years of age;

2, Disclose to the department a physical address (a
post office box is not a physical address);

3. Provide documentary evidence of compliance with
the initial unarmed security officer (raining
requirement and, if appropriate, in-service training
requirements for unarmed security officers; and

4. Have the compliance agent of his employer attest
that documentary evidence exists that an investigation
toc determine suitability of the applicant bhas been
conducted and reviewed as required by the Code of
Virginia.

C. Each person employed or ufilized as an unarmed
security officer on or after July 13, 1994, shall comply
with the unarmed security officer training certification
requirements.

§ 6.2. Criminal history records search.

Upon hiring a person to be employed as an unarmed
security officer, the compliance agent of the business shall
submit on the first day of emplovment, VSP Form 167
signed by the applicant o the Virginia State Police for the
purpose of conducting a Virginia Criminal History Records
search to determine whether the appliicant has a record of
conviction. An Individual may not be empioyed for more
than 30 days without documentation of the completion of
the Virginia Criminal History Records search.

§ 6.3. Duties and responsibilities.

The unarmed security officer must at all times comply
with the following:

1. Carry a valid unarmed security officer training

cerfification issued by the department card at all
times while on duty;

2. Perform those duties authorized by these regulations
only while employed by a licensed private security
services business and only for the clients of the
licensee, This shall not be construed to prohibit an
individual who is emploved as an unarmed security
officer from being employed by a nonlicensee as
provided for in § 9-183.2 of the Code of Virginia,

3. Never carry or have immediate access to firearms
while on duty;

4. Engage in no conduct which through word, deed or
appearance suggests that an unarmed security officer
15 a law-enforcement officer or other government
official;

5. Display one’s certification while on duty in response
to the request of a law-enforcement cfficer e ether
orderly persen , department personnel or client |

6. Never perform any unlawful or negligent act
resulting in a loss, injury or death to any persomn,

7. Wear while en duty; Privafe securify personnel are
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not required fo wear a uniform while on duly;
however, if wearing the law-enforcement style or
military style uniform of a private security licensee
whiek has while on duty, thal uniform must have :

a. At least one insignia clearly identifying the name
of the licensed firm employing the individual and a
name plate or tape bearing, as a minimum, the
individual’s last name and first and middie initials
attached on the outermost garment, except rainwear
worn only to protect from inclement weather; and

b. No patch or other writing (i) confaining the word
“police”™ or any other words suggesting a
law-enforcement officer; (ii) containing the word
“officer” unless used in conjunction with the word
“security”; or (iii) resembling any umiform paich or
insignia of any duly constituted law-enforcement
agency of this Commonwealth, its political
subdivisions or of the federal government. This
restriction shall not apply to individuals who are
also duly sworn special police officers, to the extent
that they may display words wiich accurately
represent that distinction;

8 MNever use Utilize a vehicle in the conduct of a
private security services business whieh wuses or
displays a flasking red; blue or amber light except
when speeifieally authorized by the Code of Wirginig
only as provided in the Code of Virginia and {hese
regulations

9. Never use or display the state seal of Virginia as a
part of any logo, stationery, business card, badge,
patch, insignia or other form of Iidentification or
advertisement;

10. Never display the uniform, badge or other insignia
while nof on duty;

11. Inform the depariment in writing within 30 days of
pleading guilty or nolo contendere or being convicted
or found guilty of any felony or of a misdemeanor
involving moral turpifude, sexual offense, drug offense,
physical injury or property damage;

12. Inform the department in writing within 30 days
after having been found guilly by any court or
adminisirative body of competent jurisdiction to have
violated the private security services business statutes
or regulations of that jurisdiction, there being no
appeal therefrom or the {ime for appeal having
elapsed;

13. Acting as an unarmed security officer only in such
a manner as fo not endanger the public health, safety
and welfare;

14. Engage in no unethical, fraudulent, or dishonest
conduct;

15. Never represent as one’s own certification issued
to another individual, or representing onecself as a
certified compliance agent of a licensee, school
director or insiructor unless certified as such by this
department;

16. Never falsify, or aid and abet others in falsifying,
training records for the purpose of obtaining a license,
registration, unarmed security officer ({raining
certification, or certification as a compliance agent,
training school, school director or instructor.

§ 6.4. Change of name or address.

Each unarmed security officer shail upon application,
and at all times, keep the department infermed of his
physical address and shall report in writing to the
department any change in his name or physical address
no later than 15 days after the effective date of that
change. A post office box is not a physical address.

§ 6.5. Transfer of certification prohibited.

Each unarmed security officer training ceriification shall
be issued to the individual named on the application and
shall he valid only for use by that individual. No unarmed
security officer {raining certification shall be utilized by
any individual other ihan the individual named on the
certification. No unarmed security officer ({(raining
certification shall be transferred ito another individual
§ 6.6. Replacement photo identification.

Unarmed security officers seeking a replacement photo
identification shall submit to the department:

1. A properly completed application; and
2. A nonrefyndable processing fee of $15.
§ 6.7. Training certification denial.

The departmeni may deny an unarmed security officer

training cerfification to any person who has been
convicted in any jurisdiction of any felony or a
misdemeanor invelving moral turpitude, sexual offense,

drug offense, property damage or physical injury. Any plea
of nolo coniendere shall be considered a conviction for
purposes of these regulations. The record of a conviction,
authenticated in such form as to be admissible in evidence
under the laws of the jurisdiction where convicted, shall
be prima facie evidence of such conviction. The
department may deny certification for other just cause.

§ 6.8. Probation, suspension, and revocation.

The certified unarmed securify officer shall be subject
fo disciplinary action for violations or noncompliance with
the Code of Virginia and these regulations. Disciplinary
action shall be in accordance with the Administrative
Process Act (§ 9-6.14:1 et seq. of the (ode of Virginia,
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The disciplinary action may include but is not limited to a
letter of censure, fine, probation, suspension, or revocation
of his certification.

§ 6:8. 6.9. Certification expiration, renewal, reinstatement.

A. The department will mail a renewal notification to
the last known address of the individual. Failure of the
individual to renew prior fo the expiration date of the
unarmed security officer {raining certification shall be the
sole responsibility of the individual.

B. An unarmed security officer training certification not
renewed on or before the expiration date of the certificate
shall become null and void. Performing private security
services duties beyond the Initial 90 days of employment
without a valid unarmed security officer training
cerfification is a violation of the Code of Virginia and
these regulations.

C. An unarmed security officer training certification
shall he valid for a period not to exceed 24 months from
the date of issue. All such training certifications shall
expire on the expiration date of the unarmed security
officer training certification.

D. 1. An application for unarmed security officer
training certification renewal must be received by the
department at least 30 days prior to expiration. Unarmed
security officer training certification applications received
by the depariment after the expiration date shall be
subject to all applicable nonrefundable renewal fees plus
reinstatement fees.

2. The department may renew the unarmed security
officer training certification for a period not to exceed
24 months from the expiration date of the unarmed
security officer {training certification when the
following are received by the department:

a. A properly completed renewal application;

b. Evidence of satisfactory completion of the
in-service training requirements; and

c. A nonrefundable renewal fee of $15.

E. 1. Renewal applications received within 180 days
following the expiration date shall be accompanied by a
nonrefundable renewal fee of $15 and a nonrefundable
reinstatement fee of $7.50.

2. No unarmed security officer training certification
shall be renewed or reinstated when the application
for renewal and fee are received by the department
after 180 days following the expiration date of the
unarmed security officer training certification. After
that date, the applicant shail meet then current initial
unarmed security officer training certification
requirements.

3. The date on which the application and fee are
received by the depariment shall determine whether
the individual is eligible for renewal or reinstatement
or is required to apply for initial unarmed security
officer training certification.

4. The depariment may deny renewal or reinstatement
of an unarmed security officer training certification
for the same reason as it may refuse the initial
ceriification or discipline an unarmed security officer.

PART VIL
COMPULSORY MINIMUM TRAINING STANDARDS
FOR PRIVATE SECURITY SERVICES BUSINESS
PERSONNEL.

Artiete &

§ 7.1. Entry level training.

Each person employed by a private security services
business or applying to the department for registration as
an armed security officer/courier, personal protection
specialist, armored car personnel, guard dog handler,
private investigator, alarm respoendent, central station
dispatcher, electronic security sales representative, or
electronic security technician as defined by § 9-183.1 of
the Code of Virginia, or applying te the depariment for
training certification as an unarmed security officer as
reqguired by § 9-183.3 of the Cede of Virginia, or for
certification as a compiiance agent as required by §
9-183.3 of the Code of Virginia, who has not met the
compulsory minimum training standards prior to July 13,
1994, must meet the compulsory minimum training
standards herein established, unless provided for otherwise
in accordance with §§ 7.2 and 7.3 of these regulations,

§ 7.2. Exemptions.

Persons who meet the statutory requirements as set
forth in § 9-182 of the Code of Virginia and whe have
completed a law-enforcement eniry level training course
may apply for a partial exemption from the mandatory
training. Individuals requesting such exemption shall file
an application furnished by the department. The
nonrefundable application fee for each filing is $35. The
department may issue such partial exemption, on the basis
of individual qualifications as supported by required
documentation. The department shall not issue more than
a partial exemption to those persons who have remained
out of law-enforcement employment in excess of 24
months. Those applying for and receiving exemptions must
also comply with all firearms requirements, if applicable,
and all regulations promulgated by the board. Each person
receiving a partial exemption must apply to the
department for registration within 12 months from date of
issuance, otherwise the partial exemption shall become
null and void.

& 7.3. Credit for approved firearms training.
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The depariment may authorize credit for firearms
training received at a depariment approved school which
meets or exceeds the compulsory minimum training
standards required for private security services business
personnel, provided that such fraining has been
successfully completed within 12 monihs of the date of
application. Applicants requesting credit for firearms
training shal! file an application furnished hy the
department. The nonrefundabie application fee for each
filing is $25.

§ 7.4. Firearms training.
Firearms certification is required for all private securify

services business personnel prior {0 carrying or having
immediate access to a firearm in the performance of duty.

§ 7.5. Inservice iraining.

Each person registered with the department as an
armed security officer/courier, personal profection
specialist, armored car personnel, guard dog handler,
private investigator, alarm respondent, ceniral station
dispatcher, electronic security sales representative,
electronic security techmician, or applying o the

depariment for training certification as an unarmed
security officer, or certified by the departinent toc act as a
compliance agent, shall complete the compulsory in-service
training standard once during each 24-month period of
registration or certification as determined by the
department. Compliance agept in-service (raining 1Iis
required within 24 monihs of entry-level iraiming, or the
Iast completed in-service training.

3 Each perses copified as & complianee agent shall
eomplete complianee agent in-scrvice iraiping within
eaeh 24-tmonth peried of certHficaton-

§ 7.6. Instructor recertification.
Each person certified as an instructor shall complete

recertification training within each 36-month period of
initial certification date,

§ 7.7. Compulsory minimum entry level raining by
category.
Total hours do nof include time for examinations,

practical exercises and range qualification. Refer to § 7.9
for the minimum training requirements for each category.

Unarmed security officer — 16 hours
Armed security officer/courier — 24 hours
Armored car personnel — 20 hours
Guard dog handler - 28 hours
Private investigator — 60 hours
Personal protection specialist — 68 hours
Unarmed alarm respondent — 16 hours
Armed alarm respondent — 24 hours
Cent}‘al station dispatcher — 8 hours

. Electronic security sales representative — 8 hours
Electronic security technician — 14 hours
Compliance agent — 6 hours

§ 7.8. Compulsery minimum in-service training by category.
Total hours do not include time for examinations.

Refer to § 7.10 for the minimum in-service i{raining
reguirements for each category.

Unarmed security officer —~ 4 hours
Armed security officer/courier — 4 hours
Armored car personnel - 4 hours
Guard dog handler — 8 hours
Private investigator — 8 hours
Personal protection specialist — 16 hours
Unarmed alarm respondeni — 4 hours
'Armed alarm respondent — 4 hours
Central station dispatcher — 4 hours
Electronic security sales representative — 4 hours
Elecfronic security technician — 12 hours
Compliance agent — 4 hours

§ 7.9. Minimum entry level fraining requirements.

A. The entry level curriculum for unarmed security
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officer, armed security officer/courier, and guard dog
handier , unarmed alarm respondent and armed alarm
respondent sets forth the following areas identified as:
Core SUDIECES ... .iii i i Hours
Administration and security orientation/regulations . 4
Legal authority and arrest authority ................. 4
Emergency and defensive procedures ............... 8
Written examination
Total hours (excluding exam) ..................oo.. 16
B. Armed security officer/courier. .................... 16
In addition to the successful completion of the core
subjects curriculum (§ 7.9 A), each armed security
officer/courier must also comply with firearms training
requirements. (Firearms certification is required for all
private security services business personnel prior to
carrying or having immediate access io a firearm in the

performance of duty.)

1. Handgun classroom training (refer to ¢ 9.2) -~ 8
hours

2. Shotgun classroom instruction, if applicable (refer to
§ 9.3) — 1 hoewr 2 hours

3. Written firearms examination
4. Range qualification. No minimum hours required
{refer to § 9.3). Each person who carries or has
immediate access to firearms in the performance of
duty shall qualily with each type and ealibre caliber
of firearm to which he has access.
Total hours (excluding examination, shotgun)
classroom instruction and range qualification — 24
heurs

C. Armored car personnel.
1. Armored car orientation/state regulations — 3 ‘hours
2. Armored car procedures — 9 hours
3. Wriilen examination

4, Firearms training (§ 7.9 B) - 8 hours

Total hours ({excluding examinations and range
qualification) — 20 hours

D. Guard dog handler.

In additbon te the suecesstul completion of the core

must alse comply with the following requirements:
Baste obedienee retrataing — § heurs
Canine patrel teehnigues ~ 6 hours
Total hours (exeluding expminations) — 28 hours

1. Prerequisites for guard dog handler entry-level
(official documentation required):

a, Swuecessful completion of the core subjects
curriculum (§ 7.9 A) — 16 hours

b. Successful completion of basic obedience training
2. Following successful completion of the above
prerequisites, each guard dog hkandler must also
comply with the following reguirements:

a. Demonstration of proficiency. The student must

demonstrate his proficiency in the handling of a

security canine fo satisly the minimum standards —

2 hours

Evaluation by a certified private security guard dog
handler instructor

Basic obedience refraining

b. Guard dog handler crientation/legal authorily — 4
hours

¢. Canine patrol fechnigues — 6 hours
d. Written examination
Total hours (excluding examinations) — 28 hours
E. Private investigator.
1. Investigator orientation/regulations — 8 hours
2. Collecting and reporting information — 6 hours
3. General investigative techniques - 20 hours
4. Interviewing techniques — 8 hours

5. Criminal law, procedure and rules of evidence — 8
hours

6. Civil law, procedure and rules of evidence — 10
hours

Colecting and reporting informatien — 6 hours

7. Written comprehensive examination
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8. Three practical field exercises

Total hours in classroom (excluding written
examination and practical exercises) — 60 hours

F. Personal protection specialist.

Each personal protection specialist student must also
comply with the following requirements:

1. Personal protection orieniation — 4 hours

2. Assessment of threaf and protectee vulnerability — 8
hours

3. Legal authority and issues — 16 hours
4. Protective detail operations — 28 hours
5. Emergency procedures — 12 hours
a. Emergency first aid / CPR (8 hours)
b. Defensive preparedness
c. Emergency relocation
6. Written examination
Total hours (excluding examination) — 68 hours

G. Unarmed alarm respondent.

Each unarmed alarm respondent student must
successfully compiete the core subjects curriculum (§ 7.9
A). — 16 hours

H. Armed alarm respondent.

In addition fo the successful completion of the core
subjects curriculum (§ 7.9 A), each armed alarm
respondent must also comply with firearms (raining
requirements. Firearms certification is required for all
private security services business personnel prior to
carrying or having immediate access to a firearm in the

performance of duly.

1. Handgun classroom instruction (refer to § 9.2 B) —
& hours

2. Shoigun classroom instruction (if applicable) (refer
to § 9.3 C) = 2 hours

3. Written firearms examination

4. Range qualification. No minimum hours required.
Each person who carries or has immediate access fo
firearms in the performance of dufy shall qualify with
each type and caliber of firearm to which he has
access.

Total hours (excluding examination, shotgun classroom
instruction, and qualification on the range) — 24 hours

I Central station dispatcher.
1. Electronic security subjects — 4 hours
2. Central station dispatcher subjects — 4 hours
a. Duties and responsibilities
b. Communications skills
¢. Emergency procedures
d. False alarm prevention
Total hours — 8 hours
J. Electronic security sales representative.

1. Electronic security subjects (refer to § 79 I) ~ 4
hours

2. Electronic security sales representative subjects — 4
hours

a. Duties and responsibilities
b. System design/componen!s
¢. False alarm prevention
Total hours — 8 hours
K. Electronic security technician.

Each electronic security technician sfudent must also
comply with the following requirements:

1. Electronic security subjects (refer to § 7.9 I) — 4
hours

2. Electronic security technician subjects — 10 hours
a. Duties and responsibilities

b. Electronics

]

Control panels

d. Protection devices and application
e. Test equipment

f. Power and grounding

8. National electrical code

=3

. Job safety
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I. False alarm management
Total hours — 14 hours
E- L. Compliance agent.

1. Industry overview and responsibilities: regulations
review, husiness practices, ethical standards, records
-requirements and other related issues — 6 hours

2. Written examination
Total hours {(excluding written examination) — 6 hours
&- M. Firearms fraining.

Firearms certification is required for all private security
services business personnet prior to carrying or having
immediate access to a firearm in the performance of duty.
Firearms training must be completed within 12 months
immediately preceding submission of an application.
Firearms training completed longer than 12 months prior
to application shall not be valid.

1. Handgun classroom training (refer to § 9.2) — 8
hours

2. Shotgun classroom instruction, if applicable (refer to
§ 9.3) = 1 Bour 2 hours

3. Written firearms examination (refer to § 9.3).

4. Range qualification. No minimum hours required.
Each persom who carries or has immediate access to
firearms in the performance of duty shall qualify with
each type and ealibre caliber of firearm to which he
has access.

Total hours do not include examination shotgun
classroom instruction or range qualification — 8 hours

N. Personal protection specialist advanced firearms
training.

In addition to the successful completion of the personal
protection specialist entry-level curriculum ( § 7.9 F), each
armed personal protection specialist student must also
comply with the following:

1. Prereguisite for personal
advanced firearms training:

protection  specialist

{official documentation regquired)

Successful completion of handgun classroom Instruction
(refer to § 9.2 B) — 8 hours

2. Personal protection specialist advanced firearms
training — 24 hours

a. Weapon selection and nomenclature

b. Safety and functioning
¢. Fundamentals of marksmanship

d. Decision making for the personal profection
specialist

e. Firearms skill development

f. Virginia private security modified course of fire
for handguns

g Personal protection specialist advanced firearms
course of fire

h. Written examination

Each private security emplovee who carries or has
immediate access to firearms in the performance of
duty shall qualify with each fype and caliber of
firearm to which he has access.

Total hours (excluding writfen examination) - 32
hours
§ 7.10. Compulsery minimum in-service
requirements.

training

A. Unarmed security officer/armed security
officer/courier /unarmed alarm respondent/armed alarm
respondent .

Legal authority/regulations review — 2 hours
Job related training — 2 hours
Total — 4 hours

B. Armored car personnel.

Statutory authorization/ stete regulations review — 2
hours

Armored car procedures — 2 hours
Total — 4 hours
C. Guard dog handler.
Basic obedience evaluation and refraining — 2 hours
Legal authority/regulations review — 2 hours
Job related training — 2 hours
Baste obedience retraining — 2 howrs
Canine patrol techniques — 2 hours

Total — 8 hours
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D. Private investigator.

Legal authority/issues (civil and criminal}/regulations
review — 4 hours

Investigative procedures — 4 hours
Total — 8 hours
E. Personal protection specialist — 16 hours
F. Central station dispatcher — 4 hours
G. Electronic security sales representative — 4 hours
H. Electronic security technician — 12 hours
E: L Compliance agent.

Industry overview and responsibilities, regulations
review, business practices, ethical standards, records
requirements, and other related issues — 4 hours

§ 7.11. Firearms retraining.

A. All armed private security services business personnel
must satisfactorily complete two hours of firearms
classroom retraining, range training, and requalify as
prescribed in §§ 9.2 B and 9.3, if applicable, within each
eatendar year during each 12 months of registration
Certified schools providing firearms retraining must meet
the requirements of Part VIII of these regulations.

B. Each armed registrant who has complied with the
initial firearms training requirement shail comply annually
with firearms retraining prier to within the l2-month
period preceding the expiration date of his registration,
Firearms {training completed longer than 12 months prior
to the expiration dale of his registration is not valid.

€ Firearms thandsun and shotgun) classrooft retFRining
~ 2 hours

C. Firearms classroom retraining.
Handgun classroom retraining — 2 hours
Shotgun classroom retraining — 1 hour

Range qualification (no minimum hewr Rours

required).

Total hours (excluding range qualification and shoigun
classroom (raining ) — 2 hours

§ 7.12. Perspnal protection specialist advanced firearms
retraining — 8 hours

A, Each armed personal protection specialist registrant
must satisfactorily complete eight hours of personal
protection specialist advanced firearms classroom training,

Certified
meet  the

range traiming, and requalify, if applicable.
schools providing [firearms retraining must
requirements of Part VIHI of these regulations.

B. Each armed personal protection specialist registrant
who has complied with the initial personal protection
specialist advanced firearms training requirement, shall
comply annually with firearms retraining within the
I12-month period preceding ihe expiration date of his
registration. Firearms ftraining completed longer than 12
months prior ¢ the expiration date of his registration is
not valid.

& 7.13. Guard dog handler basic obedience evaluation and
retraining -- 2 hours

Each guard dog handler regisirant shall comply annually
with the requirement for basic obedience evaluation and
retraining.

§ FH2- 7.14. Instructor recertification training .

A. Regulations review, legal issues, ethical standards,
records requirements and other related topics — 3 2 hours

B. Techniques of instruction delivery - & 6 hours
Including practical exercises.
Total hours (excluding testing) — 8 hours

PART VIIL
PRIVATE SECURITY SERVICES TRAINING SCHOOLS.

Arficle 1.
School Certification.

§ 8.1 teation for eertifieation: fee: Inifial requirements
for the certification of a privaie security services training
school.

In accordance with ¢ 8-182 of the Code of Virginia, the
department may certify fthose schools which on the basis
of curricula, Instrucfors and facilities, provide training
which meets the compulsorv minimum training standards.
Each person seeking to establish & ecertified certify a
private security services (raining school shall file an
application, provided by the department, which shal be
accompanied by a nonrefundable fee of $500. The
department may certify sueh schools for & peried not to
execed 12 mentks: Fach principal of the business entity
applying for certificalion as a private security services
training school must be listed on the application and is
responsible for the school's adherence to the Code of
Virginia and these regulations. Each person listed on the
application shall complete a supplemental fingerprint
processing application and submit his fingerprints on one
completed set of twe fingerprint cards along with a
nonrefundable fee of §4I; however, a maximum of iwo
sets of fingerprint cards may accompany the application af
no additional cost. Certjfications shall be issued for a
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period not fo exceed 12 months. All forms shall be
completed in full compliance with the instructions provided
by the department. Applicants shall meet or exceed all of
the requirements contained in this part prior to the
Issuance of a training school certification:

§ 8.2. Cerfification requirements; designation of school
director; school director duties and responsibilities;
retention and replacement of school director.

A. Each person seeking to establish a certified private
security services training school shall designate a school
director. The school director shall be an individual, who is
not designated as school director for any other certified
private security services training school, and shall meet

the fellowing requirements: possess curreni certification as
a private security instructor.

}—Pessesse&ffeﬁteeﬁrﬁeaﬁeﬁasapfw&tesee&my
instructor: and

B. The certified school director shall at all times compiy
with the following:

1. Ensure thai the certified training school is in full
compliance with the Code of Virginia and these
regulations;

2, Ensure that all appliestions for sessien approval
sessions conducted meet the requirements for
mandated training;

3. Ensure that all instructors of the cerfified training
school have been certified by the department as
private security instrucfors and instruct in accordance
with the eurrent Code of Virginia and these
regulations;

4, Ensure that all training completion rosters are filed
with the department within seven business days of the
training completion date;

4 5. Ensure the maintenance of training, empldyment
and payroll records which document compliance with
the Code of Virginia and these regulations.

C. 1. Each certified training school shall maintain an
individual as school director who has met the
requirements of these regulations and has been certified
by the department.

2. Each training school shall notify the department in
writing within 10 calendar days of the termination of
employment of a certified school director.

3. Within 90 days of termination of the school’s
certified director, the school shall submit, on a form

provided by the department, the name of a new
school director who has met the requirements of these
regulations,

Tie department; in nccordanee with § 5182 of the Code
of Virginia, may ecertfy these sehosls; which on the basis
ﬁmma&di&eﬂm&smm&g%&&t

§ 8.3. Basis for denial of certification.

A. The department may deny certification to a school in
which any (fraining director or principal has been
convicted in any jurisdiction of any felony or of a
misdemeanor involving moral furpitude, sexual offense,
drug offense, physical injury or property damage. Any plea
of nolo contendere shaill be considered a conviction for the
purposes of these regulations. The record of a coaviction,
authenticated in such form as to be admissible in evidence
under the laws of the jurisdiction where convicted, shall
be admissible as prima facie evidence of such convictipn.

B. The department may deny certification to a school in
which any training director or principal has not
maintained good standing in every jurisdiction where
licensed, registered or certified, or has had his license,
registration, or certification denied upon initial application,
suspended, revoked, surrendered, not renewed, or
otherwise disciplined In connection with a disciplinary
action prior to applying for certification in Virginia.

§ 8.4. Physical address required.

FEach person applying to become a certified private
security services ftraining school shall provide the
department with its physical address in Virginia at which
records required to be maintained by the Code of Virginia
and these regulations are kept and available for inspection
by the department. A post office box is not considered a
physical address.

§ 8.5. Authority to inspect.

Each certified f{raining school shall permit the
depariment to inspect, review and copy those firaining,

employment and payroll records which document
compliance with the Code of Virginia and these
regulations.

& 8.6. Display of certificate.

The private security services fraining school certificate
shall be prominently displayed for public inspection at all
times.

§ 8.1 Change of ownership or entity.
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A, Each certified training school shall report in wrifing
to the department any change in its ownership or
principals which does not result in the creation of a new
legal entity. Such written report shall be received by the
departiment within 30 days after the occurrence of such
change.

B. A new iraining school certification is required
whenever there is any change in the ownership or manner
of organization of the certified training school entity which
results in the creation of a new legal entity.

§ 8.8. Change of name or address.

Each training school shall upon application, and at all
times, keep the department informed of its physical
address, and shall report in writing to the department any
change in its name or physical address no later tham 15
days after the effective date of that change. Name change
reports shall be accompanied by certified true copies of
the documents which estabiish the name change. A post
office box is not a physical address,

§ 8.9. Transfer of certification prohibited.

Fach training school certification shall be issued to the
legal business entity named on the application, whether it
be a sole proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or other
legal entity, and shall be valid only for the legal entity
named on the certification. No certification shall be
assigned or otherwise fransferred to another legai entity,

§ 8.10. School expiration, renewal, reinstalement.

A, The department will mail a renewal application to
the last known address of the certified school director.

Failure of the certified school director to renew
certification prior to the expiration date of the
certification shall not be the responsibility of the
departiment.

B. A privaie security training school not renewed on or
before the expiration date of the certification shall become
null and void. Operating a training school without valid
certification is a violation of the Code of Virginia and
these regulations.

C, Al certifications granted to private securify services
training schools shall he valid for a period not to exceed
12 months.

D. Applications for renewal must be received 30 days
prior to expiraticn. School renewal applications received
by the department after the expiration date shall be
subject to all applicable nonrefundable repewal fees plus
nonrefundable reinstatement fees.

1. The department may renew the certification of a
training school for a period not to exceed 12 months
when the following are received by the department:

a. A properly completed renewal application; and
b. A nonrefundable renewal fee of $250.

2. The certified school director and each certified
instructor listed on the school renewal application
must have satisfactorily complete¢ all applicable
fngtructor iraining requirements.

3. Each certified director, prircipal or certified
instructor listed on the school remewal application
ghall be in good standing and free of disciplinary
action in every jurisdiction where licensed or certified.

E. 1. A renewal application received by the department
within 180 days following the expiration date ghall be
accompanied by a nonrefundable renewal fee of $250 and
nonrefundable reinstatement fee of $125.

2. No fraining school shall be renewed or reinstated
when the remewal application and fee are received by
the department after 180 days following the expiration
date of the approval. After that date, the applicant
shall meet then current initial school certification
requirements.

3, The date on which the application and fee are
received by ihe departmeni shall determine whether
the applicant is eligible for renewal or reinstatement
or is required to apply for initial certification as a
private security fraining school.

§ 8.11. Exemptions.

The department may grant a temporary exemption from
the requirement for certification of a training school for a
period of not more than 30 days in a situation deemed an
emergency by the department.

§ 633 8.12. Suspension and revocation.

The certified private security services training school
director and the certified iraining school shall be subject
to disciplinary action for violations or noncompliance with
the Code of Virginia or these regulations. Disciplinary
action shall be In accordance with procedures prescribed
by the Administrative Process Act. The disciplinary action
may include, but is not limited to, a letter of censure,
fine, suspension, or revocation of the school's certification
status or his certification as school director.

Article 2.
Instractor Certification,

erizndinal  Bistesy  records seoreh: denind oF renewnd of
§ 813 Instructor qualifications.

A. Instructors desiring to instruct in a certified training
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school shall submit an application for instructer
certification, The applicant must provide documentation of
previous work experience, instructor experience, training
and education for those subjects in which certification is
requested. The department will evaluate qualifications
hased upon the justification provided. In addition, all
instructor applicants shail meet the following requirements
and provide documentation thereof:

1. Have a minimum of three years managemeni or
supervisory experience with a private security services
business or with any federal, military police, state,
county or municipal law-enforcement agency, or in a
related field; or have a minimum of one vyear
experience as an instructor or teacher at an
accrediled educational institution or agency in the
subject matter for which certification is requested, or
in a related field;

2. Have a high school diploma or equivalent (GED);

2~ 3. Successful completion of an instructor
development program, within the three years
immediately preceding the date of the application, that
meefs or exceeds standards established by the
department; or successiul completion of an instructor
development program longer than three years prior to
the date of application, and has provided instruction
during the three years immediately preceding, or has
provided instruction in a related field at an institution
of higher learning;

¥ 4. Submit his fingerprinis on one set of two
completed fingerprint cards on forms provided by the
department; and

4 5 Submit a properly completed instructor
application and a nonrefundable application fee of $91,

B. In addition to the instructor qualification
requirements described in subsection A of this section,
each firearms imstruetors Instructor must have completed a
firearms instructors school specifically designed for
law-enforcement or private security personnel. Each
firearms instructor candidate must provide documentation
of range qualification with:

1. A revolver;
2. A semi-automatic handgun; and
3. A shotgun.

The sehesl firearms instructor training must have been
completed within the three years immediately preceding
the date of the instructor application; or in the event that
the school completion occurred prior to three years, the
applicant shall have provided firearms instruction during
the three years immediately preceding.

C. In addition fo the requirements of subsection A of

this section, each candidate for certification as a guard
dog handler instructor, personal protection specialist
instructor, and elecironic security instructor shall submit to
the department official documentation of qualifications in
each specified area.

& ¢ 8.14, Criminal history records search.

Upon receipi of an initial application for instructor
certification, the department shall submit the fingerprints
of the applicant to the Virginia State Police for the
purpose of conducting a Virginia Criminal History Records
search and a national criminal records search to
determine whether the applicant has a record of
conviction. Applicants submitting unclassifiabie fingerprint
cards shall he required to submit their fingerprinfs on new
fingerprint cards along with a nonrefundable fee of $41.
However, no such fee shall be required if the rejected
fingerprint cards are included and attached to the new
fingerprint cards when resubmitied.

B: § 8.15. Denial of instructor certification.

A. The department may deny certification to an
instructor who has been convicted in any jurisdiction of
any felony or of a misdemeanor involving moral {furpitude,
sexual offense, drug offense, physical injury or property
damage. Any plea of nolo contendere shall be considered
a conviction for the purposes of these regulations. The
record of a conviction, authenticated in such form as to
be admissible in evidence under the laws of the
jurisdiction where convicted, shall be admissible as prima
facie evidence of such conviction.

B. The department may deny certification to any
instructor who has not maintained good standing in every
jurisdiction where licensed or regisiered or has had his
license or registration denied upen initial application,
suspended, revoked, surrendered, not renewed, or
otherwise disciplined in connection with a disciplinary
action prior to applying for certification in Virginia.

E. The department may renew the cerfifiention of an
instructor for & period not o execed 12 months when the
{fellowing are reeccived by the deparbment:

+ A properly completed renewsl appheation;

2- Decumentation of satisfactery compleHen of
3 & nonrefundable renewal fee of 36
§ 8.16. Exemptions.

The department may grant a temporary exemption from
the requirement for certification for a period of not more
than 30 days in a situation deemed an emergency by the
department,

§ 8.17. Probation, suspension, and revocation.
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The certified private security services instructor shall be
subject to disciplinary action for violation or
noncompliance with the Code of Virginia and (these
regulations. Disciplinary action shall be in accordance with
the Administrative Process Act (§ 9-6.14:1 et seq. of the
Code of Virginia)., The disciplinary action may include, but
is not limifed to, a letter of censure, fine, probation,
suspension or revecation of his cerfification as an
instructor.

¥ § 818. Renewal of instructor certification.

A. The department may deny renewal of instructor
certification for the same reason as it may refuse initial
certification or discipline an instructor.

& B. Instructors certified to teach mandatory training
classes, except firearms training, may receive credit for
hours towards in-service f(raining requirements for ciasses
in which they provide instruction, upon submission of
proper documentation and department approval.

B € Each person certified as a private security
instructor shall complete the instructor recertification
requirements by December 31 of the third calendar year
follewing initial certification and every third calendar year
thereafter.

All private security instructors certified prior to June 30,
1994, must comply with this requirement by December 31,
1997.

§ 8.18. Certification expiration, renewal, reinstatement.

A, The department will mail to the last known address
of the instrucfor a renewal nofification. Failure of the
instructor to renew prior to the expiration of the
certification shall he the sole responsibilify of the
instructor.

A private security services Instructor certification not
repewed on or before the expiration date shall become
null and void. Operating as a private security services
instructor without a valid private security services
instructor certification is a violation of fhe Code of
Virginia and these regulations.

B. All certifications issued te private security services
instructor shaill be valid for a period not to exceed 12
months.

C. 1. Applications for instructor certification must be
received by the department ab least 30 days prior fo
expiration. Renewal applications received by the
department after the expiration date shall be subject to all
applicable nonrefundable renewal fees plus reinstatement
fees.

2. The department may renew the instructor
certification for a period not fo exceed 12 months
from the expiration date of the certification when the

following are received by the department:
a. A properly completed renewal application;
b. A nonrefundable renewal fee of $1, and

¢. Documeniation that the applicanf has mel lhe
applicable recertification training standards.

3. Each insfructor must have salisfactorily completed
all applicable training requiremenis.

4. Fach instructor shall be in good standing and free
of disciplinary action in every jurisdiction where
licensed, registered or certified.

5. A renewal application received by the depariment
within 180 days following the expiration date of the
certification shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable
renewal fee of $10 and a nonrefundable reinstatement
fee of §5.00.

6. No instructor certification shall be renewed or
reinstated when the application and fee are received
by the depariment more than 150 days following the
expiration date of the certification. After that date, the
applicant shall meet all initial instructor certification
requirements,

7. The department may deny renewal or reinstatement
of an instructor for the same reason as if may refuse
initial certification or discipiine a licensee.

PART IX.
FIREARMS TRAINING.

§ 9.1. Firearms training requirements.

A. Privaie security services business personnel who
apply for armed registration shall be required to meet the
provisions of § 9.2 and, if applicable, § 9.3.

B. Every student must qualify with each type and
ealibre caliber of firearm he will have access t¢ while on
duty.

§ 9.2. Handgun training.

A. The eight hours of classroom training will emphasize
but not be limited to:

1. The proper care of the weapon;

2. Civil liability of the use of firearms;

3. Criminal liability of the use of firearms;
4. Weapons retention;

4 5. Deadly force;
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5 6. Justifiable deadly force;

& 7. Range safety;

Z. 8. Practical firearms handling; and
& 9. Principles of marksmanship;

B. No minimum hours are required for range
qualification. The purpose of the range qualification course
is to provide practical firearms training to individuals
desiring to become armed private security services
business personnel.

1. Prior to the date of range training, it will be the
responsibility of the school director to ensure that all
students are informed of the proper aittire and
equipment to be worn for the firing range portion of
the training.

2. Ammunition - 60 rounds - factory loaded
semi-wadcutter or duty ammunition may be used for
practice or range qualification or both.

3. Target - Silhouetie ( M-8, Transitional Target 2,
full-size B2l, B21x or B-27) - Alternate targets may be
utilized with prior approval by the department.

4. With prior approval of the deparfment, a reasonable
modification of the firearms course may be approved
to accommodate qualification on indoor ranges.

5. An approved firearms instructor must be on the
range during all phases of firearms training. There
shall be one firearms instructor er assistant per four
shooters on the line.

6. Directional draw holsters only.
7. Scoring:

a. M-8, Transitional Target 2, B21, B2ix, B27 target -
(use indicated K-value) 89,10 X rings - value 5
points, 7 ring-value 4 points, other hits on silhouette
- value 3 points: divide points scored by maximum
possible score to obtain decimal and convert tfo
percentage, e.g. , 225 = 300 = 75 = 75%,.

b.  targets - any fired round striking the hotile
area to include its marked border - value 5 points -
any fired round striking outside the bottle area -
value 3 poinis.

8. Course: Modified Course for Handguns.
Target — Sithouette (B21, B21X, B27) — 60 rounds

Double action, except for singie action
semi-automatic weapons.

Minimum qualifying score - 75%

Phase 1 — 3 vyards, point shouilder position, 18
rounds:

Load 6 rounds and holster loaded Weapon.

On command, draw and fire 2 rounds (3 seconds)
repeat.

Load 6 rounds and holster loaded weapon.

On command, draw and fire 6 rounds with strong
hand.

Untoad, reload 6 rounds and fire 6 rounds with
weak hand (25 seconds).

Phase 2 - 7 yards, point shoulder position, 24
rounds:

Load 6 rounds and holster loaded weapon.

On command, draw and fire 1 round (2 seconds),
repeat.

Load 6 rounds and holster loaded weapon.

On command, draw and fire 2 rounds (3 seconds),
repeat.

Load 6 rounds and holster loaded weapon.

On command, draw and fire 6 rounds, reload 6
rounds, fire 6 rounds (30 seconds).

Phase 3 — 15 vards, 70 seconds, 18 rounds:
Load 6 rounds and holster loaded weapon.

On command, assume kneeling position, draw and fire
6 rounds with strong hand.

Assume standing position, unload, reload and fire 6
rounds from weak hand barricade position.

Unload, reload and fire 6 rounds from strong hand
barricade position (70 seconds).

(Kneeling position may be fired using barricade
position.)

§ 9.3. Shotgun training.

A. The ene heour two hours of classroom instruction will

emphasize but not be limited to:

1. Safe and proper use and handling of shotgun;
2. Nomenclature; and

3. Positions and combat loading techniques.
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B. No minimum hours required for range firing. The
purpose of the range firing course is to provide practical
shotgun training to those individuals who carry or have
immediate access to a shotgun in the performance of their
duties.

C. Ammunition must be of same type as carried in the
performance of duty. Five rounds.

D. Scoring - 70% of available pellets must be within

silhouette.

E. Course: Modified Shotgun Range

No.
Distance Position Rounds Target Time
Combat 15 Yds. Standing/ 3 B-27 Sil- 20 sec.
load & fire Shoulder houette
Combat 25 Yds. Kneeling/ 2 B-27 Sil- 15 sec.
load & fire Shoulder houette

F. A certified firearms instructor must be on the range
during all phases of firearms range training. There shall
be one certified firearms instructor er assistant per four
shooters on the line.

§ 9.4. Firearms retraining.

A, All armed private security services business personnel
must satisfactorily complete two hours of firearms
classroom (raining, range f{raining, and requalify as
prescribed in & 92 and 83 § 9.2 B for handgun, and one
hour of classroom training, range training, and requalify
with the sholgun as prescribed m § 9.3, il applicable,

within eaeh caolendar year the I[Z-month period
immediately preceding the expiration date of his
registration .

B. Approved schools providing firearms retraining must
meet the requirements of Part VIII of these regulations,

B—E&e&ameéfegﬁtm-ﬂ{whehaseemphedw&hme

PART X.
CERTIFIED PRIVATE SECURITY SERVICES
TRAINING SCHOOLS ATTENDANCE AND
ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS.

Article 1.
Attendance and Administrative Requirements.

§ 10.1. Attendance.
The compulsory minimum training standards for initial

and inservice iraining shall be met by attending and
satisfactorily complefing an approved private security

services training session,

1. Private security services business personnel enrolled
in an approved f{raining session are required to be
present for the entire period of each training class.

2. Tardiness and absenteeism will not be permitted.
Individuals violating these provisions will be required
{0 make up any training missed.

3. Fach individual atiending an approved training
session shall comply with the regulations promulgated
by the board and any other rules within the authority
of the certified school director. The certified school
director shall be responsible for enforcement of all
rules established to govern the conduct of students. If
the certified school director considers a viclation of
the rules detrimental to the welfare of the students,
the certified school director may expel the individual
from the school. Notification of such action shall
immediately be reporied to the employing firms and
the department.

§ 10.2. Administrative requirements.

A. Each certified school director will be required to
maintain a current file of approved sessions; atiendance
records, examination scores, firearms qualification scores,
training completion rosters, and training completion forms
for each student for three years from the date of the
training session in which the individual student was
enrolied.

B. Students shall be under the supervision of a certified

private security instructor during all  classes and
examinations.
B: . Instruction shall be provided in no less than

50-minute classes.

€ D Classroom and range training may not exceed
eight hours per day. (This dees not include time allotted
for testing, lunch and breaks.)

B- £ Mandated training conducted without prier
approvel from the department nol n accordance with the
Code of Virginia and these regulations is null and void.

F. Failure to file and maintain required forms and
documentation may result in the imposition of sanctions
on the training school and its training director.

E. . Certified training schools will be subject to
ingpection and review by department staff. Certified
training schools which conduct training sessions not located
within Virginia may be required to pay the expenses of
ingpection and review.

Article 2.
Approved Training School Operation.
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§ 16.3. Training session schedules .

Prier te econducting any mendated privale seeurity
joes traiRing, } irainine scheols Shall submit to
the department & propesed iraining sehedule on a form
provided by or approved by the department to be received
by the depertment 8o less than 10 days prier to the
beginning of each training session:

1 Each propesed iraining sSessien Schedwde shall be
aceompanied by & nonrrefundable fee: The fee for
each type of training session is set forth below:

b. Firearms training $10

e Armored ear subjeets $10
& Canire handler subjeets $15
e Private investigator $25

& Inserviee training $40

date; Hime; loeation; subjeet and asme of the approved
instructor for epeh elass te be conducied dusing the

4 Any changes in anR approved troining sessier shal
be reported te the deparitment immediately: Written
netifieation shell be reeeived by the department within
seven business days: An appreved {raining sessisn shel
be conducted as scheduled:

4 The A session eurrewlum,; a5 appreved by the
deparbment; must be adhered to and al subjeet malter
st be presented in s entireby: The compulsery training
standards eonstitute the wminhmum reguirements; braining
adhere to the mimimum compulsory tramning standards
and must be presenied in s entirely. Training directors
may require additional hours of instruction, testing or
evaluation procedures.

§ 10.4. Examination and testing.

A. A written examination shall be administered at the
conclusion of each entry level f{raining session. The
examination shall include at least three gquestions for each
50 minutes of instruction of a mandated subject. The
student must attain a minimum grade of 709 to
satisfactorily complete the training session.

B. Firearms classroom training shall be separately tested
and graded. Individuals must achieve a minimum score of
709% on the firearms classroom training examination,

C. Failure to achieve a minimum score of 7095 on the

firearms classroom written examination will excilude the
individual from the firearms range training

D. To successiully complete the firearms range iraining,
the individual must achieve a minimum gualification score
of 75% of the scoring value of the farget.

§ 10.5. Training completion forms.

On forms provided by the department, each training
director shall issue an original training completion form to
each student who satisfactorily completes a training
session, no later than seven business days following the
training completion date. A copy shall be retained on file
with the certified training school for a minimum of three
years.

§ 10,6. Training completion roster.

The school director shall submit a privale security
training roster affirming each student’s successful
completion of the session. This form shall be received by
the department within seven business days of the
completion date of an approved training session. One copy
shall be retained on file with the approved training school
for a minimum of three years. The nonrefundable fee for
processing a fraining completion roster is $10 per roster.

§ 10.7. Sanctions.

The private security services training director, traming
school and instructor shall be subject to disciplinary
action for violation or noncompliance with the Code of
Virginia and these regulations. Failure to file the forms
and reports required by the Code of Virginia and these
regulations shall be a busis for sanction. Failure to submit
the training completion roster to the department within
the required seven business dayvs shall be viewed as a
violation by the department.

PART XL
STANDARDS OF PRACTICE AND PROHIBITED ACTS.

Article 1.
Standards of Practice.

& 11.1, Professional services.

In accordance with § 9-182 of the Code of Virginia,
these regulations establish standards designed to secure the
public safety and welfare against incompetent or
unqualified persons engaging in private security services. It
shall be the responsibility of the licensee, and ifs
compliance agents, to provide private security services in
a professional manner, adhering to ethical standards and
sound business practices.

§ 11.2. Documentation required.

A, In the event a complaini against the licensee is
received by the depariment, the compliance agent shall be
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required to furnish documentary evidence of the terms
agreed to between licensee and client, which shall include
at a minimum the scope of services and fees assessed for
such services. This information is necessary for the
department to assess the validity of the complaint,

B. Failure to produce such information may resulf in the
imposition of sanctions as sei ferth in § 13.8 A of these
regulations.

Article 2.
Violations and Prohibited Acts.

& 11.3. Violations.

Each person subject to jurisdiction of these regulations,
who violates any statute or regulation pertaining to private
security services may shc/] be subject to sanctions imposed
by the direetor depariment regardless of criminal
prosecution. The sanctions imposed may include, but shall
not be limited to, a letter of censure, probation,
suspension, revecation, and fine not to exceed $2,508 for
each violation.

§ 11.4. Prohibited acts.

It shall be unlawful for a person to engage in any of
the foilowing acts. Hach of the acts listed below is cause
for disciplinary action:

1. Violating or aiding and abetting others in violating
the provisions of Article 2.1 (§ 9-183.1 et seq.) of
Chapter 27 of Title 9 of the Code of Virginia or thege
regulations.

2. Having committed any act or omission which
resulted in a private security license or registration
being suspended, revoked, not renewed or being
otherwise disciplined in any jurisdiction.

3. Having been coavicted or found guilly, regardless of
adjudication in any jurisdiction of the Uniied States, of
any felony or a misdemeanor involving moral
turpitude, sexual offense, drug offense, physical injury,
or property damage, from which no appeal is pending,
the time for appeal having elapsed. Any plea of nolo
confendere shall bhe considered a conviction for the
purpose of these regulations. The record of conviction
certified or authenticated in such form as to be
admissible in evidence under the laws of the
jurisdiction where convicied shall be prima facie
evidence of such guilt.

4. Failing to inform the department in writing within
30 days of pleading guilly or nolo contendere or being
convicted or found guilty of any felony or of a
misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, sexual offense,
drug offense, physical injury or property damage.

5. Obtaining a license, license renewal, registration,
registration renewal, training ceriification, training

certification renewal, or certification to act as
compliance agent for a licensee, a ftraining school,
school director, or insiructor, through any fraud or
misrepresentation.

6. Failing or refusing to produce (¢ the department,
during regular business hours, for inspection or
copying any document or record in the compliance
agent’s or the licensed firm's possession which is
pertinent to the records required to he kept by the
Code of Virginia or by these regulations.

7. Engaging in conduct which through word, deed, or
appearance suggests that a private securify registrant
or emplovee is a law-enforcement officer or other
governmernt cofficial

% & Failing to inform the department in writing
within 30 days after having been found guilty by any
court or adminisirative body of competent jurisdiction
to have violated the private security services business
statutes or regulations of that jurisdiction, there being
no appeal therefrom or the time for appeal having
elapsed.

& 8. Conducting a private security services business or
acting as a registrant or compliance agent in such a
manner as to endanger the public health, safety and
welfare.

9 /0. Engaging in wrethical, fraudulent or dishonest
conduct.

H9: /. Falsifying, or aiding and abetting others in
falsifying, training records for the purpose of obtaining
a license, registration, unarmed security officer
training certification, or certification as a compliance
agent, training school, scheol director or instructor.

H- /2 Representing as one’s own a license issued to
another private security services business or a
registration issued fo another individual, or
representing oneself as a certified compliance agent of
a licensee, ftraining school, school director or
instructor.

+2- 13 Employing individuals who do not possess a
valld registration issued by the department showing
the registration caiegories required to perform one’s
duties.

33 /4. Utilizing a person as an armed security officer
who has not successfully completed the compulsory
minimum standards for armed security officers or who
does not have a valid firearms certification.

4 15 Performing any unlawful or negligent act
resuliing in loss, injury or death to any person,

¥5: 16 If wearing while on duty ; the law-enforcement
style or military style uniform of a private security
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licensee:

a. Which does not have at least one insignia clearly
identifying the name of the licensed firmn employing
the individual and, except armored car personnel, a
name plate or tape hearing, as a minimum, the
individual’s last name and first and middle initials
attached on the outermost garment, except rainwear
worn only to protect from inclement weather; and

b. Having a patch or other writing containing the
word ‘‘police” or any other words suggesting a
law-enforcement officer, or “officer,” uniess used in
conjunction with the word “security”; or resembling
any uniform patch or insignia of any - duly
constituted law-enforcement agency of this
Commonwealth, its political subdivisions or of the
federal government. This restriction shall not apply
to individuals who are alse duly sworn special police
officers, to the extent that they may display words
which accurately represent that distinction,

Hh- Ysing 17, Utilizing a vehicle ir the corduet of for
a private security services business which uses or
displays a flashing red; blee or amber light not
specifically authorized by the Code of Virginia.

+# 18 WUsing or dispiaying the state seal of Virginia
as a part of any licensed firm’s logo, stationery,
business card, badge, patch, ingignia or other form of
identification or advertisement.

18- 19. Displaying of the uniform, badge or other
ingignia by employees of licensed firms while not on
duty.

+9: 20. During the course of any privale investigation,
providing information obtained by any licensed firm
and its employees to any person other than the client
who employed the licensee to obtain that information,
without the client's prior written consent. Provision of
information in response (o official requesis from
law-enforcement agencies, or from the department,
shall not constitute a violation of these regulations.
Provision of information to law-enforcement agencies
pertinent to criminal activity or t{o planned criminal
activity shall not constitute a violation of these
regulations.

26- 2. The failure of a licensee’s approved
compliance agent to at all times comply with the
following:

a. Ensure that the licensed firm is at all times in
full compliance with the Code of Virginia and these
regulations;

b. Ensure that the documentary evidence concerning
unarmed security officers required by § 9-183.3 D of
the Code of Virginia is maintained;

¢. Ensure that the licensed firm does not utilize or
otherwise employ any person as an unarmed
security officer in excess of 90 days prior i{o the
completion of the compulsory minimum training
standards for unarmed security officer; and

d. Maintain VSP Forms 167, training, employment
and payroll records which document the licensed
firm’s compliance with the Code of Virginia and
these regulations.

2+ 22 Failure of the certified school director or
certified instructor to comply with the following:

a. Conduct training in compliance with the appreved
training  sehedwle compulsory numimum  fraining
standards ;

b. Utilize only certified training instructors;

¢. Provide only accurate and current insiruction and
information to students;

d. Maintain and file with the department all records
required by the Code of Virginia and these
regulations; and

e. Ensure that ihe certified training school ard each
approved sessier are held /s in compliance with the
Code of Virginia and these regulations - ,; or

f. Submut training completion rosters and fees to
the department within seven business days of the
completion of training.

23, Soliciting private security services business
through adverlising, business cards, bidding on
contracts, or other means without having first
obtained a private securily services business license.

24, Failing to carry the private security photo
identification card at all times while on duty.

25, Failure of an individual lo present his private
security registration photo identification card while on
duty in response to the request of a law-enforcement
officer, department personnel or client. This shall not
apply to armored car personnel or personal profection
specialists.

PART XIL
AUTHORITY OF THE DEPARTMENT.

§ 12.1. Authority of the director.

A. In addition to the authority conferred by law, the
director and his appointed agents are vested with the
authority to administer oaths or affirmations for the
purpose of receiving complaints and conducting
investigations of violations of these regulations. The
director, or agents appointed by him, shall be sworn to
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enforce the statutes and regulations pertaining tc private
security services businesses and private security services
business personnel and shall have the authority to serve
and execute any warrant, paper or process issued by any
court or magistrate within jurisdiction of the department.

B. Further, in addition to the authority granted in §
9-6.14:13 of the Code of Virginia to issue subpoenas, the
director, or a designated subordinate, shall have the right
to make an ex parte application fo the eircuit court for
the city or county wherein evidence sought is kept or
wherein a licensee does business for the issuance of a
subpoena duces tecum in furtherance of the investigation
of a sworn complaint within the jurisdiction of the
department.

C. The department may conduct hearings and issue
cease and desist orders to persons who engage in activities
prohibited by these regulations but do not hold a valid
license, certificate or registration. Any person in violation
of a cease and desist order entered by the department
shall be subject to all of the remedies provided by law
and, in addition, shall be subject to a civil penalty payable
to the party injured by the viclation.

D. The director may summarily suspend a license under
these regulations without a hearing, simultaneously with
the filing of a formal complaint and notice for a hearing,
if the director finds that the continued operations of the
licensee or registrant would constituie a life-threatening
situation, or has resulted in personal injury or loss to the
public or to a consumer, or which may result in imminent
harm, personal injury or loss.

PART XIII
ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW.

$ 13.1. Authority.

Pursuant to the authority conferred in § 8-182 B 6 of
the Code of Virginia and in accoerdance with the
procedures set forth by the Administrative Process Act and
the procedures prescribed herein, the depariment is
empowered to receive, review, invesiigate and adjudicate
complainis concerning the conduct of any person whose
activities are regulated by the board. The board will hear
and act upon appeals arising from decisions made by the

director. In all case decisions, the Criminal Justice
Services Board shall be the final agency auihority.
§ 132, Complainis; complaint requiremenis; source of

complaint; telephonic complaint.
A. Complaint requirements:
1. May be oral or in writing; and

2. Must allege a viclation of the law or these
regulations relating to private security services.

B. Any aggrieved or interested person may file a

complaint against any individual, persen, firm or licensed
firm, school or certified school whose conduct and
activities are regulated by the board. Additionally, the
department may initiate proceedings to adjudicaie an
alleged violation as a result of ifs own audit, inspection, or
investigation.

C. The department may accept and investigate
telephonic compliaints regarding activities which constitute
a life-threaiening situation, or have resulted in personal
injury or loss to ihe public or toc a consumer, or which
may result in imminent harm or personal injury.

)

§ 13.3. Adjudicaticn of complaints.

Following a preliminary investigative process, the
deparfment may initiate action io resolve the complaint
through an informal fact finding conference or {formal
hearing as established in §§ 13.4 and 13.5 .

§ 13.4. Informal fact finding conference.

A. The purpose of an informal fact finding conference is
te resoive allegations through informal consultation and
negotiation. Informal fact finding conferences shall be
conducted in accordance with § 9-6.14:11 of the Code of
Virginia.

B. The vrespondent, the person against whom the
complaint is filed, may appeal the decision of an informal
fact finding conference and request a formal hearing,
provided that written nofification is given to the
depariment within 30 days of the date the informal fact
finding decision notice was served, or the date it was
mailed to the respondent, whichever occurred first. In the
event the informal fact finding decision was served by
mail, three days shall be added to that period.

¢ 13.5. Formal hearing.

A. Formal hearing proceedings may be initiated in any
case in which the basic laws provide expressiy for a case
decision, or in any case f¢ the exteni the informal fact
finding conference has not been conducted or an appeal
thereto has bheen timely received. Formal hearings shall be
conducted in accordance with § 9-6.14:12 of the
Adrinistrative Preeess Aet Code of Virginia . The findings
and decision of the direcfor resulting from a formal
hearing may be appealed to the board.

B. After a formal hearing pursuant to § 9-6.14:12 of the
Code of Virginia wherein a sanction is impesed fo fine, or
to suspend, revoke or deny issuance or renewal of any
license, registration, certification or approval, the
department may assess ihe holder thereof the cost of
conducting such hearing when the deparimeni has final
autherity to grant such license, registration, certification or
approval, unless the departiment determines {hat the
offense was inadvertent or done in good faith belief that
such act did not violate a statuie or reguiation. The cost
shali be limited to (i) the reasonable hourly rate for the
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hearing officer; and (i) the actual cost of recording the
proceedings. This assessment shall be in addition to any
fine imposed by sanctions.

§ 13.6. Appeals.

The findings and the decision of the director may be
appealed to the board provided that written notification is
given to the attention: Director, Department of Criminal
Justice Services, 805 East Broad Sireet, Richmond, Virginia
23219, within 30 days following the date notification of the
hearing decision was served, or the date it was mailed to
the respondent, whichever occurred first. In the event the
hearing decision is served by mail, three days shall be
added to that period. (Rule 2A:2 of Rules of the Virginia
Supreme Court.)

§ 13.7. Court review; appeal of final agency order.

A, The agency's final administrative decision (final
agency orders) may be appealed. Any person affected by,
and claiming the unlawfulness of the agency’s final case
decision, shall have the right to direct review thereof by
an appropriate and timely court action. Such appeal
actions shall be initiated in the circuit court of jurisdiction
in which the party applying for review resides; save, if
such party is not a resident of Virginia, the venue shall be
in the city of Richmond, Virginia.

B. Notification shall be given to the attention Director,
Department of Criminal Justice Services, 805 East Broad
Street, Richmond, Virginia 23219, in writing within 30 days
of the date notification of the board decision was served,
or the date it was malled to the respondeni, whichever
occurred first. In the event the hoard decision was served
by mail, three days shall be added to that period. (Rule
2A:2 of Rules of the Virginia Supreme Court.)

C. During all judicial proceedings incidental to such
disciplinary action, the sanctions imposed by the board
shall remain in effect, unless the court issues a stay of the
order,

§ 13.8. Disciplinary action; sanctions; publication of record.

A, The department may impose any of the following
gsanctions, singly or in combination, when it finds the
respondent in violation, or in noncompliance, of these
regulations:

1. Letter of reprimand or censure:
2. Probation for any period of time;

2. 3. Suspension of license, registration, certification,
or approval granted, for any period of time;

3 4. Revocation;

4. 5. Refusal to issue, renew or reinstate a license,
registration, certification or approval;

5 6. Fine not to exceed $2,500 per violation.

B. All proceedings pursuant to this section are matters
of public record and shall be preserved. The department
may publish a list of the names and addresses of all
persons, licensees, firms, registrants, training schools,
school directors, compliance agents and licensed firms
whose conduct and activities are subject fo these
regulations and have been sanctioned or denied licensure,
registration, certification or approval.

VA.R. Doc. No, R95-27%; Filed February 1, 1995, 3:49 p.m.
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Commonwealth of Virginia o T
Department of Criminal Justice Services
Privale Security Sertion
P.O. Box 10110, Richmond, VA 23240-9%98 (804) 7864700

Initiaf License Application

Private Security Services Business

Fee: $600 Non-Refundable
ake chacks payable to: Treasurer, Commonwnalth of Virginia

U IWNSTRUCTIONS

: DS USE OMLY -7
1, A Certificale of Insurance on a Form provided by ‘ LA
thg deparimont showing a policy of comprehensive Apphcation Type: _ LA Dete Racarved:
ganaral liability insurancs with a minmum coverags . B .
ol $100,000 and $300.000 (FormP5S BL 7-203). Buainass Licanss Humbar:
2. Applicant shall fis with ths departmen svidencs of Fre Codes: 120

® 425,000 sursly bond, (FormP5S BL 7.393)
Amoumt Applied:

A Tw {2) complate fingerpring cards far the sofs oprieinn

4. Hon-refundzble fee of 5600 Tranzaction Number:
Incampizts appllestion wll bs reluinsd

Purzuant te the Provisions of Aricls 2.1, Chaplar 27 Tile 2. Ceda of Virginiz as amended the below named hately makas
agplication for 2 licensa as g privata securty servicas businass,

1. Business Mame: Fedural ID Number:

Trading &s:

HAMTS Lt WTeCh Aprrbem cuamit B8 buamass

Physical Address:

¥ Sole Propristorship, lis! ownar; SEN:

. H Carporation of Pannership, List Otficars/Direciors/Pariners: £ach parson listed balow shall complste Farm PSS 3L 7-193a '

and submit with this application,

President/DirectorParinar, SEN:
Vica PresidentTireciorPartnar; SSN:
Secratary/Director/Partner, ¥ SSN:
Dirscior/Partnar: 5SH:

Have you or any complianca agent, oificer or partnar ever besn convicted of a falony of misdemeanor? D Yos [:’ Ma

ff yes, affach an explanation providing full detail including charge, dale, placa, law sniorcamaent agency invelved
and disposiiion of each charge,

Are you now or have you ever baen bzensed or ragisiored &s & privale SBCUMty business ot amployes by any cher junsdician?
Yes Eﬁ Ma H yos, wheh jusisdiction?

a5 a licanse ar regisiration issuad 1o you to operate in  Pivate Security Business i Viginia, or ary oirer jusiscicion, ever bean
susparded or ravokad lar any reasen? E} Yas {:] No

¥ yas, anazh an explanatory lanae,

rost & N CHy Canstey [ T
#alling Address:

Buegl b ha coy ety Bz T
Businass Talephone. Cihar Number: )

| If your buslness addresa [s nol in Yirginla yau must lsrLach &0 Irrevocpble Consent for Service form (Form FSS BL T-AQJH

2 Type of Ownership: (Check onai

J Scls Propnator D Partnarship [j Corporation

# Incorparains, plears Fubmit o copy of your Cariificate ot AUThartty from the Virglnle Strwe Comermilon Comminnan,

3. Category of services 1he business will provida, [Check each thar apphas}

(7] Armarad Car Parsonns: [ Jprwstn investigarai®riare Daracivs {7 armes GuardCourers
D Unarmaz Guard L1 Guam Dog Handles
4. Mama ol Comptiance Agert: _ TSN

B AFFIDAVIT -

c hhot: CountyACity of:

The undersigned belng duty gwern, statas that he Is the person who exscuiad this sppllcsiion, 1ha! the statements hareln
contained 27a trua. that he has net supregsed any Informatlan thai might &tfact thils spplication, and that ha has roviewer
gnd understands thiz affldavit.

Subscrived And swom 1o belore me thi

Gga
Sgnanre of Gomoiancs Ageni e 62

of 19

Segmurn el heonry Pt

Tpratire of F nncma; revedr

My Commissmn Expres:

DCJS ACTION TAKEN

| Approved H [z approvad

Aumaraee Sigannes

Date:

suorjenday pasodoid
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA Fomn PSS B 794
Department of Criminal Justice Services
Private Security Section
P.C. Box 10110, Richmond, VA 23740-5958 {804) 7664700
Supplemental Private Security Services
Business License Application
FEE: $41 Non-Refundable
Make checks payable to; Treasurer, Commonwealth of Yirginia
INSTRUCTIONS DC}S USE ONLY j
The following must accompany this application: Application Type: MB_ Dale Received:
1. Two (2) completed DS fingerprint cards and Fee Codes: _113
2. Non-refundable fee of $41.
Amsunt applied:
INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WiLL BE RETURNED.
Transaction Numb
BUSINESS NAME: PHONE: { }
BUSINESS ADDRESS:
et and Sreet Carfiomn ™ F7)
NAME OF INDIVIDUAL: ] SSN:
L Finl L
BIRTH DATE: TELEPHONE: {1 . FAGC( )
PHYSICAL ADDRESS:
CrwTown. e To
MAILING ADDRESS!
Tapfiome sume Is
Have you ever been canvicted of a felony or a misdemeanor in Virginda or any other jurisdiction? Yes No
If yes, attach an explanation.
Are yournuw or have you ever been licensed or registered in Private Security by any other jurisdiction? Yes Mo

If yes, which jurisdictron?

Commonwealth of Virginia B s
Department of Criminal Justice Services
Private Security Section

P.O. Box 10110, Richmond, VA 23240-9998 (804} 7864700

PSS Busineas Licensa @

Certificate of insurance

This certificate Is Issued 23 a matter of Information only and confers no rights upon ths certificate holder. This
cenificate does hot extend of &lter tha coverags aftorded by the policles listed below.

H Agent Informatlon

Nama:

Address;

G Zip:

Phena: (

B Insured information

Licensen:

DBA:

[Corg Ruswis &)

Addrass:

City/State/Zip: Phona: §_____}

Complianca Agant:

# Company Afforging Coverage

Name:

Addrass:

Phona: )

This {a to cesiify thal policiss of insurance listed batow have Saean i#susd 10 the Inaured named sbove and a7 In force et this time
Hotwithatanding any FaGuir wrm or condilion of any coniract or other docuimdant with respect o w thiy tortificats may ba i ssued
oF May pertain, theinsurance al nrd-d by the palicies dercribed harsl subjact ta ul) tha tarma, #aciusions and conaiions of such pokcies,

Mas a ficense or registration issued ta you to operate a Private Security Services Business in Yirginia, or any other jurisdiction, ever
been suspended or revoked for any reason? Yes No
If yes, artach an explanation,

AFFIDAVIT

Commonwealth of: County/City of:

The undersigned being duly sworn, states that he is the person who executed this application, that the statements hetemn contained
are true, that he has not suppressed any information that might alfect this application, and that he has read and understinds this
affidavit.

Subscribed and sworn to belore me [huy day of 19,

S«gnature ol Applicant Signature of Notary Public

wy Commission Expires: _

Typs of Insurarce | Policy humbsr Effactive Poicy ! Uy o _ i Thaarean 57
Dats E Oats |
. [ T —
Ganeral Liabilily I [:f e -
[¥; Comprerensive Farm | o el 30
i } I Coverage

Thia certiticaia 19 svidence of tha above listed ilcansaa’s compilancs with Saction 9-183.5 Cods of Virgnla

Cancellsllon: Should any of the above described policiea ba cancelled batore the kxpranon data therea! 1he Baumg compary wil
«ndeavor to mail 30 days writan notica to the be:ow namad cartficalo howdes, bul laiure 1o Mas LUCH ROICE Shad
imposa no obiganon or #zbidy of any kind upen tha campany.

I NAME AND ADDRESS OF CEATIFIGATE HOLDER Date sausd:

|
Deparimant of Criminal Justics Sarvices }
Private Securnty Section i
P.0. Box 10110 i
| FRechmond, Virgina 23240-9598 I

A thoriT s Repromecoytva

suonengay pasodoig
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P.C. Box 10110, Richmond, VA 23240-9998 (804) 7864700

Private Security Services Bond

Beond #
PSS Busineas Licanss 2

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That l'wa of Principal, and
Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the Secretary of Lhe Commanweaith
of Virginia, in tha just and full sum ot Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars {$25.000] fo (he payment whereof well and truty to
be made, we bing curseives, cur heirs, executars, administrators, SUCCesSsOrs and assigns, jointly and severally, iy
by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THE ABOVE OBLIGATION IS5 SUCH that whereas the above bound
has magde applicationforlicense to e a Privale Secunty Senvicas business.

NOW, THEREFORE, if the said shall well and faithiylly perform its
dulies as a Private Security Services business AND does ne act or acls menting suspension or revocation of its license
under the provisions of Chapter 27, Tille @, Code of Virginia, 1950 as amended, then 1his obligation is void, otherwise
to remain in tull force and effsct, subject, howavar, 1o 1ha follawing conditions:

1. Thai this bond shak be continuous in form, and shall remain in fuii 1orce and eMedt until
canceled as hereinafier provided.

2. Thisbond may be canceled at any time by the Principal or the Surety upon giving thirty (30)
days wrillen notice to the Depariment of Criminal Justica Services, al Richmong, Virginia,
of its intention to do so, it being understood Lhat the Surely shall be liable for any violation
of the tarms of this bond by the Principal accruing during the fite of 1his band,

3. Any person aggrieved by any adl of the above bounden principal in viplation of the
provisions of Chapter 27, Tille 9, Code of Virginia, 1950as amended, may proceed against
theprincipal or surety on said bond, or both, 10 recover damages notto excess of e penaty
of such bond, inaccordance with the provisions of Chapter 27, Title 5, Code of Virginia, 1950
as amended.

IN WITNESS THEREOF. The said Prrcipalis) has hersunto
afiixed his or her signature and seals. and the Surety has caused lhese presents to be executed by
. its duly authonzed Atlorney-m-Fact. this day of

.19

Expiration Date PSEALY

SURETY:

TAUINGATD 10 0T Enil bl 1 [ Cormreparaa ™ O ¢ s

SEAL)

Commonwealth of Virginia Form o
Department of Criminal Justice Services
Private Security Section

Commonwealth of Virginia
Department of Criminal Justice Services

Private Security Section
P.Q Box 10118, Richmond, VA 23240-9998 (804) 7B6-4700

Form
PSS BL 7493

Irrevocable Consent for Service

l To be executed by each non-resident business of Virginia applying for iicense |

PS5 Business License &

Firm Name:

Business Address:

Compliance Agent:

WHEREAS. i, of we, the atiove named applicant for icense priviieges as a Private Securily Services Business trading
andfor operating individually orior or undes the firm name of
have made application for a license lo act as a Private Securly Services Business, Nom-Rasident, within tha
Commonwealth of Virginia, in accordance wilh the provisions of Chapter 27, Tille 9 of ke Coda, 1950 as amended.

WHEREAS, underihe provisionsof said Chapter, it is necessary tofila with the Director, Depanmem of CAminal Justice
Services, Richmend, Virginia, animevocabls consent {hat actiens against the subscrber (6r subscribers) may be filed
in 2ny appropriate courl of any counly or municipality of this Commomveatth in which the plaintit resides ar in which
some part of the transaction occurred out of which the alleged cause of actioh arose and that process in any achen
may £e served on tha subscnber (or subscribers) by leaving two copies thereof with the Director of the Depanmerm.
Such consent shall slipulate and agres that such service of process shall be valid and binding for ail purposes;

NOW THEREFOHRE, |, or we. . the above named appticant tor
cense prvilege as a Privale Security Services Business as aforesaid, hereby execute and file with the Direcior of
1he Depanment of Criminal Justice Services aur {or my] lrrevocable Consent that aclions against the subscenber for
subscribers) may be filed in any appropriate coun of any county or municipatity of this Commormwealth in whigh the
plaindifi resides or inwhich some part of Ihe transaction accurred out of which the alteged cause of action arose and
thal process in any aclion may be served on the subscriber (or subscnbers) by leaving two copies thereol with the
Direclor of the Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Sarvices. Such consent shall stipulala and agrae that such
service of process shall be valid and binding lor alf purposes.

i witness whereof, [, or we have hersunto signed our name.,

this day ol 19

Subscribad and sworn o befare me ths d3y

of 13

Sgnaven of Prncipal Dwnet

5 gatw of Corprance Agan S.araturm of Nomy P,

My Commisacn Expras:

suone[nday pasodoad
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COMMONWEALTH OF YIRGINIA Form PSS FP T
Department of Criminal Justice Services
Private Security Section

P.O. Box 10116, Richmend, VA 23240-9398 (804} 7864700

Fingerprint Processing Application
FEE: $41 Non-Refundable
Make checks payable to: Treasurer, Commenweaith of Yirginia

COMMUNWEALIH UF YIKUINIA Farm S5 CA 75
Department of Criminal Justice Services
Private Security Section
P.Q. Box 18110, Richmond, VA 23240-9998 (B04) 786-4 700

Application for Compliance Agent Training & Certification
FEE: $126 MNon-Refundable )

Make checks payable to; Treasurer, Commonweatth of Yirginia

INSTRUCTIONS DCjS USE ONLY

INSTRUCTIONS DCJS USE ONLY o

The fallowing musi accompany this application: Application Type: FP_ Date Received:

Fee Codes:

1. Two {2} completed DCJS fingerprint cards
2. Non-refundable fee of $41
Amount applied:

Transaction Numbes:.

INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL BE RETURNED,

The following must accampany this application: Application Type: 4 Date Received:

1. Two (2) completed DCIS fingerprint cards Fee Codes: _j30
2. Official Decumentation of experience
3. WNorrrefundable fee of $126

Amount applied:

TNCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL 8E RETURNED. Transaction Number:

T T e
APPLICANT'S NAME: .
Tt [ Ld APPLICANT’S NAME:
SEN: DOB: L o ey
S5N: DOB:
PHYSICAL ADDRESS:
MumBe and Sieel Conllown P % PHYSICAL ADDRESS:
MAILING ADDRESS: e ot - =
Crefiown P v MAILING ADDRESS:
TRy = j2
TELEPHONE: Residence: { 1 Business: ( ).
TELEPHONE: Residence: { 1 Busingss: { 1
BUSINESS NAME: Fax: { )
PRIVATE SECURITY SERVICES BUSINESS: Fax ( )
EMPLOYMENT CATEGORY{S) : Flease check all boxes which apply:
. ) 0 MANAGEMENT/SUPERVISORY EXPERIENCE:
DOwner/Directon‘Paﬂner Compliance Agent Alarm Respondent O Armored Car Personne
D ) ) D . . D . DHicial Documentation in Private Secutity Related Field Must Be Atached.
Ceniral Station Dispatcher Eiectronic Security Employee Electronic Security Technician A Manimum of 3 Years Management/Supervisery Experience |s Required For Certification}
DE!edronic Security Sales Representative 8 Other (Describe}
b icted of a fel isde in Virgini. other jurisdict
Have you ever been convicted of 2 felony or a misdemeanor in Virginia of any other jurisdictiont Yes No :}hu you ever been convicled of a felony of & misdemeanor in Virginiz or any r jurisdiction? _ Yes No
_— e — yes, artach an explanation.
If yes, attach an explananon.
Are you now or have you ever been licensed or registered in Private Security by any othet jurisdictiont Yes [¥73

Are you now or have you ever been licensed or registered by any other jurisdictiont Yes No
(1 yes, which junisdictiont

Has a license or registralion issued to you to operate in 2 Private Security Services Butiness in Virginia, or any other jurisdiction
ever been suspended or revoked for any reasond Yes Mo
il yes, atiach ap explanation,

AFFIDAVIT

Commonwealth ol: — e CowmTy of
The ungerugned preng duly swirn srdies thal be of IR pAfON wha $xe0A¢d Tha JDRICEI0N. TRt T Haemenl) herein (GnTained e e thi he s not baPporase.
3Ny infarmannn PR3t MR anect they gpplicanon and tha he fuiy read and underdands thes andavit

Subscriven 2nd pworn 1o btiore me i dry & L T

g b o ApE' anc Lratud @ sty Py

W yes, which jurisdictioni

Has a license or registration issueld 1o you 1o operale in a Private Security Services Busivess in Virginia, or any other jurisdiction
ever been suspended or revoked for any reasont Yes No
H yes, attach an explanation.

Do you wnderstand that you may be a Compliance Agent for only 1 licensed Private Security Services Businesst __ Yes __ N

Do you understand that you are responsible for the full compliance with ¥irginia law and requiation of the licenped firm neme
abovet Yes No

Have you ever previously served as a Compliance Agentl Yes No
I yes, name of Private Secunity Services Business

Training Date Requesied:

- <OVER >

suenenday pasodoay
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AFFIDAVIT

Commonwealth of: - Coumty/City of:

The undersigned being duby sworn, states that he is the person who executed this application, that the statements herzin ¢
are true, that he has not suppressed any information that might affect this application, and that he has read and underst
affidavit.

Subscribed and swom 10 before me this day of

Signature of Applicant Cignature of Motary Public

My Commission Expires:

DCIS USE ONLY

Completion Dats:

DCJS ACTION TAKEN
Appraved Denie

C/A Training Session

Exarmination Score: Dare:

Authonzed S:gnarure
PSS Business License Number:

Date:

Criminal Records Search:

COMMONWEALTH OF YIRGINIA Form PSS LR 7
Department of Critninal Justice 3arvices
Private Security Section
P.O. Box 10110, Richmond, VA 23240-9998 (B0S) TE6-4700
Private Securify Services
Business License Renewal Application
FEE: $250 Non-Refundabie
Make checks payable to: Treasurer, Commonweaith of ¥irginia
INSTRUCTIONS BL)S LSE ONLY

The following must accempany this application: Application Type: R Date Raceived:

1. Cerlificate of Insurance; or Fee Codes: _121

2. Evidence of $25,000 Surety Bond; and

3. Monefundable fee of $250. Amount applied:

INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL BE RETURNED. Transaction Number
LICENSED FIRM:. e LD.#:
FEDERAL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:
PHYSICAL ADDRESS:

M B e CruTomn E v
MAILING ADDRESS:
Cnv/Town [ Io
TELEPHONE: ¢ ). FAX: ( ]
PLEASE LIST ALL COMPLIANCE AGENTS:
NAME: Soc.Sec.¥:

INITEAL TRAINING DATE: IN-SERVICE TRAINING DATE:

NAME: Soc.Sec.#:

INITIAL TRAINING DATE; IN-SERVICE TRAINING DATE:

NAME: Soc.5ec.;

INITIAL TRAINING DATE: IN-SERVICE TRAINING DATE-

CATEGORY OF SERVICES THE BUSINESS PROVIDES: {Check each that applies)
O Armmared Car Personnel ] Private Investigator =] Amed Security Cfficers/Couriers

O Unarmed Secunty Officers U Guad Dog Handlers

ATTACH PROOF OF PUBLIC LIARILITY (Check oret: L Insurance [ Bond

INSURANCE'BOND EXPIRES:

SUOIIBINSYY posodoi]
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{F SOLE PROPRIETGRSHIP, LIST OWNER; ‘ Soc.Sec

IF CORPORATION OR PARTRERSHIP, LIST ALL OFFICERS/TIRECTORS/PARTNERS:

Peesident of Partner; Soc.Sec.¥;
Vice President or Partner; Soc.Sec.
Secretary or Partner; ! SocSecd;
I’am;er: ) Soc.5ec.t:

Have you or any officer, pariner or employee in your private security services business been convicted or found guilty of a crimic
offense, other than tratfic violaticns, not previously reported to the Deparment?

O ves O ne o yes, submit written explanation and official court disposition(s)}

Have you of any officer or partner in your private security services business committed any act or omission since your last renew
which resulted in a license or registration being suspended, revoked, not renewed or being otherwise disciplined in any jurisdiction

(m] YES O no {If ves, submit written explanation}

Commonwealth of: County/City of:

The undersigned being duly sworn, states that he is the person who executed this application, that the statements herein containe
are true, that he has not suppressed any information that might affect this application, and that he has read and understands thi-
affidavit, The undersigned also understands Lhat any misrepresentation or faisification of this apphcation may be cause for denal.

Subseribed and swomn to belare me this day of 19_

Signature of Compliance Agent Signature of Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

Date

Signalure o1 Pringipal Owner

Date

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA Foems ST
Department of Criminal justice Services
Private Security Section
F.Q. Box 10110, Richmond, VA 23240-9998 (804) 786-4700
Compliance Agent In-Service Training Enroflment
FEE: $50 Non-Refundable

Make checks payable to: Treasurer, Commonwealth of Virginia

NAME:
= L3 L)

S5N: DOE:
PHYSICAL ADDRESS:

Mg g Sy Ty Town S s
MAILING ADDRESS:

CyfTomen Slme I

TELEPHONE: ( )] FAX: { 3

LICENSED PRIVATE SECURITY BUSINESS:

DATE DF INITIAL APPROVAL AS COMPLIANCE ACENT:

P5SB LICENSE @

DATE PREVIOUS COMPLIANCE AGENT IN-SERVICE TRAINING COMPLETED:

IN-SERVICE SESSHON DATE AND LOCATION REQUESTED:

CHECK IF APPLICABLE:

O ADA Accommodation Reguested {Please Specify Below)

Should there be any questions, please call the Private Security Section at (804) 786-4700.

Segnature of Apphicant

Dare

suone[nsday pasodoid
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
Department of Criminal Justice Services
Private Security Secuon
P.0. Box 10710, Richmand, VA 23240-9998 (604 786-4700

Form PSS RA T

APPLICATION FOR INITIAL PREVATE SECURITY REGISTRATION

FEE: §76 Non-Refundable
Make chacks payable to: Treasurer, Commaonwealth of Virginia

INSTRUCTIONS

DCs USE ONLY

The following must accompany this application:

1. Copy of PSS TCF, COMPLETION OF TRAINING FORM
2. MNon-refundable fee of $76

3. Two (2] Compleled DC)5 Fingerprint Cards

INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL BE RETURNED.

Application Type: BA  Date Received:

fee Codes: e

Amaount applied:

Transaction Mumber:

TRAINING COMPLETED (Check those which apply and provide information requested)

Type af Training Date Completed i Name of Tramming School

ENTRY-LEVEL

Private Investigaior Subjects

Guard Dog Handier Subjects

Core Subjects

Armored Car Subjects

Handgun Traning

Shotgun Training

m——
APPLICANT'S NAME:
("3 Fm e

S5N: DOB: PLACE OF BIRTH: AFFIDAVIT
PHYSICAL ADDRESS: < fth of: CournyiChy ok

M b SRR Ly Town e w The undersigned being dule Sworm. SIares [har e 15 The DEMON wha sxecyted this Zlicmion. tha the Satements homein conased are true, hal he Aas Mot KupEees
MAILING ADDRESS: ny mlormation thar might atedt this aponization, end thal he hay read and undersands ts afidavn,

Summtarr wr: arers Ciyiomm S 1z SubricTined and fwm to berfore e the dvd 19,
TELEPHONE: ) FAX: [} S o A [rr e
EMPLOYER: DATE OF EMPLOYMENT: _ 0o My Commnson Expeeess
Have you ever been convicted of a felony or 2 misdemeanor in Virginia or any sther jurisdiction? Yes Mo

If yes, on a separaie piece of paper, please grve full detaris, including charge, date, place, kaw enforcement agency mvolved ar
disposiLions.

Have vou ever had a privale security ficense, certificale, registration or permil mrpended, revohed or denied in Yirginia. or &n
other jurisdictioni Yes No
If yes, atach 2n expiananon

REGISTRATION CATECORY{S) REQUESTED

o] Private lnveshigan: =) Guard Dog Handler D Armored Car Personnel D Armed Security OHicer'Couner

TRAINING CERTIFICATION REQUESTED

D rarmed Secur n Oticer O Firearens Certification (Check each which applyi: Hangguan Shotgun

- <OVER >

D015 AT ITN TatEN
O wopoves O Demea
A Mot Fed Signdlatt
Dae
—

suone[nday pasodosg
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RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR PRIVATE SECURITY REGISTRATION

P.O. Box 10710, Richmond, VA 23240-995%8 (804) 7864700

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA Form P55 RR 7~ TRAINING COMPLETED (Check those which apply‘and provide information requested)

Department of Criminal Justice Services
Private Security Section Type of Training —I Date Campieted_[ Name of Taairing School

ENTRY-LEVEL

Private Investigator Subjects

Guard Dog Handler Subjects

FEE: $35 Nen-Refundable ¥

Make checks payable to; Treasurer, Commonwealth of Virginia

Cete Subjects

Armored Car Subjects

INSTRUCTIONS

Handgun Training

DCYs USE ONLY Shotgur Training

The following must accompany this application:

1. Copy of PSS TCF COMPLETION OF TRAINING FORM
2. Noeerefundable fee of $35

INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL BE RETURNED.

Application Type: R Date Received: ____ INSERVICE

Fee Codes: 111 Private Investigator Subjects

A 1 apalied . Guard Dog Handler Subjects
Core Subjecis

Transaction Nymber:

APPLICANT'S NAME:

Armored Car Subjects

FIREARMS RETRAINING L : o -

1=t - s Handgun Retraining
SSN: DOB: PLACE OF BIRTH: ) s
Shotgun Retraining
PHYSICAL ADDRESS:
Muniet g Sumen CrrlTown S i
MAILING ADDRESS:
Muumbe: g eree CayToum b i
TELEPHONE: [ ) FAG )
EMPLOYER: AFFIDAVIT
< of: CountyiClty of:
The underbigned beng cdul . stales that he s the person who ed thy hcaiion, that the metement heen ontaumed appre
Have you ever been convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor in Virginia or any other jurizdiction! Yes Mo eny miu'maf:n shat :n;:!va;:::m: a:‘:nunm, ‘u\d n: he hes m:;!:': mde’r;::d; m.:‘dm.m_ e e, i s o

If yes, on 3 separate piece of paper, please give full details, inciuding charge, date, place, law enforcement agency involved am

dispositions.

Have you ever had a private security license, certificate, registration or permit suspended, revoked or denied in Virginia, or an-

ather jurisdiction? Yes No
il yes, aftach an explanation.

Subricribed s pwom I brfore e tha day of 19,

By o1 ADDIAN [T r—

oy Commisyion £pim

REGISTRATION CATEGORY(S) REQUESTED

] Privale fnvestigator 0 Cuard Dog Handler 0 Armored Car Personnel m} Amed Secunity Officer/Coutier

TRAINING CERTIFICATION REQUESTED

a Unarmed Security Officer [} Firearms Qualilication (Check each which apply): Handgun Shotgun

DS ACTION TAREN

O sppeoved O pemed

AuinorIes Signature

<OVER>

suonengoy pasedoid
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Commonwealth of Virginia Form

PS5 ICR 5793
Department of Criminal Justice Services

Private Security Section
P.0. Box 10110, Richmond, VA 23240-9998 (804} 7864700

Application for Duplicate/Replacement Photo Identification

Fee: $15 Non-Helundable
Mazka chacks payable to: Traasurer, Commanwaahh of Virgima

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGIMIA
Department of Criminal Justice Services
Private Security Sectior

P.O. Box 10110, Richmand, VA 23240-5998 (804) 736-4700
UNARMED SECURITY OFFICER TRAINING CERTIFICATION
APPLICATION :

" FEE: $15 Non-Refundable
#ake checks payable to: Treasurer, Commonwealth of Virginia

Form PS5 LA 2

£ INSTRUCTIONS DCJS USE oKLY INSTRUCTIONS DCJS USE ONLY
The icllovring must accomparny this application: Application Typs: _MP Dats Aacaned: The following must accomspany this application: Application Type: JA = Date Received:
1. Non-refundabte lee of $15. Feo Codes: 1. Cepy of PS5 TCF COMPLETION OF TRAINING FORM Fee Codes: 179
2. Nonrefundable fee of 515
Amounl Applied: A {ied.
Incompiete applications wil! be returned T o N app
urmbar: INCOMPLEYE APPLICATIONS WILL BE RETURNED. Transaction Number:
rr——
B Parti
1. Name: SSN:
Fimt [, Lent APPLICANT'S NAME:
kst L iy
2. Physicat Address:
ys T S5N: DOB: PLACE OF BIRTH:
Telephone: { )
‘CrepfTeen Fum Zo G
PHYSICAL ADDRESS:
3. Date of Birth: Place of Birth: Humbec and e Crelinn il L
4. Employer: BMAILING ADDRESS: o — - -
B Part ll: Registratien Category(s) TELEFHONE: ( ) EMPLOYER:
DPrivam invesligator/ DGuard Deg Handler D Armed Guard / D Armored Car Persannel DATE OF EMPLOYMENT:
Frivate Deteclive Couner
B Partli: Tralning Certiflcation Have you ever been convicted of a felony or @ misdemeznor in Virginiz or any other {urisdiction? Yes 217
D Unarmed Guarg D Firearms Cerification: Idi_yes;"ti);\n: separale piece of paper, piease give full details, including charge, oate, pface, law enforcement agency involved anc
—. Handgun e :
___ Sheigun Have you ever had a privale securily license, certificate, registratioh or permit suspended, revohed or denied in Virginia, or am
other jurisdictiont ____ Yes ____ Mo
B AFFIDAVIT If yes, antach an explanation, f
Commonweaith of: Caumy/Cay ok Name of Certified School that provided training:

Tha uUndersignad being dury Bwom, o2aLes 1hot ha ie the Dorssn wha areculnd thla eppllcnion, tet the stiemenrs herpin eants:ned e
true. that he hee not uprerssd any nfemnation that might eHsct thie Bppicailan, and that he hae read and LNdoratErde Tue BHidey it

Subsenbed and 3womn bz belorg me Tuy any

al . 5

Sgran.re of Appacars

Fp
P SgraTes of oy Paoic

My C. ' Expres

Training Session Compleled:

Datels) Training Compleled:

<QVER>

suonengay pasodoig
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Lection 3-183.3, Code of Yirginia, requires an investigation to determine the suitability

of VSP Fomm 167 to the Virginia State Police.

Have you as the comp

Is this Private Security Services Business in compliance with Section $-183.3, Code of Virginia (1950,

officer? _____ Yes ____ No ;

1 coniify that the above statements are troe and correct ta the best
efficer and avthorized ta submil this information.

liance agent for this app!icant’s empfonjervemived the results of the V5P Form 167 and determined this applican
to be suitabie for emplayment in the Private Security Industry in Virginia? Yes

of my knowbedge, and that | am the compliance agenl for the fm which employs this cecurin

of each unarmed security officer by submissior

as amended for this umarmec

Compliante Agert: Liceased Fimm:
S
Drae:
AFFIDAVIT
L ith of: Courty/City of:

The ungersigned bei ]
vy informanen that might affeq this apphcaion,

ing duly swom, staies that ha is the person wha axacuted this application, that |+-e
and that he has read and understands this affidavit, .
Sulpcribed and swom w befors me this

Aatements herein conlared e true, that he has hat cLppresaec

dayol LV

Sgrarure o Applcant

DL15 ACTION TAREN

03 aooroved ) Denea

Avthorized Sighature

My Cor

e o by N

Eaxpines:

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA Forem PS5 \WA 25
Department of Criminal Justice Services
Private Security Section
P.O. Bax 10110, Richmond, VA 23240-9398 (804) 756-$700

"APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM THE COMPULSORY
MINIMUM TRAINING STANDARDS
for PRIVATE SECURITY SERVICES BUSINESS PERSONNEL
FEE: $35 Nom-Refundable
Make checks payable to: Treasurer, Commonwealth of Virginia

Please Note: No individual may be exempted from alf training in any category. There are no tctal exemptions. The Cade of Virgin®,
restricts exemptions to law enforcement officers with five consecutive years of service, nd whose termination is not the resiit of histhe
misconduct gr incompetence.

DCIS USE ONLY :
Application Type: WA Date Received:

INSTRUCTIONS

The following must accompany this application:

1. Official documentation of law enforcemant employment Fee Codes: 160
and entry-tevel training for faw enforcement officers
2. Non-refundable fee of $35 A t applied

Transaction Number;

INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILE BE RETURNED.

FULL NAME:
- =) pree
55N: Dos:
ADDRESS:
[EEp p— Caplzwm ™ Ts
TELEPHONE: { ) FAX: ()

TRAINING CATEGORY OF EXEMPTION REQUEST

Apglicams must include documentation shawimg EOMEHIoN of an entry—sevel TAINING courke for Law FmioMement oIfcen.
L private Investigator O cuard Dog Handier O Unarmed secunty Officer T armed Secunty Cfficer/Counar

4 PRESENT EMPLOYMENT

NAME OF AGENCY/FIRM:

POSITION HELD: DATES OF EMPLOYMENT:

CERTIFIED PRIVATE SECURITY TRAINING SCHOOL PLANNING TO ATTEND:

<OVER>

suonenaday pasedold
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PRIOR LAW ENFORCEMENT EMPLOYMENT
Ust alk previows Low enforcement émployment in chranological onder.

EMPLOYER DATES FOSITION/RANK REASOM FOR LEAVING

PREVIOUS TERMINATION

Were you previously terminated from any law enforcemnent employment as a result of:
Misconduct? Yes Ne incompetencel Yes .. No
{l yes, please attach explanation on a separate piece of paper.)

STATUTORY AUTHORITY
List the specific state starute or U.5. Code title that granted you faw enforcement authority for 2ach law enforcement position listed,
{Yout application will be returned ii the required information {5 not disted,)

Li5. Code Titla: Section(s):

State of: Section(s):
AFFIDAVIT

< fth of: CountyiCity ok: .

The undenigned being duly wom, suanes that he 15 the penan who eiecured this SEEHEENON, this the Kzt heren crtansd b U, NS s s ol supprenssd
2ny informanon thal might sl this appheation, and that ke hay nead and wde mands this dfidee @
Subscnbed ana swom in beicre ma this

day of 1% __ .

Sqrarim of appicam [T rpe——

My Commbssion Epin:

Extmpnom spproved Under this policy fmus be suboimied 10 the Depanment of Cruminal justice Servicss kor BITON b ghan hos b 03 monchs of dote of
B{prval

| = Rp—— 0 tenea

Authaired 5 grasue

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA Form PSS FC 7--
Department of Criminal Justice Services
Private Security Section
P.O. Box 70110, Richmond, VA 23240-3998 [804) 736~4760
Agplication for Credit for Prior Firearms Training
FEE: $25 Mon-Refundable
Make checks payable to: Treasurer, Commonwealth of Virginia
INSTRUCTIONS BCS USE ONLY
The following must accompany this application: Application Type: FC_ Date Received:
1. Documentation of firearms training and qualification Fee Codes: _161
2. MNoterefundable fee of $25
Amount applied:
ENCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL BY RETURNED.
Transaciion Number:

FULL NAME:

Lo Feld. ey

S5M: . DOB:

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:

Sy 2 Sureel CayiTown Sate 2o

MAILING ADDRESS:

Cryftown Shade g

TELEPHONE: Residence: { ¥

EMPEOYER:

WName oi Virginia Criminal Justice Agency/Academy/Correctional Depariment at which applicant qualified:
Documentation must accompany this application indicating the date the applicant qualified. weagons used,
scores fired, and signature of the range officer. The applicani must have qualified withen the 12 months
arior to the date of this application.

Sipnature ot Applicant Date

Firearms credit approved under this policy must be submitied to the Depariment of Criminal 1usiice Services 1or ation wihin
sty i600 davs of date of approval

O Approved O penied

Authonzed Signatuse

Date:

suoneinday pasodoig
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA Forn PSS TOF %<
Department of Criminal Justice Services
Private Security Section
P.C. Box 10110, Richmand, VA 23240-9998 (804) 7864700
TRAINING COMPLETION FORM
STUDENT'S NAME:
- Last Pt ucicher
SSN: i TELEPHONE: (|
PHYSICAL ADDRESS:
st el b Am
T = v
CERTIFIED TRAINING SCHOOL: SCHOOLID ¢

DATE TRAINING SESSION ENDED:

DATE TRAINING SESSION BEGAN:

TYPE(S) OF TRAINING COMPLETED:

ENTRY-LEVEL TRAINING: I whi
DOcie core Subjects ] 02E Privale Investigator Subjects Oox Armored Car Subjects B oar Guard Dog Handler Subjects

FIREARMS TRAINING

O 07t Handgun Training Classroom Range Qualification on Range - Score
Type: Revoiver, Caliber  Semi-Auto, Caliber

O OBE Shotgun Tramning Classroom Range Qualification on Range - $core
Type: ’ Gauge

IN-SERVICE TRAINING: Check all which apply,
™) 011 Core Subjects 0 02! Private investigator Subjects ) 03 Armared Car Subjects G 04! Guard Dog Handler Subjecs

FIREARMS RETRAINING: Check all which apply

u 078 Handgun Training Ciassroom Qualification on Range - Score
Type: Revoiver, Caliber  Semi-Auto, Cahiber
|] 0BR Shotgun Training Classroom Qualification on Range - Score

Type: o . Gauge

CERTIFICATION

| cenity that the above named individual has satisfactotily completed the compulsory minimum training as estabiished by the Vigin
Crimenal Justice Services Board for each category checked above.

Teleptone: {1

Name of Traiming Director (Please Typel:

Date:

Signature

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
Department of Criminal justice Services
Private Security Section
P.0. Box 10110, Richmand, VA 23240-9398 (804} 786-4700

Fom PSS TR T

Private Security Training Completion Roster

Please Note: Onfy ONE session may be wbmitted on each roseer.

NAME OF CERTIFIED SCHOOL: SCHOOL ID:

TYPE OF TRAINING SESSION:

DATE TRAINING SESSION BEGAN: DATE TRAINING SESSION ENDED:

EXACT LOCATION OF CLASSROOM TRAINING:

EXACT LOCATION OF RANGE TRA(NING:

ENTRY-LEVEL TRAINING:

DOEE Core Subjects BT o2E Private Investigator Subjects [ 03 Armored Car Subjects O CAE Guard Dog Handler Subjects

O rirearias TRAINING O o Handgun Training Classroom Range

O cae Shotgun Training Classroom Range

IN-SERYICE TRAINING:

] 011 Core Subjects ] 021 Private Investigator Subjects 13 031 Armored Car Subjects o] 041 Guard Dog Handler Subjects

FIREARMS RETRAINING: Chegk ofl which [

o Handgua Training Classroom Range

] 08R Shatgun Training Classroom Range

' CERTIFICATION
I certify that each listed individual has satisfactonly completed the training mandated for each categary of training specitied

MName of School Director {Please Type): Telephone: {

| S

Date:

Signature

- <OVER>

suone[ngay pasoedoig
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
Department of Criminal justice Services
Private Security Section
P.O. Box 10719, Richmond, VA 23240-5938 (804) 786-4700

Foem PSS LA 754

Private Security Instructor Certification Application
FEE: 591 Non-Refundable -
Make checks payable to: Treasurer, Commonwealth of Yirginia

DCIS USE ONLY
Apphication Type: |4 Date Received:

EINSTRUCTIONS

The following musi accompany this application:

i

Fee Codes: 150

1. Official documentation verifying supervisory position or
instructor position; and instructor developmant program(s)

2. Two (2) completed DCJS fingerprint cards

1. Morrefundable iee of $31

Amount applied:

Transaction Mumber:

INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL BE RETURNED.

NAME:

55N

PHY3ICAL ADDRESS:

Peurrer wnd e Caplown Jamn Iv

MAILING ADDRESS:

Corplown it Ie

FAX: ( H

TELEPHONE: { )}

CENERAL {INSTRUCTOR COURSE AND COMPLETION DATE:

FIREARMS INSTRUCTOR COURSE AND COMPLETION DATE:

PRIVATE SECURITY INSTRUCTOR QUALIFICATIONS: Please review before completing reverse side

Section 5.4al pf the Frivate Securty Regulations liss e following minmmum qualifications for prvaie mecsTy irdmuctn:

MEOIMUM Of TS YEars JUPErvisOny £XDETENCE With & DITVEE HECUTTTY BENVICEs business o with any lederal, miteary polee, Mate, ourty or munsopal e
anforcement agency of in 3 related feid; ot

minimum OF One YEAT SXDENEACE AL BN NEITUCION of Sacher B 5N actredied adpcaional METUGGN OF BEENCY N the Cubnect manes bor which mproval | B
requested. o 1n 4 related teld; and

successiul complelion of an nstructor loprn program, which mewt of exceeds sandards esabiwhed by tw depatreng " vean im -
preceding the date of the applrcation; f

suczeshul Complenon of an mKrUCon developmem pOgTam kanger than 3 yuan pror 10 the dare of 50bcmon ond Ao proveded segmucton drvel T J
years immmed.arely preceding Of has provided instruction i & nelated heid o an natifubon of higher waming.

Fireams instru1bis MUt disi have compeeled & frearmy naructor program approved by the depanment within the 3 yean knmedigely rcrding fe dae of te
spprcanon.

Paricrt who Rave (OMAIEIAT an iNMruciDr Oevelopment progiam of B fIEAMTE MENACIor progfam and Rive CONIHTEDTy pron KB AEiTUCTion. withun fhe IKEOIng 12
yEars may De efible ine appran 3

Aflach dacumentation venilving supetvisony of itnucior awperirnct and complrtion of the required imrtructor devtiapmant scheol.
St

CHECK THE SUBJECTS YOU WISH ¥O INSTRUCT:
CORE SUBJECTS:

[ administration & Security Orientation O Legal Authority 0 Emergency & Defensive Procedures

PRIVATE INVESTIGATOR:

DOriematinn and Administration m] Collecting & Reperling Information O Investigative Techniques 03 criminal Law
O Interviewing Techniques O civil Law

OTHER:
. Amnored Car Subjects 0O cuard Dog Handler Subjects

FIREARMS:

I} Handgun Training O Shotgun Traiting

Have you ever been convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor in Virgiﬁia or any other jurisdiction?
Yes Ne  If yes, on a separate sheet of paper, please give full details, including charge, date, place

law enforcement agency involved and dispositions.

Has a license, certificate, permit or registration issued to you to operale in a Private Security Services Business
in Virginia, or any other jurisdiction, ever been suspended, denied or revoked for any reason?
Yes _ Mo |If yes, attach an explanation.

1 have read-and understand the Regulations Relating To Private Security Services in effect on the date of this
application. h
Yes No

The applicant is recommended for approval to instruct in the below named private security training school.

NAME OF APPRCVED TRAINING SCHOOL:
1D#:

Signature of Training Director Date

AFFIDAVIT

Commonweatih of: Cownty Uiy of:
The undersigned beng duly swom, sigied that be 11 ihe peeson who execuied this 406 (3000, Tt The EMETET herewn ConUred A® N, T A has AGE LEOrTae
ay minmmation thal might aMed thhs appiicabion, and that he has read and undermands ™ effdavi

Subncnbed s pwarh 0 belonk mg thas

1%

day ot

LAk DA et o ey P

kv Commition Expoe;

15 ACTION TAKEN

n] Approwed O Dened

Avihonied Signamure

suonpe[ngday pasodosd
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COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA Form £55 1 7~
Department of Criminal justice Services
Private Security Section
FP.Q. Box 10716, Richmond, VA 23240-9998 (804) 7364700
Private Securify
General Instructor School Application
FEE: $150 Non-Refundable
Make checks payable to: Treasurer, Commonwealth of Yirginia
IMSTRUCTIONS DCIS USE ONLY

The following must accompany this application: Agpplication Type: G1 Date Received:

1. Cfficial documeniation of experience Fee Codes: _153

2. Non-refundable fee of $150.

Amount applicd:
INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS wWILL BE RETURNED. .
Transaction Number:
FULL NAME:
Lt Feu iy
SSN: DOB:
PHYSICAL ADDRESS.
P And Mree CrtrTows Saw i
MAILING ADDRESS:
CtyiTown e in

TELEPHONE: Residence: ( 1 FAX: { 1

PRIVATE SECURITY SERVICES TRAINING SCHOOL (EMPLOYER):

TRAINING SCHOQL 1.D. #:
Indicate which session you would like 1o attend:

First choice:

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
Department of Criminal Justice Services
Private Security Section
P.O. Box 10118, Richmond, VA 23240-3998 (804) 7864700

Form PSS IR 75

Private Security Instructor Certification Renewal Application
FEE: $10 MNon-Refundable
Make checks payable to: Treasurer, Commonwealth of Yirginia

INSTRUCTIONS D5 USE ONLY

The follfowing must accompany this application: Application Type: IR Date Received:

1. Documertation verifying instructor position and Fee Codes:
development programis)
2. Non-reiundable fee of $10

Amount applied:

Tranzaction Number:

INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WiLL BE RETURNED.

APPLICANT'S NAME:

o Fre bt
S5N: D08
PHYSICAL ADDRESS:
by arad S CineTown S tL
MAILING ADDRESS:
Caylown fure 1=
TELEPHONE: Residence: () Business: { 1

FAX: ()

GENERAL INSTRUCTOR COURSE AND COMPLETION DATE:

FiREARMS INSTRUCTOR COURSE AND COMPLETION DATE:

CERTIFIED PRIVATE SECURITY TRAINING SCHOOL EMPLOYER(S}

Date Locavon

Second choice:,

Date Location

Signature of Appiicant

Date

Mar of Taring 00! o
o o Ay S Y]
Mrerr of Trpaang Schoot y 03

CHECK ALL SUBJECTS YOU WISH TO INSTRUCT:

CORE SUBJECTS:

[ administration & Secunity Orientation O Legal Authority 0 Emergency & Delensive Procedures

PRIVATE INVESTHGATOR:

13 01 entation and Admanisteation 0 Cotlecting & Reporting Infarmantion O investigative Techniques O crmingi taw

O Interviewing Techniques w} Ciwil Law

o ENED

suolensay] pasodoad
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1eA

[T anssy ‘[T

S661 ‘07 d4pniqeq ‘Appuop

OTHER:
3 Armoared Car Subjects O cuard Dog Handler Subjects
FIREARMS: .
. Handgun Training O Shotgun Training

#Have you ever been convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor inn Virginia or any other jurisdiction?
Yes WNo If yes, on a separate sheet of paper, please give full details, including charge, date, place

law enforcement agency involved and dispositions.

Has a license, certificate, permit or registration issued to you to operate in a Private Security Services Busines.
in Virginia, or any other jurisdiction, ever been suspended, denied or revoked for any reasond
Yes No  If yes, attach an explanation.

| have read and understand the Regulations Relating To Private Security Services in effect on the date of thi

application.
Yes No

1 hereby certify that the information contained in this application is true and accurate, and that § will comply witt
all applicable sections of the Code of Virginia and the Reguiations Relating to Private Security Services.

AFFIDAVIT
C Hh of: CauntyCHy ol
The wncesigned being duly $wOm, SIATES {hat be n fhe penon who axecued thry that the herein are Tue, thas e bl AK JupEpresy

my wformanon that mught afiect this apphicaton, and that he has read and unaerstands this Hfwdavi. -
Sutmcribed

ard owgams w0 barfcre ma dey of .__,

Sapacut o ADGuC o o ey o

My Lo Expires:

PCIS ACTION TAREN

O approved O oened

Authorized Srgnaturt

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGENIA Fom PS5 CT7
Department of Criminal justice Services
Private Security Section
P.O. Box 10170, Richmond, VA 23240-9998 (804) 7854700
Compliance Agent In-Service Training Enroliment
FEE: $50 Non-Refundable
Make checks payable to: Treasurer, Comsnonwealth of Virginia
NAME:
[ o e
55N DOB:
PHYSICAL ADDRESS:
Paumbar s Sireet CrpTo—n St in
MAILING ADDRESS:
CrenTown St e

TELEPHONE: { ) FAX: )

LICENSED PRIVATE SECURITY BUSINESS: PSSB LICENSE #

DATE OF INITIAL APPROVAL AS COMPLIANCE AGENT:

DATE PREVIQUS COMPLIANCE AGENT IN-SERVICE TRAINING COMPLETED:

IN-SERVICE SESSION DATE AND LCCATION REQUESTED:

CHECK IF APPLICABLE:

0 ADA Accommodatian Requested (Please Specily Belowl

Should there be any questions, piease call the Private Security Section at {804] 7864700,

Sipnature of Applhcant Date

sucnenday pasodoig
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amrr s
C@mm@n’we alth Qi V}LIglﬁﬁa i‘"m DESCRIBE YOUR COMPLAINT IN BETAIL. Be specific and include dates, Please enclase copies of any coniracts or
Department of Criminal Justice Services 53 a7 othar documents ralating o your complaim. # additional space is nasded, atzch adgitanal shasis),
Private Security Sectan
P.O. Box 10110, Richmend, V& 23240-9958 (804) 786700

Case #:

Compla!nt Form Compiaint #:
Private Security Services Date Ertared.

This ferm is o be used to register with the Depantment of Criminal Justica Services complaints af pessidie vizlalions
of the private securily services licanse laws and requlations. Complamts should pe iyoewntien nleg caany, Slate
tacts brefly and clearly. Submitany and ali documents you Nave [0 syooort your czmplaint, Comeiaint must ce signea.
Pleass camplete hoth sides ¢f this form. Mail compraint to ihe above address.

B Person Registering Compiaint

Name: _

Address: B ~ ___:-.
City: Slate: Zip Code:
Telephone: Mome(___ ) Work {___)

Are you the owner, partner of compiiance agent of & private secuity business? EYES ]: No
Complainant: Dc\iem C:‘,Aggrieved Party [:Iﬂher

B Complaint Registered Against

Mame:

Lompany:

Address:

City: State: Zip Code:
Telephone: Home{_ ) Work {__ )

o Witness(es) (if arplicabis}

Mame:

Address:

City: Slae

Taiapnere: Home (.} . Wtk L

Mame:

Acidress;

P L I cerily that the above slatements arg e and accurate 1o the best af My recollecin
City Sialer Tpoge

T WMok

2a0none: Hame

L.graRre o Compuanan! an
MNCTE. If aga:ihanal win8sses ar8 gy 3.atie, sl namas, sodrosses, and CIN@r partaen! 0ala 0o 3 Secale srest

OvER

suolje[nday pasedoid



Proposed Regulations

GEORGE MASON UNIVERSITY

REGISTRAR'S NOTICE: George Mason University is
exempt from the Administrative Process Act in accordance
with § 9-6.1441 A 6 of the Code of Virginia, which
exempts educational institutions operafed by the
Commaonwealth.

Title of Regulation: VR 340-01-04. Vending Sales and
Solicitation.

Statutory Authority: § 23-21.29 (a) of the Code of Virginia.

Summary:

The proposed regulation is designed lo outline the
proper vending sales and solicitations policies and
procedures for faculty, steff and students.

VR 340-01-04, Vending Sales and Solicitation.

PART L
GENERAL PROVISIONS.

§ L1 Scope.

This regulation applies fo all George Mason University
faculty, staff, and students of the university and members
of the general public. This regulation applies to all George
Mason Unrtversity locations, owned and leased, including
Fairfax Campus, Arlington  Campus, Prince William
Institute, and George Mason University af the Center for
Innovative Technology.

§ 1.2, Policy statement.

George Mason University facilities are intended
primarily for the use of ifs students, faculty, and staff in
their efforts fo advance the educational mission of the
university. No use shall be permitted which Is inconsistent
with the mission of the university or which shall result in
undue compelition with local commercial enterprises; nor
shall any funds raised in comnection with activities
conducted in university facilities be destined to purposes
which are exclusively religious or political, with exception
of recognized student groups, or to personal profit with
exceplion of universily emplovees running specital
approved projects and programs, or to further causes
which are adverse to the well-being of the university.

This vending policy s intended to promole the following
goals: protect students, faculty and staff from commercial
and noncommercial exploitation and harassment, preserve
the aesthetic atmosphere of the university, avoid
disruption of the university’s educational mission, and to
promote safety and security in the university unions and
quad areas.

The responsible officer for interpreting and overseeing
this policy shall be the Director of Auxiliary Services or

© his designee.

This policy shall be implemented in conjunciion with
the procedures and policy found in VR 340-01-03, Space
Utilization and Scheduling Policy and Procedures.

§ 1.3, Definitions.

“Commercial activity” means any sale or offer of sale
to secure a direct profit for an individual or nonuniversity
sponsored group. This includes aclivities of nonprofit,
faculty or staff organizations or individuals who choose (i)
fo hire outside vendors for the actual selling; (i) to sell
products on a commission basis; (iif) to raise any money
for outside groups; or (v} fo sell for the benefit of any
individual (unless a charitable activity is determined by
the officer in charge of overseeing this policy).
Nonfund-raising activities may be construed as commercial
activities if they are regular and recurring. Distribution of
literature from reserved tables by individuals or
ronuniversity organizations is subject fo the fees found in
Part IV of this policy (otherwise if is subject to the
regulations).

“Fund-raising activity” means the solicitation of
voluntary philanthropic contributions and the sale of
goods hand crafted or home baked by the spomsoring
student, facuily or staff organization; shirts and clothing
related to the sponsoring organizations; properly licensed
recordings of performances by the sponsoring
organizations; poods which promote school spirit (GMIU/
related teams and activities) that are properly licensed by
the university (if necessary) and are not avaidable in the
university bookstore; pamphletfiiterature related to the
sponsoring organizations; tickets fo events, and lottery or
raffle tickefs. Sales conducted by a campus organization
must be conducted for the sole benefil of said campus
organization to be considered noncommercial.

“GMU" or “‘university” means George Mason University.

PART II
POLICY.

§ 2.1 Vending sales and solicitation, exception.

A. The sale or solicitation of any products, goods, food,
beverages, or services on the campus is subject to prior
authorization and must be conducted in accordance with
regulations established by the university. The solicitation
of Jjunds through donations alse requires prior
authorization.

B. Noncommercial activities may be approved on a
limited basis with regard fo time, place, safety, and the
scope of the activity. Fund-raising activifies of campus
organizations are lreated as noncorumercial activities.
These activities will occur within the guidelines of Sales
by Carmpus Organizations (see Part IV).

C.  Informational activities sponsored by campus
organizations and outside organizations are permitted, but
are subject to the reasonable guidelines of the authorizing
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Proposed Regulations

official and require prior approval. These activities will
occur within the guidelines found in Parts IV and V.

D. Commercial activities will occur within the guideiines
of Sales by Non-GMU Vendors and Fntrepreneurs (see
Fart V).

E. The oncampus sale of products or solicitation of
orders by university emplovees is considered commercial
activity, and as such are prohibited, excepl as provided in
this policy, during work hours. This prohibition includes.
but is not limited to, sales of Avon products. Mary Kay
products and services, Amway, insurance and investment
plans, etc. This Includes both the actual sales or order
taking, as well as distributing catalogs and lilerafure.
Departmental mailboxes and bulletin boards are not to be
used fo distribufe sales information or catalogs.
Employvees. however, may iransact such business during
breaks and lunch hours, if coworkers are agreeable.

F. Certain locations or buildings may require lheir own
policies regarding vending and advertising which are not
subject to this regulation. For the excepiion, a detailed
request must be submitted fo the Director of Auxiliary
Enterprises, the responsible office for overseeing [his
policy, for approval. Any approved exceplion by fhe
university administration will be attached to this
regulation.

PART HI
SALES BY CAMPUS ORGANIZATIONS.
& 31 Policy on recognized university
Organizations.

sales by

A. University organizations (student and nonstudernt) are
permitled to comduct fund-raising activilies on campus,
subject {o the provisions of this policy.

B. Noncommercial sales activities Which are ocecasional,
noncontinuous and specific in purpose may be approved
for designated areas onm campus. Regular, recurring
activities are prohibited.

C. Sales conducted by campus organizations must be
for the benefit of the campus organization o be
considered noncommercial activity. Provisions for proceeds
From the sale must be included in the request for
approval to conduct the sale. Prior approval of the
location and time of any sales activity must be received
under the provisions of this policy.

D, Sales in which the proceeds resull in personal gain
to [ndividuals are considered commercial activity and are
subject to Pari V of the policy. Campus organizations
requesting approval 1o sporsor a vendor on campus may
be required to demonstrate the benefits to he received by
the campus organization.

E. A representative or representatives of the sponsoring
organization must be present at all fimes during sales

activities invelving an outside vendor.

F. Verbal solicitation of sales is strictly prohibited. Sales
shall be conducted only ai the prompting of the buyer.
Harassment of bypassers will not be tolerated.

G. Salespersons may not engage [n misrepresentaiion or
Jraudulent frade practices nor other activities that are
illegal or in violation of university policies.

H. The vendors sponsored by the organization are
required to abide by the policies set forth in Part V.
Salespersons, the vending company, and the sponsoring
organization nvolved will be held responsible if university
policies are violated. Such violations may result in both
the campus organization and the company losing the
privilege of conducting future sales on campus.

I Only a Umited number of spaces are avaiable.
Therefore, the {ofal number of people distributing
literature or selling in one place on campus will be
limited. Preference for assignment of space will take mito
account the number of previous approvals for the group
or activity, status as a major campus-wide activity, and
time constraints of events that may be advertised. Priority
will be given to sales activities condvcted by studenis
over those conducted by students with vendors.

J. Sales activities will be [limited n regards to time,
place and manner of the proposed activity as the
authorizing official may proscribe. Violation of anv of
these pre-approved agreements may result n permission
for the sale being reveked Decisions regarding requests
will take into account any special circumstances relating
to unrversity activities and the burden such activity may
place on university security forces and administrative

staff.

K. At no time are vending activities to be advertised
except in campus newspapers or on -approved bulletin
boards, unless olherwise indicated in this policy or in
writing by an authorizing official. This includes, but is not
liited to, the use of E-mall, mailboxes, bulletin boards,
fliers on cars. handout fliers to students, sandwich boards.
ele.

L. The use of the (George Mason University name in
association with any product or in the solicitation of
donations is strictly prohibited. urnless otherwise indicated
in writing by the authorizing official.

§ 3.2 Procedures for reserving space for sales and
solicitations by campus organizations.

A. Information table (no exchange of money).
1. Complete lable space reservation form and return
to scheduler at least 10 business days before the date

that the organization s requesting.

2. Groups are linuted to one sixfooi table. umless

Virginia Register of Regulations
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other arrangements are made.

3. Tables are relrieved from the Student Union
Butiding I information desk. A representative of the
organization must leave g form of identification at
the information desk to obiain the table.

B. Reselling/selling of products (exchange of money).

1. Complete table space reservation form and refurn
to scheduler at least 10 business days before the date
that the organization is requesting.

2. Groups are limited to one sixfoot table, unless
other arrangements are made.

3. A representative of the organization must be
present through the duration of the sale.

4. If the organization is selling products made by the
organization, there is no fee for seiling the items.

5. If the organization is selling products for another
company or is sponsoring a non-GMU business to sell
products on campus. 1t shall be subject fto Part IV,
Sales by Non-GMU Vendors and Fntrepreneurs.

6. Whenever a student, faculty or staff organization
sells a product or service on campus, a Comrnercial
Endeavors Form must be completed and filed with
the fiscal assistant.

7. An authorized representative of the university must
sign  all  contracts between the vendor and a
recognized studeni organization.

& ANl vendors must comply with all state and
municipal laws. (See procedures for vendors.)

§ 3.3. Fees.

Groups wmay reserve a maximum of six dates per
semester free of charge unless subject to the provisions
and fees in Part IV, Sales by Non-GMU Vendors and
Entrepreneurs.

PART IV,
SALES BY NON-GMU VENDORS AND
ENTREPRENEURS (NON-UNIVERSITY
ORGANIZATIONS).

§ 4.1, Sales by nonuniversity organizations.

A. These regulations apply to vendors selling goods or
services on campus independently or if sponsored by a
recognized student organization. These regulations also
apply to outside organizations on campus independently
or sponsored by an organization to distribute literature or
solicit memberships or both. Vendors wanting to distribute
newspapers are regulated by Part V.

v

B. Commercial sales activities which are occasional and
specific in purpose may be approved for designated areas
on campus. Commercial sales activity shall not be
conducted in residence halls or academic buildings.
Regular, recurring activities are prohibited. Vendors are
permitted to conduct sales activities on campus subject to
the provisions of this policy.

C. Al vendors must conform to the laws of the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

D. A representative or representatives of the vendor
must be present at all Hmes during sales activities
involving an outside vendor.

E. Verbal solicitation of sales is strictly prohibited. Sales
shall be conducted only at the prompting of the buyer.
Harassment of bypassers will not be tolerated. This alsc
applies to the distribution of terature.

F. Salespersons may not engage n misrepresentation or
fraudulent frade practices nor other activities that are
ilegal or in violation of university policies.

G. All vendors must obtain a Fairfax vending license, A
copy of the license should be attached to the George
Mason vending application. On the day of sales at George
Mason, the vending license should be displaved. This does
not apply to vendors who distribute literature or solicit
memberships.

H. Items must be confined to two six-feel tables, uniess
otherwise indicated. Al other rmaterials must be placed
under the fables.

I The use of the George Mason University name in
association with any product or in the solicitation of
donations is sirictly prohibited, unless otherwise Indicated.

J. Unless otherwise indicated, vendors are expected to
operate between the hours of 9 am. and 7 p.m. Vendors
should not arrive for setup after 10 am.

K. The Office of University Unions and Student
Activities reserves the right to assign vendors to specific
locations in the union building and on the quad.

L. Untversity approved facultv and staff organizations
will invite vendors to participate in the vendors program
based on the following criteria:

1. The products or services thal are being sold are
unigue and not generally available in the local
commercial market or from existing campus
commercial outlels.

2. The products or services being sold will not conflict
with the educational mission of the university.

3. The products or services being sold should be able
to relate to the cultural, education, or recreational
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programs at the university.

M. Subsections A through L of this section shall notl
apply to the free distribution of literature or information,
if such distribution is not commercially motivated.

N, At no Hme shall GMU grant or deny authorization
of distribution of information on is content, unless such
distribution s commercially motivated. However, the
distribution of said material shall be subject to reasonable
time, place and manner restrictions.

Q. Only a [imited number of spaces are available fo
non-GMU vendors. Preference for assignment of space will
take into account the number of previous approvals for
the group or activity, status as a major canipus-wide
activity, and time constraints of evenis that may be
advertised. Priority will be given to sales activities
conducted by students, faculty or staff (alone or in
conjunction with vendors) over those conducted solely by
vendors.

P. Sales activities will be limiled in regards fo fime,
place and manner of the proposed activity as the
authorizing official may proscribe. Violation of any of
these pre-approved agreements may resull in permission
Jor the sale being revoked. Decisions regarding requests
will take into account any special circumstances refating
fo university activities and the burden such activity may
place on university security forces and admiristrative

staff.

Q. At no Hme are vending activities o be advertised
excepl In campus newspapers or on approved bulletin
boards, unless otherwise indicated in writing by an
authorizing official. This includes, but is not limited lo,
the use of E-Mail, mailboxes, bullelin boards, fliers on
cars, handout fliers to students, sandwich boards, elc.

R. These vending regulations may not apply fo vendors
in spectal campus-sponsored evenis, as delermined by the
officer 'in charge of overseeing this regulation, which
oceur from timeto-time on campus. However, those
events may have their own regulations which apply fo
vendors. These regulaiions must be submitted for review
by and approval from the authorized university official in
charge of overseeing this policy.

§ 4.2 Procedures for reserving space jor sales and
soficitations by vendors.

A. Information table only (no exchange of money).
1. Complete table space reservation form and return
to scheduler at least 10 business days before the date

that the vendor s requesting.

2 Vendors are [mited to two sixfeet tables, unless
other arrangements are made.

3. Tables are retrieved jfrom the Student [nion

Building I information desk. A representative of the
vendor must leave a form of identification at the
information desk fo obtain the fable.

B. Resellingfselling of products (exchange of money).

1. Complete table space reservation form and relurn
to scheduler at least 10 business days before the date
that the vendor s requesting.

2 Vendors are limited to two sixfeet fables, unless
other arrangements are made.

3. A representative of the vendor must be present
through the duration of the sale.

4. Whenever a vendor sells a product or service on
campus, a Commercial Fndeavors Form must be
completed and filed with the fiscal assisiant.

§ 4.3, Fees.

A. Vendors may reserve a maximum of six dates per
semester at a rate of $I00 per day. If an electrical,
phone, gas, waler, etc., hook-up is required, then the rate
shall be the current prevailing rates. The ultility rates
charged will be based wpon prevailing utilify costs
furnished by the Director of the Physical Plant. Telephone
service shall be coordinated with the university’s Office of
Telecommunications and Client Support. '

B. Pavment should be made in the form of a ceriified
check or money order on the morning of the reservation
to the University Unions and Student Activities Office
designee.

C. These fees apply to informational (ne exchange of
money) as well as commercial activities (exchange of
money).

§ 44. Waiver of Part IV.

This part can be warved at the discretion of the
authorized university officer (or his designee) tn charge of
overseeing this policy.

PART V.
SALES AND DISTRIBUTION OF NEWSPAPERS.

§ 5.1 Director of Auxiliary Enterprises.

The Director of Auxiliary Futerprises is charged with
establishing a reasonable number of places where any
publication—-with or without adverfisements,
studentmonstudent written or distributed, Iiterary or
otherwise—may be distributed, subject fo approval. This
approval will be contingent only upon available space and
safety concerns, and not upon content. When distribution
is denied due to space [limitations, the Director of
Auxiliary Enterpriscs will provide alternative places of
distribution.

Virginia Register of Regulations
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§ 5.2. The bookstores.

The manager or their agents of the bookstore have the
responstbility for determining which publications will be
distributed and sold within the bookstores (subject to
contractual restrictions).

& 5.3, Limitations on distribution.

Students, faculty, staff and vistlors may distribute
literature in person, subject to approval by the
authorizing university official in charge of overseeing this
policy, at the following locations: Student Unions I and II,
Arlington Campus and the Quad at the Fairfax Campus
between the following hours of 9 am. to 5 p.m., Monday
through Friday. Approval of distribution of Ilterature
under this part is subject only fo space limitations and
safety concerns and not to the content of the literature to
be distributed. If there is a denial, the authorized
university official in charge of overseeing this policy shall
find another place or set up another time that the person
may distribute literature. Al no fime shall any person
push Iliterature onto unwilling recipients.  Further,
applicable litter laws will be enforced against any
organization or individual carelessly distributing literature
OGN Campus.

PART VI
USE OF BULLETIN BOARDS AND POSTING
MATERIAL FOR ADVERTISING.

§ 6.1 Use of bulletin boards and posting material for
advertising.

A. No materials shall be posted on irees, light and lamp
postsipoles, walkways, windows, walls, doors, or glass
panels either inside or outside university buildings. The
only exceptions are malerials relating fto fire, health, or
safety (such materials must be approved for posting by
the Department of Risk Management) materials posted on
bulletin boards; and cars pursuant to the poster policy,
Number 54

B. Bulletin boards are provided for the posting of signs,
papers, posters, advertisements, etc., subject to the
Jollowing:

1. Assigned bulletin boards.

a. Builetin boards found in academic areas are
assigned for the exclusive use of academic
departments (within the department office) and
Information Services (within public areas).

b. Assigned bulletin boards are labeled and are the
responstbility of the department or Information
Services fo which they are assigned.

¢c. No rmalerials may be posted on assigned bulletin
boards without the authorization of the department
or Information Services.

d. The department or Information Services is
responsible for removal of unauthorized materials
and for keeping posted materials updated,

2. General bulletin boards.

a. General bulletin boards are posted in various
campus locations and are available for the use and
benefit of the campus commmunity.

b. Material posted on general bulletin boards Is

subject fo approval by the Office of Information
Services.

c. Areas designated for the posting of materials are
designed to provide a means to advertise campiis
events, publicize services for students, and inform
students, faculty, and staff of offcampus activities.
All individuals and organizations posting notices are
expected to design and display their materials in a
manner respectful of ithe diverse beliefs, opinions.
and aititudes that exist in an institution of higher
learning. Posted items must be educational or
informative in nafure. Items advocating an
infraction of any law, ordinance, or official
university policy or regulation may not be displaved
and are subject fo removal by the Office of
Information Services.

PART VIIL
AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS.

§ 7.1. Amendments and additions.

A. All amendments and additions to the Vendor Sales
and Solicitation policy are fo be reviewed and approved
by the Provost, the Office of the Executive Vice President
Jor Administration and the Office of the Executive Vice
President for Finance and Planning.

B. This policy shall be reviewed and revised, if
necessary, annually.

VAR, Doc, Mo, RB5-268; Filed January 31, 1995, 255 pm.
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Undvegsiiy Undonsiand Studerit Astivities ‘ Teday's Diste
Gwrv;iﬁmm Unjvernity

Studont Commerclal Bndoavors Agreement
Btudeit Organdzation or Sponsor:
Malits)g Addrazs
Nams 'of Roglateant: -

Malilgg Addros: :

Coodd o Berviozs 1o be Bold:
Requeated Campus Location;
Fese dr PHicss Chirged to Customers:

In coneidsratlon of baing allowed to sl

I (we) agioe to the following as checked below:

. To opon & coparats chocking account apart from iy (our) peresnal chacking
unt(e) for the recelpt and disburesment of ali funds that ¥ (wo) praouts.

1o the bmma, address, snd islophone number of the entraprencur and the delivery

. To fupnish indlvidusl recelipte to every purchaser, This recelpt should- ¢learly
}aﬂw of the merchandies,

. ‘To socopt no money in advanes of delivary and when transactions oocur, to furnlsh
b purthaser with & standard recalpt,

g To pﬁpvlda n completed svent/sales sudli sheat to the fiscal Aspleiant In Student
lvitleg and Unlverelty Undonz within five days sfter the dats of the gale/event.

1 agrde 1 eall only in the folfowing locatlons:

on thies dates

In eaTh cﬁ.u T gugrantes on & money-back bazle for the jtem or servics T am pelling if It doos not meet with the expecta-
tons jef the purchzser,

1 furiher Pnderuﬁg“m the granting of this privilege to sl In & epecific Tocatlon does not carsy with {f Unlverstty
ondofgament or tee and that the University aecopis no respohslbility for a customer's default,

Raglétrant Blgnaturs Date

UUSA Approval, Dats

whitd copy- Organization  pink and yallow copy - UUSA siaff, 252K, SUB I
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APPLICATION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO VEND AT GEQGRGE MASON UINIVERSITY I

GENERAL INFORMATION
_ Company Name

-

L

Company Address

bl

Company Telephone Number

4. Locat Cantact Person

L

. Local Telephone Number R

6. Local Address o

7. Description of Product (Please include pictures, samples or brochures when possible )

Piease attach a copy of your Fairfax County Vending license.
For licensure information contact: Censumer Affairs, 12000 Government Center Pwky, Suite 127
Fairfax, Virginia 22035 Telephone: 703-222-8432

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

I seiested to vend at George Masoz: University, 1 agree on behalf of ey organization/business to the foflowing terms
and conditiens:

1. 1, the undersigned, agree to indemaify, defend, and hold harmless George Mason University from any liability,
damage, expense, cause of action, sails, claims, judgements, znd costs of defense arising from injury o persons or
personal property which ariss out of any act, failure @ 3ct, o5 negligence of the organization, ils  agents, or emplovess.
All personal property of (he organization, its employees agents, licensees, servants, clients, members, guests, or
trespassers. shall be ai the sole risk of said partics; Gearge Mason University shall not be liable to any such persen or
party for any damage or loss 1o personal property thereof.

2.1, the undersigned, will maintain a bond or insurance coverage suficient to ensure repair or replacement for ail
George Mason University propery, and the property of its employeces, that may be lost or damaged as a result of the
cvent.

3. 1, the undersigned, will indemnify, defend and save harmicss George Mason University from any babiiuy,

damage, expensc, cause of aclion, suits, <latms, judgmonts and costs of defense ansing from any liens, bills,
charges. credits, and other expenscs incurred by or placed against me or the company/business Ior which [ am an agent.

4. [, the undersigned, agree (o proruncntly display on my reserved 1sbles the followsng noucce:
THE VENDOR OPERATES AS AN {NDEPENDENT BUSINESS ENTITY AND IS NOT AFFUIATFD

WITH GEORGE MASON UNIVERSITY. GEORGE MASCON UNIVEASITY DOES NOT ENDORSE OR
RECOMMEND THE VENDOR AND ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY GOODS OR SER

VICES PUACHASED FROM THE VENOOR.

SIGNATURE DATE

TABLE RESERVATION FORM

Unlvorsity Unlons and Student Activitles

Nemi of Orggnization/Departmant

Contact Nemg

Tetaghohs

Contéct Addrdss

Date(s) Requested

Plaase describa tha Itemns that wili be distributed from your tabla

Wl you'requlra 8 TV/VCR setup?

All retognized student organizations and GMU departmants may acheduis onp table for up
to flve conasc{tlve days. This table resarvation only confirms tha use of ona tabla and tha
space fof seating around the tablo, not tha entire lobby or quad. All student orpanizations
and departmente ara rgsponsible for retrleving from and raturning their table to storage. A
repissantative of the organizetion or department must be prasent at the table at all tmas,
All tables are daaslgned-to spacific spacos.

| have resd and undaerstend tha policles and procegures wrltten above.

Signaturg Dats

FOR OFFICE USE DNLY

Data Form Rbcolved

Form Raceivad by,

Table Agsignment Number{s)

suonendsy pasodody



Proposed Regulations

DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES
(BOARD OF)

Title of Regulation: VR 460-03-4.1940:1. Nursing Home
Payment System (Smaller Nursing Facility Indirect
Ceiling Adjustment).

Statuiory Authority: § 32.1-325 of the Code of Virginia.

Public Hearing Date; N/A - Written comments may be
submitted through April 21, 1995,

(See Calendar of Eventis section

for additional information)

Basis and Authority: Section 32.1-326 of the Code of
Virginia grants to the Board of Medical Assistance Services
(BMAS) the authority to administer and amend the Plan
for Medical Assistance. The Code also provides in §
8-6.14:% of the Administrative Process Act (APA) for this
agency's promulgation of proposed regulations subject to
the Governor’s review.

This action was mandated by the 1994 General Assembly
in item 396K of the Appropriation Act.

Purpose: The purpose of this proposal is to comply with

the 1994 Virginia Acts of Assembly which appropriated
funds for use in increasing the indirect patient care
operating per diem ceiling for small nursing facilities.

Summarv and Analysis: Under current DMAS policy, the
indirect pattent care operating cost ceiling is adjusted only
to reflect geographical peer groups and is not modified to
recognize any differences in the bed size of facilities. The
Virginia Health Care Association (VHCA) and the Joint
Legislative Audit and Review Commission (JLARC) have
recommended that DMAS adjust reimbursement to nursing
facilities to reflect the relatively higher indirect operating
costs incurred in operating a smaller facility. Based upon
information from these organizations, the 1994 General
Assembly appropriated funds for this purpose and directed
DMAS to work with the VHCA to develop an appropriate
methodology.

DMAS analyzed appropriate adjustments to the indirect
patient care operating ceiling based upon the number of
beds within the nursing facility. From this analysis, DMAS,
in cooperation with the VHCA, developed a rate change
methodology. This regulatory change will increase the
indirect patient care operating cost ceiling for smaller
nurging facilities. For the purposes of this regulatory
action, both DMAS and the nursing home indusiry have
agreed that a smaller nursing facility is one with 80 or
fewer beds.

Effective July 1, 1985, existing indirect peer group
ceilings of smaller nursing facilities will be adjusted by
the predetermined amount identified in the regulation. In
subsequent fiscal years, the facilities’ adjusted ceilings will
be increased according to a formula reflecting the
increase in cost due to inflation.

Issues: Nursing facilities with a smaller number of beds
are inherently less efficient due to economies of scale and
an increased indirect patient care operating ceiling is
appropriate in order to be reimbursed for these increased
costs. Since the VHCA originally proposed this legislation,
the nursing facility industry supperts these changes. DMAS
has consulted with the nursing home industry in
development of the procedures fo be Implemented. The
advantage of this action is more appropriate
reimbursement for smallier nursing facilities. The agency
projects no mnegaiive issues involved in implementing this
proposed change.

Impact:

Projected MNumber of Entities Affected. There are
currently 105 nursing facilities in Virginia with 90 or
fewer licensed beds. The smaller facilities represent 429
of all nursing facilities in the Commonwealth and serve
predominantly rural areas. These nursing facilities have a
total of 5,841 (or 209 of the iotal number) beds serving
Medicaid recipients.

Identity of Localities and Types of Businesses Particularly
Atffected. This regulation will affect nursing facilities
statewide which have a number of licensed beds of 80 or
less. These facilities will be abie to be reimbursed higher
amounts for indirect patient care operating costs. There
are no localities which are uniquely affected by these
regulations as they apply statewide.

Projected Persons and Employment Positions Affected. No
persons or employment positions will be gspecifically
affected by this regulation.

Projected Cosis to Affected Entities to Comply. There is no
cost to the affected entities. There is no additional cost to
the Commonwealth to implement this proposed change as
it will be incorporated into the already existing cost
seftlement process. '

Projected Cost to Commonwealth fo Implemeni/Enforce.
The projecied cost to the Commonwealth for this increased
reimbursement amount will be $1,078,152 ($539,076 GF and
$539,076 NGF),

Source of Funds. The general funds for this action have
been appropriated by the 1994 General Assembly in
Chapter 966, Item 396 K of the Acts of the Assembly for
the purpose of effecting an increase in the indirect patient
care operating ceiling for smaller nursing facilities.

Summary:

These proposed amendments conform the Stete Plan
for Medical Assisiance to the 1994 Virginia Acts of
the Assembly, which appropriated funds for use in
increasing  the indirect palient care operaling per
diem ceitlings for small nursing facilities.

VR 460-03-4.1940:1, Nursing Home Payment System.
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Proposed Regulations

PART L
INTRODUCTION,

§ 1.1. General.

Effective October 1, 1990, the payment methodology for
Nursing Facility (NF) reimbursement by the Virginia
Department of Medical Assistance Services (DMAS) is set
forth in the following document. The formula provides for
incentive paymenis to efficiently operated NFs and
contains payment limitations for those NFs operating less
efficiently. A cost efficiency incentive encourages cost
containment by allowing the provider to retain a
percentage of the difference between the prospectively
determined operating cost rate and the ceiling.

§ 1.2. Cost components,

Three separate cost components are used: plant cost,
operating cost and nurse aide training and competency
evaluation program and competency evaluation program
(NATCEPs) costs. The rates, which are determined on a
facility-by-facility basis, shall be based on annual cost
reports filed by each provider.

§ 1.3. Ceiling limitations.

In determining the ceiling limitations, there shall be
direct patient care medians established for NFs in the
Virginia portion of the Washington DC-MD-VA Metropolitan
Statistical Area (MSA), the Richmond-Petersburg
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), and in the rest of the
state. There shall be indirect patient care medians
established for NFs in the Virginia portion of the
Washington DC-MD-VA MSA, and in the rest of the state.
The Washington DC-MD-VA MSA and the
Richmond-Petersburg MSA shall include those cities and
counties as listed and changed from time to time by the
Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA). A NF
located in a jurisdiction which HCFA adds to or removes
from the Washingten DC-MD-VA MSA or the
Richmond-Petersburg MSA shall be placed in its new peer
group, for purposes of reimbursement, at the beginning of
its next fiscal year following the effective date of HCFA's
final ruile.

§ 1.4, Exemptions.

Institutions for mental diseases providing nursing
services for individuals age 65 and older shall be exempt
from the prospective payment system as defined in §§ 2.6,
2.7, 2.8, 2.19, and 2.25, as are mental retardation facilities.
All other sections of this payment system relating to
reimbursable cost limitations shall apply. These facilities
shall continue to be reimbursed retrospectively on the
basis of reasonable cosis in accordance with Medicare and
Medicaid principles of reimbursemeni. Reimbursement to
Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally Retarded
(ICF/MR) shall be limited to the highest rate paid to a
state ICF/MR institution, approved each July 1 by DMAS.

§ 1.5, Medicare principles of reimbursement.

Except as specifically modified herein, Medicare
principles of reimbursement, as amended from time to
time, shall be used to establish the allowable costs in the
rate calculations. Allowable costs must be classified in
accordance with the DMAS uniform chart of accounts (see
VR 460-03-4.1941, Uniform Expense Classification) and
must be identifiable and verified by confemporanecus
documentation.,

All matters of reimbursement which are part of the
DMAS reimbursement system shall supercede Medicare
principles of reimbursemeni. Wherever the DMAS
reimbursement system conflicts with Medicare principies
of reimbursement, the DMAS reimbursement system shall
take precedence. Appendices are a part of the DMAS
reimbursement system.

PART II
RATE DETERMINATION PROCEDURES,

Article 1.
Plant Cost Component.

§ 2.1. Plant cost.

A, Plant cost shall include actyal allowable depreciation,
interest, rent or lease payments for buildings and
equipment as well as property insurance, property taxes
and debt financing costs allowable under Medicare
principles of reimbursement or as defined herein.

B. To calculate the reimbursement rate, plant cost shall
be converted to a per diem amount by dividing it by the
greater of actual patient days or the number of patient
days computed as 95% of the daily licensed bed
complement during the applicable cost reporting period.

C. For NFs of 30 beds or less, to calculate the
reimbursement rate, the number of patient days will he
computed as not less than 8579 of the daily licensed bhed
complement.

D. Costs related to equipment and portions of a
building/facility not available for patient care related
activities are nonreimbursable plant costs.

§ 2.2 New nursing facilities and bed additions.

A. 1. Providers shall be required to obtain three
competitive bids when (i) constructing a new physical
plant or renovating a section of the plant when
changing the licensed bed capacity, and (ii)
purchasing fixed equipment o¢r major movable
equipment related to such projects.

2. All bids must be obfained in an open competitive
market manner, and subject to disclosure to DMAS
prior to initia! rate setting. (Related parties see §
2.10))
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B. Reimbursable costs for building and fixed equipment
shall be based upon the 3/4 (259 of the surveyed projects
with costs above the median, 759 with cosis below the
median) square foot costs for NFs published annually in
the R.5. Means Building Construction Cost Data as adjusted
by the appropriate R.S. Means Sguare Foot Costs “Location
Factor” for Virginia for the locality in which the NF is
located. Where the specific location is not listed in the
R.S. Means Square Foot Cosis “Location Facter” for
Virginia, the facility’s zip code shall be used {fo determine
the appropriate locality factor from the US. Postal
Services National Five Digit Zip Code for Virginia and the
R.S. Means Square Foot Costs “Location Factors.” The
provider shall have the option of selecting the construction
cost limit which is effective on the date the Certificate of
Public Need (COPN) is issued or the date the NF is
licensed. Total cost shall be calculated by multiplying the
above 3/4 square foot cost by 385 square feet (the
average per bed square footage). Total costs for building
additions shall be calculated by muliiplying the square
footage of the project by the applicable components of the
construction cost in the R.S. Means Square Foot Costs, not
to exceed the total per bed cost for a new NF. Reasonable
limits for renovations shall be determined by the
appropriate costs in the R.S. Means Repair and
Remodeling Cost Data, not to exceed the total R.S. Means
Building Construction Cost Data 3/4 square foot costs for
nursing homes.

C. New NFs and bed additions to existing NFs must
have prior approval under the state’s Certificate of Public
Need Law and Licensure regulations in order to receive
Medicaid reimbursement.

D. However in no case shall allowable reimbursed costs
exceed 1109 of the amounts approved in the original
COPN, or 100% of the amounis approved in the original
COPN as modified by any ‘significant change” COPN,
where a provider has satisfied the requirements of the
State Department of Health with respect to obtaining prior
written approval for a “significant change” to a COPN
which has previously been issued.

§ 2.3. Major capital expenditures.

A. Major capital expenditures include, but are not
limited to, major renovations (without bed increase),
additions, modernization, other renovations, upgrading to
new standards, and equipment purchases. Major capital
expenditures shall be any capital expenditures costing
$100,000 or more each, in aggregate for like items, or in
aggregaie for a particular project. These include purchases
of similar type equipment or like items within a one
calendar year period (not necessarily the provider’s
reporting period).

B. Providers (including related organizations as defined
in § 2,18) shall be required to obtain three competitive
bids and if applicable, a Certificate of Public Need before
initiating any major capital expenditures. All bids must be
obtained in an open competitive manner, and subject to

disclosure to the DMAS prior tfo initial

(Related parties see § 2.10.)

rate setting.

C. Useful Ilife shall be determined by the American
Hospital Association’s Estimated Useful Lives of
Depreciable Hospital Assets (AHA). 1f the item is not
included in the AHA guidelines, reasonableness shall be
applied to determine useful life.

D. Major capital additions, modernization, renovations,
and costs associated with upgrading the NF to new
standards shall be subject to cost limitations based upon
the applicable componenis of the construction cost limitg
determined in accordance with § 2.2 B.

§ 2.4. Financing.

A. The DMAS shall continue its policy to disallow cost
increases due to the refinancing of a mortgage debt,
except when required by the mortgage holder to finance
expansions or renovations. Refinancing shall alse be
permitted in cases where refinancing would produce a
lower interest rate and result in a cost savings. The total
net aggregate allowable costs incurred for all cost
reporting periods related to the refinancing cannot exceed
the total net aggregate costs that would have been
allowable had the refinancing not occurred.

1. Refinancing incentive. Effective July 1, 1991, for
mortgages refinanced on or after that date, the DMAS
will pay a refinancing incentive to encourage nursing
facilities to refinance fixed-rate, fixed-term mortgage
debt when such arrangements would benefit both the
Commonwealth and the providers. The refinancing
incentive payments will he made for the 10-year
period following an allowable refinancing action, or
through the end of the refinancing period should the
loan be less than 10 years, subject to a savings being
realized by application of the refinancing caletlation
for each of these years. The refinancing incentive
payment shall be compuied on the net savings from
such refinancing applicable to each provider cost
reporting period. Interest expense and amortization of
loan costs on mortgage debt applicable to the cost
repori period for morigage debt which is refinanced
shall be compared to the inferest expense and
amortization of loan costs on the new morigage debt
" for the cost reporting period.

2. Calculation of refinancing incentive. The incentive
shall be computed by calculating two index numbers,
the old debt financing index and the new debt
financing index. The old debt financing index shall he
~computed by multiplying the term (months) which
would have been remaining on the old debt at the
end of the provider's cost report period by the
interest rate for the old debt, The new debi index
shall be computed by multiplying the remaining term
{months) of the new debt at the end of the cost
reporting period by the new interest rate. The new
debt index shall be divided by the old debt index tr
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achieve a savings ratio for the period. The gavings
ratio shall be subtracied from a factor of 1 to
determine the refinancing inceniive factor.

3. Calculation of net savings. The gross savings for the
period shall be computed by subtraciing the allowable
new debt interest for the period from the allowable
oid debt interest for the period. The net savings for
the period shall be computed by subtracting allowable
new loan costs for the period from allowable gross
savings applicable to ihe period. Any remaining
unamortized old lean costs may be recovered in full
to the extent of net savings produced for the period.

4. Calculation of incentive amount. The net savings for
the period, after deduction of any unamortized old
loan and debt cancellation costs, shall be multiplied by
the refinancing incentive factor to determine the
refinancing incentive amount. The result shall be the
incentive payment for the cost reporting pericd, which
shall be included in the cost report settlement, subject
to per diem computations under § 2.1 B, 2.1 C, and
2.14 A

5. Where a savings is produced by a provider
refinancing his old mortgage for a longer time period,
the DMAS shall calculate the refinancing incentive and
payment in accordance with §§ 24 A 1 through 2.4 A
4 for the incentive period. Should the calculation
produce both positive and negative incentives, the
provider’s total incentive payments shall not exceed
any net positive amount for the entire incentive
period. Where a savings is produced by refinancing
with either a principal balloon payment at the end of
the refinancing period, or a variable interest rate, no
incentive payment will be made, since the irue savings
to the Commeonwealth cannot be accurately computed.

6. All refinancings must be supported by adequate and
verifiable documentation and allowable under DMAS
regulations to receive the vrefinancing savings
incentive.

7. (Effective March 1, 1985) Balloon loan
reimbursement. This regulation applies to the
construction and acquisition of nursing facilities (as
defined in §§ 2.2 and 2.5) and major capital
expenditures {as defined in § 2.3) that are financed
with balloon loans. A halloon loan requires periodic
payments to be made that do not fulty amoriize the
principal balance over the term of the loan; the
remaining balance must be repaid at the end of a
specified time period. Demand notes and loans with
call provisions shall not be deemed to be balloon
loans.

a. Incurred interest. Reimbursement for interest of a
balloon loan and subsequent refinancings shall be
considered a variable interest rate loan under § 2.4
B.

(1) A standard amortization period of 27 years,
from the inception date of the original balloon loan,
must be computed by the provider and submitted to
DMAS and used as the amortization period for loans
for renovation, construction, or purchase of a
nursing facility.

{(2) A standard amortization period of 15 years,
from the inception of the original balloon loan, musi
be used as the amortization period for lcans on
furniture, fixtures, and equipment.

(3) A loan which is wused partially for the
acquisition of buildings, land, and land
improvements and partially for the purchase of
furniture, fixtures, and equipment must be prorated
for the purpose of determining the amortization
period.

b. The allowable interest rate shall be limited to the
interest rate upper limit in effect on the date of the
original balloon loan, unless another rate s
allowable under § 2.4 B.

c. Financing costs. The limitations on financing costs
set forth in § 2.4 B shall apply to balloon loans.
Financing costs exceeding the limitations set forth in
these sections shall be allowed to the extent that
such excess financing costs may be offset by any
available interest savings.

{1y A 27.year amortization period must be used for
deferred financing costs associated with the
construction or purchase of a nursing facility.

(2) A 15-year amortization period must be used for
deferred financing costs assoctated with financing of
furniture, fixtures, and movable equipment.

(3) Financing costs associated with a loan used
partially for the acquisition of buildings, land, and
land improvements and partially for the purchase of
furniture, fixtures, and equipment must be prorated
for determination of the amortization period.

d. Cumulative credit computation. The computation
of allowable inferest and financing costs for balloon
loans shall be calculated wusing the following
procedures:

(1) A standard amortization schedule of allowable
costs based upon the upper limits for interest and
financing costs shall be computed by the provider
and submitted to DMAS for the applicable 27-year
or 15-year periods on the original balioon loan.

(2) For each cost reporting period, the provider
shall be allowed the lesser of loan costs (interest
and financing costs) compufed in accordance with
subdivision 7 a of this subsection, or the actual toan
costs incurred during the period.
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(3) To the extent that there is a “credit” created by
the actual loan costs being less than the loan costs
computed on the amortization schedule in some
periods, the provider may recover any otherwise
allowable costs which result from the refinancing,
extension, or renewal of the balloon loan, and any
loan costs which have been disallowed because the
loan costs are over the limitation for some periods.
However, the cumulative aciual lean cost
reimbursement may nof exceed the cumulative
allowable loan cost as computed on the amortization
schedule to that date.

(4) In refinancing or refinancings of the original
balloocn loan which involve additional borrowings in
excess of the balance due on the original balloon
loan, the excess over the balance due on the
balloon iocan shall be treated as new debt subject fo
the DMAS financing policies and regulations. Any
interest and financing costs incurred on the
refinancing shall be allocated pro rata between the
refinancing of the balloon loan and the new debt.

(5) In the event of a sale of the facility, any unused
balance of cumulative credit or cumulative provider
excess costs would follow the balloon loan or the
refinancing of the balloon loan if the balloon loan
or its refinancing is paid by the buyer under the
same terms as previously paid by the seller.
Examples of this are (i) the buyer assumes the
existing instrument containing the same rates and
terms by the purchaser; or (ii) the halance of the
balloon loan or its refinancings is financed by the
seller to the buyer under the same rafes and terms
of the existing loan as part of the sale of the
facility. If the loan is otherwise paid in full at any
time and the facility is sold before the full 27-year
or 15-year amortization period has expired, the
balance of unused cumulative credit or cumulative
provider excess costs shall expire and not he
considered an allowable cost.

e. In accordance with § 24 A, no refinancing
incentive shall be available for refinancings,
extensions, or renewals of balloon loans.

f. The balloon lean and refinancing of the balloon
loan shall he subject to all requirements for
allowable borrowing, except as otherwise provided
by this subsection.

B. Interest rate upper limit.

Financing for all NFs and expansions which require a

COPN and all renovations and purchases shall be subject
to the following limitations:

1. Interest expenses for debt financing which is
exempt from federal income taxes shall be limited to:

The average weekly rates for Baa municipal rated

bonds as published in Cragie Incorporated Municipal
Finance Newsletter as published weekly
(Representative reoffering {rom general obligation
bonds), plus one percentage point (100 basis points}),
during the week in which commiiment for construction
financing or closing for permanent financing takes
place.

2. a. Effective on and after July 1, 1990, the interest
rate upper limit for debt firancing by NFs that are
subfect to prospective reimbursement shall be the
average of the rate for l0-year and 30-vear US.
Treasury Constant Maturities, as published in the
weekly Federal Reserve Statistical Release (H.13), plus
two percentage points (200 basis peints).

This limit (i} shall apply only to debi financing
which is not exempt from federal income tax, and
(ii) shall not be available to NF’s which are eligible
for such tax exempt financing unless and until a NF
has demonstrated to the DMAS that the NF failed,
in a good faith effort, to obtain any available debt
financing which is exempt from federal income iax.
For construction financing, the lmit shall be
determined as of the date on which commitment
takes place. For permanent financing, the limif shall
be determined as of the date of clesing. The limit
shall apply to allowable interest expenses during the
term of the financing.

b. The new interest rate upper limit shall also
apply, effective July 1, 1990, to construction
financing commifted to or permanent financing
closed after December 31, 1986, but before July 1,
1990, which is not exempt from federal income tax,
The limit shall be determined as of July 1, 1890,
and shall apply to allowable interest expenses for
the term of the financing remaining on or after July
1, 1990.

3. Variable inferesi rate upper limit.

a. The limitation set forth in §$ 24 B 1 and 24 B 2
shall be applied to dept financing which bears a
variable interest rate as follows, The interest rate
upper limit shall be determined on the date on
which commitment for construction financing or
closing for permanent financing takes place, and
shall apply io aliowable interest expenses during the
term of such financing as if a fixed interest rate for
the financing period had been obtained. A “fixed
rate loan amortization schedule” shall he created for
the loan period, using the interest rate cap in effect
on the date of commitment for construction
financing or the date of closing for permanent
financing.

b. If the interest rate for any cost reporting period
is below the limit determined in subdivision 3 a
above, n¢ adjustment will be made to the provider's
interest expense for thai period, and a ‘“carryover °
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credit” to the extent of the amount allowable under
the “fixed rate loan amortization schedyle” will be
created, but not paid. If the interest rate in a future
cost reporting period is above the limit determined
in subdivision 3 a above, the provider will be paid
this “carryover credit” from prior period{s), not to
exceed the cumulative carryvover credit or his actual
cost, whichever is less.

¢. The provider shall he responsibie for preparing a
verifiable and auditable schedule to support
cumnulative compuotations of interest claimed under
the “carryover credit,” and shall submit such a
schedule with each cost report.

4. The limitation set forth in § 2.4 B 1, 2, and 3 shall
be applicable to financing for land, buildings, fixed
equipment, major movable equipment, working capital
for construction and permanent financing.

5 Where bond issues are used as a source of
financing, the date of sale shall be considered as the
date of closing.

6. The aggregate of the following costs shall be
limited to 5.0% of the total allowable project costs:

a. Examination Fees
b. Guarantee Fees

c. Financing Expenses (service fees, placement fees,
feasibility studies, etc.)

d. Underwriters Discounts
e. Loan Points

7. The aggregate of the following financing costs shall
he limited to 2.0% of the total allowable project costs:

a. Legal Fees
b. Cost Certification Fees
c. Title and Recording Costs
d. Printing and Engraving Costs
e. Rating Agency Fees
C. DMAS shall allow costs associated with mortgage life
insurance premiums in accordance with § 2130 of the
HCFA-Pub. 15, Provider Reimbursement Manual (PRM-15).
D. Interest expense on a debt service reserve fund is an
allowable expense if required by the terms of the
financing agreement. However, inferest income resulting

from such fund shall be used by DMAS to offset interest
. expense.

§ 2.5. Purchases of nursing facilities (NF).

A. In the event of a sale of a NF, the purchaser must
have a current license and certification to receive DMAS
reimbursement as a provider.

B. The following reimbursement principles shail apply to
the purchase of a NF:

1. The allowable cost of a bona fide sale of a facility
(whether or not the parties to the sale were, are, or
will be providers of Medicaid services) shall be the
lowest of the sales price, the replacement cost value
determined by independent appraisal, or the
limitations of Part XVI Revaluation of Assets.
Revaluation of assets shall be permitted only when a
bona fide sale of assets occurs.

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of § 2.10, where
there i3 a sale between related parties (whether or
not they were, are or will be providers of Medicaid
services), the buyver’s allowable cost basis for the
nursing facility shall be the seller’s allowable
depreciated historical cost (net book wvalue), as
determined for Medicaid reimbursement,

3. For purposes of Medicaid reimbursement, a “bona
fide” sale shall mean a transfer of title and possession
for consideration between parties which are not
related. Parties shall be deemed to be “related” if
they are related by reasons of common ownership or
control. If the parties are members of an immediate
family, the sale shall be presumed to be between
related parties if the ownership or control by
immediate family members, when aggregated together,
meets the definitions of “common ownership” or
“control”” See § 2.10 C for definitions of “common
ownership,” ‘“control,” “immediate family,” and
“significant ownership or control.”

4, The useful life of the fixed assets of the facility
shall be determined by AHA guidelines.

5. The buyer’s basis in the purchased assets shall be
reduced by the value of the depreciation recapture
due the state by the provider-seller, until
arrangements for repayment have been agreed upon
by DMAS. .

6. In the event the NF is owned by the seller for less
than five years, the reimbursable cost basis of the
purchased NF to the buyer, shall be the seller's
allowable historical cost as determined by DMAS.

C. An appraisal expert shall be defined as an individual
or a firm that is experienced and specializes in
multi-purpose appraisals of plant assets involving the
establishing or reconsiructing of the historical cost of such
assets. Such an appraisal expert employs a specially
trained and supervised staff with a complete range of
appraisal and cost construction techniques; is experienced
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in appraisals of plant asseis used by providers, and
demonstrates a knowledge and understanding of the
regulations involving appiicable reimbursement principles,
particularly those pertinent {o depreciation; and is
unrelated to either the buyer or seller.

D. At a minimum, appraisals must include a breakdown
by cost category as follows:

1. Building; fixed equipment; movable equipment; land;
land improvements.

2. The estimated useful life computed in accordance
with AHA guidelines of the three categories, building,
fixed equipment, and movable equipment must be
included in the appraisal. This information shali be
utilized to compuie depreciation schedules.

E. Depreciation recapiure.

1. The providerseller of the facility shall make a
retrospective sefflement with DMAS in instances where
a gain was made on disposition. The department shall
recapture the depreciation paid fo the provider by
Medicaid for the pericd of participation in the
Program to the extent there is gain realized on the
sale of the depreciable assets. A final cost report and
refund of depreciation expense, where applicable, shall
be due within 30 days from the tiransfer of title (as
defined below}.

2. No depreciation adjustment shall be made in the
event of a loss or abandonment.

F. Reimbursable depreciation.

1. For the purpose of this section, “sale or transfer”
shall mean any agreement between the transferor and
the transferee by which the former, in consideration
of the payment or promise of paymeni of a certain
price in money, transfers to¢ the latter the title and
possession of the property.

2. Upon the sale or transfer of the real and tangible
personal  property comprising a licensed nursing
facility certified to provide services to DMAS, the
transferor or other person liable therein shall
reimburse to the Commonwealth the amount of
depreciation previously allowed as a reasonable cost
of providing such services and subject to recapture
under the provisions of the State Plan for Medical
Assistance. The amount of reimbursable depreciation
shall be paid to the Commonwealth within 30 days of
the sale or transfer of the real property unless an
alternative form of repayment, the term of which
shall not exceed one year, is approved by the
director.

3. Prior to the transfer, the transferor shall file a
written reguest by certified or registered mail o the
director for a letter of verification that he either does

not owe the Commonwealth any amount for
reimbursable depreciation or ithat he has repaid any
amount owed the Commonwealth for reimbursable
depreciation or that an alternative form of repayment
has heen approved by the director. The request for a
letter of verification shall state:

a. That a sale or transfer is about to be made;

b. The Ilocaticn and general description of the
property to be sold or transferred,

c. The names and addresses of the transferee and
transferor and all such business names and
addresses of the transferor for the last three years;
and

d. Whether or not there is a debt owing fo the
Commonwealth for the amount of depreciation
charges previously allowed and reimbursed as a
reasonable cost to the transferor under the Virginia
Medical Assistance Program.

4, Within 00 days after receipt of the request, the
director shali determine whether or not there is an
amount due te the Commonwealth by the nursing
facility by reason of depreciation charges previously
allowed and reimbursed as a reasonable cost under
DMAS and shali notify the transferor of such sum, if
any.

5. The transferor shall provide a copy of this section
and a copy of his request for a letter of verification
to the prospective transferee via certified mail at teast
30 days prior to the transfer. However, wheiher or not
the transferor provides a copy of this section and his
request for verification to the prospective transferee
as required herein, the transferee shall be deemed to
be notified of the requirements of this law.

6. After the f(ransferor has made arrangements
satisfactory to the director to repay the amount due
or if there is no amount due, the director shall issue
a letter of verification to the iransferor in recordable
form stating that the transferor has complied with the
provisions of this section and setting forth the term of
any alternative repayment agreement. The failure of
the transferor to reimburse to the Commonwealth the
amount of depreciation previously allowed as a
reasonable cost of providing service to DMAS in a
timely manner renders the transfer of the nursing
facility ineffective as to the Commonwealth.

7. Upon a finding by the director that such sale or
transfer is ineffective as to the Commonwealth, DMAS
may collect any sum owing by any means available by
law, including devising a schedule for reducing the
Medicaid reimbursement to the transferee up to the
amount owed the Commonwealth for reimbursable
depreciation by the transferor or other person liabie
therein. Medicaid reimbursement to the transferee
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shall continue to be so reduced until repayment is
made in full or the terms of the repayment are
agreed to by the transferor or person liable therein,

8. In the event the transferor or other person liable
therein defaults on any such repayment agreement the
reductions of Medicald reimbursement to the
transferee may resume,

An action brought or initiated to reduce the
transferee’'s Medicaid reimbursement or an action for
attachmen{ or levy shall not be brought or initiated
more than six months after the date on which the
sale or transfer has taken place unless the sale or
transfer has been concealed or a letter of verification
has nof been obtained by the transferor or the
transferor defaults on a repayment agreement
approved by the director.

Article 2.
Operating Cost Component.

§ 2.6, Operating cost.

A, Operating cost shall be the total allowable inpatient
cost less plant cost and NATCEPs costs. See Pari VII for
ratie determination procedures for NATCEPs costs. To
calculate the reimbursement rate, operating cost shall be
converted to a per diem amount by dividing it by the
greater of actual patient days, or the pumber of patient
days computed as 95% of the daily licensed bed
complement during the applicable cost reporting period.

B. For NFs of 30 beds or less, to calculate the
reimbursement rate the number of patient days will
continue to be computed as not less than 85% of the daily
licensed bed complement.

§ 2.7. Nursing facility reimbursement formula.

A. Effective on and after October 1, 1990, all NFs
subject to the prospective payment system shall be
reimbursed under a revised formula entitled “The Patient
Intensity Rating System (PIRS).” PIRS is a patient based
methodology which links NF's per diem rates to the
intensity of services required by a NF's patient mix. Three
classes were developed which group patients together
based on similar functional characteristics and service
needs.

1. Any NF receiving Medicaid paymenis on or after
October 1, 1990, shall satisfy all the requirements of §
1919(b) through (d) of the Social Security Act as they
relate to provision of services, residents’ rights and
administration and other matiers.

2, Direct and indirect group ceilings.
a. In accordance with § 1.3, direct patient care

operating cost peer groups shall be established for
the Virginia portion of the Washington DC-MD-VA

MS4A, the Richmond-Petersburg MSA and the rest of
the state. Direct patient care operating costs shall
be as defined in VR 460-03-1491.

b. Indirect patient care operating cost peer groups
shall be established for the Virginia portion of the
Washington DC-MD-VA MSA and for the rest of the
state. Indirect patient care operating costs shall
include all other gperating costs, not defined in VR
460-03-4.1941 as direct patient care operating costs
and NATCEPs costs.

c. Effective July I 1985 existing indirect peer
group ceilings of nursing facilities shall be adjusted
according to the schedule below. These adiustments
shall be added lo the ceiling in effect for each
facility on July I, 1993, and shall apply from that
day until the end of the facility's fiscal vear in
progress at that time. Peer group ceilings for the
subsequent fiscal vear shall be calculated by adding
the adjustments below to the existing interim
ceiling. The resulting adjusted interim ceiling shall
be increased by 100% of historical inflation to the
beginning of the faciity’s next fiscal year fo obtain
the new ‘“interim” ceiling, and by 50% of the
forecast inflation to the end of the facility’s next
fiscal year. This action increases the number of
indirect patient care operating cost peer groups fo
a tolal of eight, four peer groups for the area
within the Washingion DC-MD-VA MSA, and four
for the rest of the state.

Licensed Bed Size Ceiling Adjustment

1 to 30 add §1.89
31 to 60 add $1.28
&1 to 80 add $0.62
Over 90 add $0.00

3. Each NF’s Service Intensity Index (SII) shall be
calculated for each semiannual period of a NF's fiscal
year based upon data reported by that NF and
entered into DMAS Long Term Care Information
System (LTCIS). Data will be reported on the
multidimensional assessment form prescribed by DMAS
{now DMAS-95) at the time of admission and then
twice a year for every Medicaid recipient in a NF.
The NF’s SII, derived from the assessmenf data, will
be normalized by dividing it by the average for all
NF's in the staie.

See VR 460-03-4.1944 for the PIRS class siructure, the
relative resource cost assigned to each class, the
“methed of computing each NF's facility score and the
methodology of computing the NF's semiannual SIIs.

4, The normalized SII shall be used to calculate the
initial direct patient care operating cost peer group
medians. It shall also be used to calculate the direct
patient care operating cost prospective ceilings and
direct patient care operating cost prospective rates for
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each semiannual period of a NF's subsequent fiscal
years.

a. The normalized SII, as determined during the
guarter ended September 30, 1990, shall be used fo
calculate the initial direct patient care operating
cost peer group medians.

b. A NFs direct patient care operating cost
prospective ceiling shall be the product of the NF's
peer group direct patient care ceiling and the NF’s
normalized SII for the previous semiannual period.
A NF's direct patient care operating cost prospective
ceiling will be calculated semiannually.

c. An SSI rate adjustment, if any, shall be applied to
a NF’s prospective direct pafient care operating cost
base rate for each semiannual periocd of a NEF'g
fiscal vyear. The SII determined in the second
semiannual period of the previous fiscal year shall
be divided by the average of the previous fiscal
year's 5IIs to determine the SII rate adjustment, if
any, to the first semiannual perigd of the subsequent
fiscal vyear’s prospective direct patient care
operating cost base rate. The SII determined in the
first semiannual pericd of the subsequent fiscal year
shall be divided by the average of the previous
fiscal year’s Slis {0 determine the SII rate
adjustment, if any, to the second semiannual period
of the subsequent fiscal year’s prospective direct
patient care operating cost base rate.

d. See VR 460-03-4.1%44 for an illustration of how
the SII is used to adjust direct patient care
operating ceilings and the semiannual rate
adjustments to the prospective direct patient care
operating cost base rate.

5. An adjustment factor shall be applied to both the
direct patient care and indirect patient care peer
group medians to determine the appropriate initial
peer group ceilings.

a. The DMAS shall calculate the estimated gross NF
reimbursement required for the forecasied number
of NF hed days during fiscal year 1991 under the
prospective paymenit system in effect through
September 30, 1990, as modified to incorporate the
estimated additional NF reimbursement mandated
by the provisions of § 1902(a)(13)(A) of the Social
Security Act as amended by § 4211(b)(1) of the
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1987.

b. The DMAS shall calculate the estimated gross NF
reimbursement reguired for the forecasted number
of NF bed days during FY 1991 under the PIRS
prospective payment system.

¢. The DMAS shall determine the differential
between a and b above and shall adjust the peer
group medians within the PIRS as appropriate to

reduce the differential to zero.

d. The adjusted PIRS peer group medians shall
become the initial peer group ceilings.

B. The allowance for inflation shall be based on the
percentage of change in the moving average of the Skilled
Nursing Facility Market basket of Routine Service Costs, as
developed by Data Resources, Incorporated, adjusted for
Virginia, determined in the quarter in which the NFs
most recent fiscal year ended. NFs shall have their
prospective operating cost ceilings and prospective
operating cost rates established in accordance with the
fotlowing methodology:

1. The initial peer group ceilings established under §
2.7 A shall be the final peer group ceilings for a NF’s
first full or partial fiscal year under PIRS and shall
be considered as the initial “interim ceilings” for
calculating the subsequent fiscal year’s peer group
ceilings. Peer group ceilings for subsequent fiscal
years shall be calculated by adjusting the initial
“interim” ceilings by a “percentage factor” which
shail eliminate any aliowances for inflation after
September 30, 1890, calculated in both §§ 2.7 A 5 a
and 2.7 A 5 c. The adjusted initial "interim” ceilings
shall be considered as the final “interim ceiling.” Peer
group ceilings for subsequent fiscal years shall be
calculated by adjusting the final “interim” ceiling, as
determined above, by 100% of historical inflation from
October 1, 1980, to the beginning of the NFs next
fiscal year to obtain new “interim” ceilings, and 50%
of the forecasted inflation to the end of the NFs next
fiscal year.

2. A NF’s average allowable operating cost rates, as
determined from ifs most recent fiscal year's cost
report, shall be adjusted by 509 of historical inflation
and 509 of the forecasted inflation to calculaie its
prospective operating cost base rates.

C. The PIRS method shall still require comparison of
the prospective operating cost rates to the prospective
operating ceilings. The provider shall be reimbursed the
lower of the prospective operating cost rates or
prospective operating ceilings.

D. Nonoperating costs.

1. Allowable plant costs shall be reimbursed in
accordance with Part II, Article 1. Plant costs shall
not include the component of cost related to making
or producing a supply or service,

2. NATCEPs cost shall be reimbursed in accordance
with Part VII.

E. The prospective rate for each NF shall be based
upon operating cost and plant cost components or charges,
whichever is lower, plus NATCEPs costs. The disallowance
of nonreimbursable operating costs in any current fiscs
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year shall be reflected in a subsequent year's prospective
rate determination. Disallowances of nonreimbursable plant
cosis and NATCEPs costs shall be reflected in the year in
which the nonreimbursable costs are included.

F. For those NFs whose operating cost rates are below
the ceilings, an incentive plan shall be established whereby
a NF shaill be paid, on a sliding scale, up to 25% of the
difference between ifs allowable operafing cost rates and
the peer group ceilings under the PIRS.

1. The table below presents four incentive examples
under the PIRS:

Allowabkle Difference Scale
Peer Group Cost % of Sliding % Dif-
Ceilings Per Day Ceiling Scale ference
$30.00 $27.00 $3.00 10% $ .36 10%
30.00 22.50 7.50 25% 1.88 25%
30.00 20.00 10.00 33% 2.50 25%
30.00 30.00 0 0

2. Separate efficiency incentives shall be caiculated
for both the direct and indirect patient care operating
ceilings and costs. :

G. Quality of care requirement. A cost efficiency
incentive shall not be paid to a NF for the prorated
period of time that it is not in conformance with
substantive, nonwaived life, safety, or quality of care
‘standards.

H. Sale of facility. In the event of the sale of a NF, the
prospective base operating cost rates for the new owner’s
first fiscal period shall be the seller’s prospective base
operating cost rates before the sale,

1. Public notice. To comply with the requirements of §
1902(a)(28)(c) of the Social Security Act, DMAS shall
make available to the public the data and methodology
used in establishing Medicaid payment rates for nursing
facilities. Copies may be obtained by request under the
existing procedures of the Virginia Freedom of Information
Act.

§ 2.8. Phase-in period.

A. To assist NFs in converting to the PIRS methodology,

a phase-in period shall be provided until June 30, 1992,

B. From October 1, 1990, through June 30, 1991, a NF's
prospective operating cost rate shall he a blended rate
calculated at 339 of the PIRS operating cost rates
determined by § 2.7 above and 67% of the “current”
operating rate determined by subsection D below,

C. From July 1, 1991, through June 30, 1992, a NF's
prospective operating cost rate shall be a blended rate
calculated at 67% of the PIRS operating cost rates
determined by § 2.7 above and 33% of the “current”
-.Pperating rate determined by subsection D helow.

D. The following methodology shall
calculate a NF's “current” operating rate:

be applied to

1. Each NF shall receive as its hase “current”
operating rate, the weighted average prospective
operating cost per diems and efficiency incentive per
diems if applicable, calculated by DMAS to be
effective September 30, 1930.

2. The base “current” operating rate established above
shall be the “current” operating rate for the NF’s first
partial fiscal year under PIRS. The base “current”
operating rate shall be adjusted by appropriate
allowance for historical inflation and 509 of the
forecasted inflation based on the methodology
contained in § 2.7 B at the beginning of each of the
NF’s fiscal years which siarts during the phase-in
period, October 1, 1990, through June 30, 1992, to
determine the NF’'s prospective “current” operating
rate. See VR 460-03-4.1944 for example calculations.

§ 28 281 Nursing facility rate change.

For the period beginning July 1, 1991, and ending June
30, 1992, the per diem operating rate for each NF shall be
adjusted. This shall be accomplished by applying a
uniform adjustment factor to the rate of each NF.

Article 3.
Allowable Cost Identification.

§ 2.9. Allowable costs.

Costs which ~ are included in rate determination
procedures and final settlernent shall be only those
allowable, reasonahle costs which are acceptable under the
Medicare principles of reimbursement, except as
specifically modified in the Plan and as may be subject to
individual or ceiling cost limitations and which are
classified in accordance with the DMAS uniform chart of
accounts (see VR 460-03-4.1941, Uniform Expense
Classification).

A. Certification.

The cost of meeting all certification standards for NF
requirements as required by the appropriate state
agencies, by state laws, or by federal legislation or
regulations.

B. Operating costs.

1. Direct patient care operating costs shall be defined
in VR 460-03-4.1941,

2. Allowable direct patient care operating costs shall
exclude (i) personal physician fees, and (ii) pharmacy
services and prescribed legend and nonlegend drugs
provided by nursing facilities which operate licensed
in-house pharmacies. These services shall be billed
directly to DMAS through separate provider

Vol. 11, Issue 1l

Monday, February 20, 1995

1711



Proposed Regulations

agreements and DMAS shall pay directly in
accordance with subsections e and f of Attachment
419 B of the State Plan for Medical Assistance (VR
460-02-4.1920).

3. Indirect patient care operating costs include all
other operating costs, not identified as direct patient
care operating costs and NATCEPs costs in VR
460-03-4.1941, which are allowable under the Medicare
principles of reimbursement, except as specifically
modified herein and as may be subject to individual
cost or ceiling limitations.

C. Allowances/goodwill. Bad debts, goodwill, charity,
courtesy, and all other contractual allowances shall not be
recognized as an allowable cost.

D. Cost of protecting employees from blood borne
pathogens. Effective July 1, 1994, reimbursement of
allowable costs shall be adjusted in the following way to
recognize the costs of complying with requirements of the
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (0SHA) for
protecting employees against exposure (o blood horne
pathogens. i

1. Hepatitis B immunization. The statewide median of
the reasonable acquisition cost per unit of
immunization times the numhber of immunizations
provided io eligible employees during facility fiscal
yvears ending during SFY 1894, divided by Medicaid
days in the same fiscal period, shall be added to the
indirect peer group ceiling effective July 1, 1894. This
increase to the ceilings shall not exceed $.08 per day
for SFY 1995.

2. Other OSHA compliance costs. The indirect peer
group ceilings shall be increased by $.07, effective
July 1, 1884, to recognize continuing OSHA compliance
costs other than immunization.

3. Data submission by nursing facilities. Nursing
facilities shali provide for fiscal years ending during
SFY 1994, on forms provided by DMAS, (i) the names,
job titles and social securily numbers of individuals
immunized, the number of immunizations provided to
each and the dates of immunization; and (ii) the
acquisition cost of immunization,

§ 2.10, Purchases/related organizations.

A, Costs applicable to services, facilities, and supplies
furnished to the provider by organizations related to the
provider by common ownership or control shall he
included in the allowable cost of the provider at the cost
to the related organization, provided that such costs do not
exceed the price of comparable services, facilities or
supplies. Purchases of existing NFs by related parties shall
be governed by the provisions of § 2.5 B 2.

Allowable cost applicable to management services
furnished to the provider by organizations related to the

provider by common ownership or control shall be lesser
of the cost to the related organization or the per patient
day ceiling limitation established for management services
cost.  (See VR  460-03-4.1943, Cost Reimbursement
Limitations.)

B. Related to the provider shail mean that the provider
is related by reasons of common ownership or control by
the organization furnishing the services, [facilities, or
supplies.

C. Common ownership exists when an individual or
individuals or entity or entities possess significant
ownership or equity in the parties to the transaction.
Control exists where an individual or individuals or entity
or entities have the power, directly or indirectly,
significantly to influence or direct the actions or policies
of the parties to the transaction. Significant ownership or
control shall be deemed to exist where an individual is a
“person with an ownership or control interest” within the
meaning of 42 CFR 453101, If the parties to the
transaction are members of an immediate family, as
defined below, the transaction shall be presumed to be
between related parties if the ownership or control by
immediate family members, when aggregated together,
meets the definitions of “common ownership” or ‘‘control,”
as set forth above. Immediate family shall be defined fo
include, but not be limited to, the following: (i) husband
and wife, (il) natural parent, child and sibling, dii)
adopted child and adoptive parent, (iv) step-parent,
step-child, step-sister, and step-brother, (v) father-in-law,
mother-in-law, sgister-in-law, brother-in-law, son-in-law and
daughter-in-law, and (vi) grandparent and grandchild.

D. Exception to the related organization principle.

1. Effective with cost reports having fiscal years
beginning on or after July 1, 1986, an exception to the
related organization principle shall be allowed. Under
" this exception, charges by a related organization to a
provider for goods or services shall be allowable cost
to the provider if all four of the conditions set out
below are met.

2. The exception applies if the provider demonstrates
by convincing evidence to the satisfaction of DMAS
that the following criteria have been met:

a. The supplving organization is a bona fide separate
organization. This means that the supplier is a
geparate sole proprietorship, partnership, joint
venture, association or corporation and noi merely
an operating division of the provider organization.

b. A substantial part of the supplying organization’s
business activity of the type carried on with the
provider is transacted with other organizations not
reiated to the provider and the supplier by common
ownership or control and there is an open,
competitive market for the type of goods or services
furnished by the organization. In determining
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whether the activities are of similar type, it is
important to also consider the scope of the activity.

For example, a full service management contract
would not be considered the same type of business

activity as a minor data processing contract. The’

requirement that there be an open, competitive
market is merely intended fo assure that the item
supplied has a readily discernible price that is
established through arms-length bargaining by well
informed buyers and sellers.

¢c. The goods or services shall be those which
commonly are obtained by institutions such as the
provider from other organizations and are not a
basic element of patient care ordinarily furnished
directly to patients by such institutions. This
requirement means that institutions such as the
provider typically obtain the good or services from
outside sources rather than producing the item
internally.

d. The charge to the provider is in line with the
charge for such services, or supplies in the open
market and no more than the charge made under
comparable circumstances to others by the
organization for such goods or services. The phrase
“open market” takes the same meaning as “open,
competitive market” in subdivision b above.

3. Where all of the conditions of this exception are
met, the charges by the supplier to the provider for
such goods or services shall be allowable as costs.

4. This exception does not apply to the purchase, lease
or construction of assets such as property, buildings,
fixed equipment or major movable equipment. The
terms “goods and services” may not be interpreted or
construed to mean capital costs associated with such
purchases, leases, or construction,

E. Three competitive bids shall not be required for the
building and fixed equipment components of a construction
project ouflined in § 2.2. Reimbursement shall be in
accordance with § 2.10 A with the limitations stated in §
2.2 B

§ 2.11. Administrator/owner compensation.

A. Administrators’ compensaiion, whether administrators
are owners or non-owners, shall be based on a schedule
adopted by DMAS and varied according to facility bed
size. The compensation schedule shall be adjusted annually
to reflect cost-of-living increases and shall be published
and distributed to providers annually. The administrator’s
compensation schedule covers only the position of
administrator and assistants and does not include the
compensation of owners employed in capacities other than
the NF administrator (see VR 460-03-4.1943, Cost
Reimbursement Limitations).

B. Administrator compensation shall mean remuneration
paid regardless of the form in which it is paid. This
includes, but shall not be limited to, salaries, professional
fees, insurance premiums (if the benefits accrue to the
employer/owner or his beneficiary) director fees, personal
use of automobiles, consultant fees, management fees,
travel allowances, relocation expenses in excess of IRS
guidelines, meal allowances, bonuses, pension plan costs,
and deferred compensation plans. Management = fees,
consulting fees, and other services performed by owners
shall he included in the tofal compensation if they are
performing administrative duties regardless of how such
services may be classified by the provider.

C. Compensation for all administrators (owner and
nonowner) shall be based upon a 40-hour week fo
determine reasonableness of compensation.

D. Owner/administrator employment documentiation.

1. Owners who perform services for a NF as an
administrator and also perform additional duties must
maintain adequate documentation to shew that the
additional duties were performed beyond the normal
40 hour week as an administrator. The additional
duties must be necessary for the operation of the NF
and related to patient care.

2. Services provided by owners, whether in employee
capacity, through management contracts, or through
home office relationships shall be compared to the
cost and services provided in arms-length transactions.

3. Compensation for such services shall be adjusted
where such compensaticn exceeds that paid in such
arms-length transactions or where there is a
duplication of duties normally rendered by an
administrator. No reimbursement shall be ailowed for
compensation where owner services cannot be
documenied and audited.

§ 2.12. Depreciation.

The allowance for depreciation shall be restricted to the
straight line method with a useful life in compliance with
AHA guidelines. If the item is not included in the AHA
guidelines, reasonableness shall be applied to determine
useful life.

§ 2.13. Rent/Leases.

Rent or lease expenses shall be limited by the
provisions of VR 460-03-4.1942, Leasing of Facilities.

§ 2.14. Provider payments,
A. Limitations.
1. Payments to providers, shall not exceed charges for

covered services except for (i) public providers
furnishing services free of charge or at a nominal
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charge (ii) nonpublic provider whose charges are 60%
or less of the allowable reimbursement represented by
the charges and that demonstrates its charges are less
than allowable reimbursement because its customary
practice is to charge patienis based on their ability to
pay. Nominal charge shall be defined as total charges
that are 60% or less of the allowable reimbursement
of services represented by fhese charges. Providers
qualifying in this section shall receive allowable
reimbursement as determined in this Plan.

2. Allowable reimbursement in excess of charges may
ke carried forward for payment in the two succeeding
cost reporiing periods. A new provider may carry
forward unreimbursed allowable reimbursement in the
five succeeding cost reporting periods.

3. Providers may be reimbursed the carry forward to
a succeeding cost reporting period (i) if total charges
for the services provided in that subsequent period
exceed the total allowable reimbursement in that
period (ii) to the extent that the accumulation of the
carry forward and the allowable reimbursement in
that subsequent peried do not exceed the providers
direct and indirect care operating ceilings plus
allowable plant cost.

B. Payment for service shall be based upon the rate in
effect when the service was rendered.

C. For cost reports filed on or after August 1, 1992, an
interim settlement shall be made by DMAS within 180
days after receipt and review of the cost report. The
180-day time frame shall similarly apply to cost reports
filed but not interim settled as of August 1, 1992. The
word “review,” for purposes of interim settlement, shall
include verification that all financial and other data
specifically requested by DMAS is submitied with the cost
report. Review shall also mean examination of the cost
report and other required submission for obvicus errors,
inconsistency, inclusion of past disaliowed costs, unresolved
prior year cost adjustments and a complete signed cost
report that conforms to the current DMAS requirements
herein.

However, an interim settlement shall not be made when
one of the following conditions exists.

1. Cost report filed by a terminated provider;

2. Insclvency of the provider at the time: the cost
repori is submitted;

3. Lack of =&
decertification,

valid provider agreement and

4, Moneys owed to DMAS;
5. Errors or inconsistencies in the cost report; or

6. Incomplete/nonacceptable cost report. -

§ 2.15. Legal fees/accounting,

A. Costs claimed for legal/accounting fees shall be
limited to reasonable and customary fees for specific
gervices rendered. Such costs must be related to patient
care as defined by Medicare principles of reimbursement
and subject to applicable regulations herein.
Documentation for legal costs must be available at the
time of audit.

B. Retainer fees shall be considered an allowable cost
up to the limits established in VR 460-03-4.1943, Cost
Reimbursement Limitations.

C. As mandated by the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation
Act of 1990, effective November 5, 1990, reimbursement of
legal expenses for frivolous litigation shall be denied if the
action is initiated on or after November 5, 1990. Frivolous
litigation is any action initiated by the nursing facility that
is dismissed on the basis that no reasonable legal ground
existed for the institution of such action.

§ 2.16. Documentation.

Adequate documentation supporting cost claims must be
provided at the time of interim settlement, cost settlement,
audit, and final settlement.

§ 2.17. Fraud and abuse.

Previgusly disaliowed costs which are under appeal and
affect more than one cost reporting period shall be
disclosed in subsequent cost reports if the provider wishes
to reserve appeal rights for such subsequent cost reports.
The reimbursement effect of such appealed costs shall be
computed by the provider and submitted to DMAS with
the cost report. Where such disclosure is not made to
DMAS, the inclusion of previously disallowed costs may be
referred to the Medicaid Fraud Control Unit of the Office
of the Attorney General. .

Article 4.
New Nursing Facilities.

§ 2.18. Interim rate.

A. For all new or expanded NFs the 959 occupancy
requirement shall be waived for establishing the first cost
reporting period interim rate. This first cost reporting
period shall not exceed 12 months from the date of the
NF’s certification.

B. Upen a showing of good cause, and approval of the
DMAS, an existing NF that expands its bed capacity by
509, or more shall have the option of retaining its
prospective rate, or being treated as a new NF.

C. The 959% occupancy requirement shall be applied to
the first and subsequenti cost reporting periods’ actual costs
for establishing such NIF’s second and future cost reporting
periods’ prospective reimbursement rates. The 959
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occupancy reguirement shall be considered as having been
satisfied if the new NF achieved a 959 occupancy at any
point in time during the first cost reporting period.

D. A new NF's inferim rate for the first cost reporting
period shall be determined based upon the lower of its
anticipated allowable cost determined from a detailed
budget (or pro forma cost report) prepared by the
provider and accepted by the DMAS, or the appropriate
operating ceilings or charges.

E. On the first day of iis second cost reporfing period, a
new nursing facility's interim plant rate shall be converted
to a per diem amount by dividing it by the number of
patient days computed as 8595 of the daily licensed bed
complement during the first cost reporting period.

¥. Any NF receiving reimbursement under new NF
status shall not be eligible to receive the blended phase-in
pericd rate under § 2.8.

G. Dwuring its first semiannual period of operation, a
newly construcied or newly enrolled NF shall have an
assigned 5II based upon iis peer group’s average SII for
direct patient care. An expanded NF receiving new NF
treatment shall receive the SII calculated for its last
semiannual period prior to obtaining new NF status.

& 2.19. Final rate.

The DMAS shail reimburse the lower of the appropriate
operating ceilings, charges or actbal allowable cost for a
new NEF's first cost reporting period of operation, subject
to the procedures outlined above in § 218 A, C, E, and F.

Upon determination of the actual allowable operating
cost for direct patient care and indirect patient care the
per diem amounts shall be used to determine if the
provider is below the peer group ceiling used to set its
interim rate. If cosis are below those ceilings, an
efficiency incentive shall be paid at settlement of the first
year cost report.

This incentive will allow a NF to be paid up to 259% of
the difference between ifs actual allowable operating cost
and the peer group ceiling used to set the interim rate.
(Refer io § 2.7 F.)

Article 5.
Cost Reports.

§ 2.20. Cost report submission,

A, Cost reports are due not later than 90 days after the
provider's fiscal vear end. If a complete cost report is not
received within 90 days after the end of the providers
fiscal year, it is considered delinquent. The cost report
shall he deemed complete for the purpose of cost
settlement when DMAS has received all of the following,
~ with the exception that the audited financial statements
required by subdivisions 3 a and 6 b of this subsection

shall be considered timely filed if received not later than
120 days after the provider's fiscal year end:

1. Completed cost reporting formi(s)
DMAS, with signed certification(s);

provided by

2. The provider's trial
journal entries;

balance showing adjusting

3. a. The provider's audited financial statements
including, but not limited to, a balance sheet, a
statement of income and expenses, a statement of
retained earnings (or fund balance), a statement of
cash flows, the auditor’s report in which he expresses
his opinion or, if circumstances require, disclaims an
opinion based on generally accepted auditing
standards, footnotes to the financial statements, and
the management report. Multi-facility providers shall
be governed by § 2.20 A 6;

b. Schedule of restricted cash funds that identify the
purpose of each fund and the amount;

c. Schedule of investments by type (stock, bond,
etc.), amount, and current market value;

4. Schedules which reconcile financial statements and
frial balance to expenses claimed in the cost report;

5. Depreciation schedule;

6. NFs which are part of a chain organization must
also file:

a. Home office cost report;

b. Audited consolidated financial staiemenis of the
chain organization including the auditor’s report in
which he expresses his opinion or, if circumstances
require, disclaims an opinion based on generally
accepted auditing standards, the management report
and footnotes to the financial statements;

¢. The NFs financial statements including, but not
limited to, a balance sheet, a statement of income
and expenses, a statement of retained earnings (or
fund balance), and a statement of cash flows;

d. Schedule of restricted cash funds that identify the
purpose of each fund and the amount;

e. Schedule of investments by type (stock, bond,
etc.), amount, and current market value; and

7. Such other analytical information or supporting
documentation that may be required by DMAS.

B. When cost rteports are delinquent, the provider's
interim rate shall be reduced hy 209 the first month and
an additional 209, of the original interim rate for each
subsequent month the report has not been submitted.
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DMAS shall notify the provider of the schedule of
reductions which shall start onr the f{first day of the
following month. For example, for a September 30 fiscal
yvear end, notification will be mailed in early January
stating that payments will be reduced starting with the
first payment in February.

C. After the overdue cost report I8 received, desk
reviewed, and a new prospective rate established, the
amounts withheld shall be computed and paid. If the
provider fails to submit a complete cost report within 180
days after the fiscal year end, a penalty in the amount of
109, of the balance withheld shall be forfeited to DMAS.

§ 2.21. Reporiing form.

All cost reports shall be submitied on uniform reporting
forms provided by the DMAS, or by Medicare if
applicable. Such cost reports, subsequent fo the initial cost
report period, shall cover a 12-monih period. Any
exceptions must be approved by the DMAS.

§ 2.22. Accounting method.

The accrual method of accounting and cost reporting is
mandated for ail providers.

§ 2.23. Cost report extensions.

A. Extension for submission of a cost report may be
granted if the provider can document extraordinary
circumstances beyond its conirol.

B. Extracrdinary circumstances do not include:

1. Absence or changes of chief finance officer,
controller or bookkeeper;

2. Financial statements not completed;
3. Office or building renovations;
4. Home office cost report not completed;
5. Change of stock ownership;
6. Change of intermediary;
7. Conversion to computer; or
8. Use of reimbursement specialist.
§ 2.24. Fiscal year changes.

All fiscal year end changes must be approved 90 days
pricr to the beginning of a new fiscal year.

Article 6.
Prospeciive Rates.

& 2.25. Time frames.

A. For cost reports filed on or after August 1, 1992, a
prospective rate shall bhe determined by DMAS within 90
days of the receipt of a complete cost report. (See § 2.20
Ay The 180-day time frame shall similarly apply to cosi
reports filed but for which a prospective rate has not been
set as of August 1, 1992. Rate adjusiments shall be made
refroactive to the first day of the provider's new cost
reporting year. Where a field audit is necessary to set a
prospective rate, the DMAS shall have an additional 90
days to determine any appropriate adjustmentis to the
prospective rate as a result of such field audit. This time
period shall be extended if delays are attributed to the
provider.

B. Subsequent to establishing the prospective rate DMAS
shall conclude the desk audit of a providers' cost report
and determine if further field audit activity is necessary.
The DMAS will seek repayment or make retroactive
settlements when audit adjustments are made to costs
claimed for reimbursement.

Article 7.
Retrospective rates.

§ 2.26. The retrospective method of reimbursement shall
be used for Mental Health/Mental Retardation facilities.

§ 2.27. (reserved)

Article 8.
Record Retention.

§ 2.28. Time frames.

A. All of the NF’s accounting and related records,
including the general ledger, books of original eniry, and
statistical data must be maintained for a minimum of five
years, or until alt affected cost reports are final settled.

B. Certain information musi be maintained for the
duration of the provider’s participation in the DMAS and
until such time as all cost reports are seitled. Examples of
such information are set forth in § 2.29.

§ 2.29, Types of records to be maintained.
Information which must be maintained for the duration
of the provider's participation in the DMAS inciudes, but is

not limited tfo:

I. Real and tangible property records, including Ieases
and the underlying cost of ownership;

2. Itemized depreciation schedules;

3. Mortgage documents, loan
amortization schedules;

agreements, and

4. Copies of all cost reports filed with the DMAS
together with supporting financial statements,
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§ 2.30. Record availability.

The records musi be available for audits by DMAS staff.
Where such records are not available, costs shall be
disallowed,

Article 9.
Audits.
& 2.31. Audit overview.
Desk audits shall be performed to verify the

completeness and accuracy of the cost report, and
reasonableness of costs claimed for reimbursement, Field
audits, as determined necessary by the DMAS, shall be
performed on the records of each participating provider to
determine that costs included for reimbursement were
accurately determined and reasonable, and do not exceed
the ceilings or other reimbursement limitations established
by the DMAS.

§ 2.32. Scope of audit.

The scope of the audit includes, but shall not be limited
to: trial balance verification, analysis of fixed assets,
indebtedness, selected revenues, leases and the underlying
cost of ownership, rentals and other contractual
obligations, and costs to related organizations. The audit
scope may also include various other analyses and studies
relating to issues and questions unique to the NF and
identified by the DMAS. Census and related siatistics,
patient trust funds, and billing procedures are also subject
to audit.

§ 2.33. Field audit requirements.
Field audits shall be required as follows:
1. For the first cost report on all new NF's,

2. For the first cost report in which costs for bed
additions or other expansions are included.

3. When a NF is sold, purchased, or leased.
4. As determined by DMAS desk audit.
§ 2.34. Provider notification.

The provider shall be notified in writing of all
adjustments to be made to a cost report resulting from
desk or field audit with stated reasons and references to
the appropriate principies of reimbursement or other
appropriate regulatory cites.

§ 2.35. Field audit exit conference.

A. The provider shall be offered an exit conference to
be executed within 15 days following completion of the
on-site audit activities, unless other time frames are
“mutually agreed to by the DMAS and provider. Where two

or more providers are part of a chain organization or
under common ownership, DMAS shall have up to 90 days
after completion of all related on-site audit activities to
offer an exit conference for all such NFs. The exit
conference shall be conducted at the site of the audit or
at a location mutually agreeable to the DMAS and the
provider.

B. The purpose of the exit conference shall be to enable
the DMAS auditor to discuss such matters as the auditor
deems necessary, to review the proposed field audit
adjustments, and to present supportive references. The
provider will be given an opportunity during the exit
conference to present additional documentation and
agreement or disagreement with the audit adjustments.

C. Al remaining adjustments, including those for which
additional documentation is insufficient or not accepied by
the DMAS, shall be applied to the applicable cost report(s)
regardless of the provider’'s approval or disapproval.

D. The provider shall sign an exit conference form that
acknowledges the review of proposed adjustments.

E. After the exit conference the DMAS shall perform a
review of all remaining field audit adjusiments. Within a
reasonable fime and after all documents have been
submitted by the provider, the DMAS shall transmit in
writing fo the provider a final field audit adjustment
report (FAAR), which will include all remaining
adjustments not resclved during the exit conference. The
provider shall have 15 days from the date of the letter
which transmits the FAAR, to submif any additional
documentation which may affect adjustments in the FAAR.

§ 2.36. Audit delay.

In the event the provider delays or refuses to permit an
audit to occur or to continue or otherwise interferes with
the audit process, payments to the provider shall be
reduced as stated in § 2.20 B.

§ 2.37. Field audit time frames.

A, If a field audit is necessary after receipt of a
complete cost report, such audit shall be initiated within
three years following the date of the last notification of
program reimbursement and the on site activities,
including exit conferences, shall be concluded within 180
days from the date the field audit begins. Where audits
are performed on cost reports for mulliple years or
providers, the time frames shall be reasonably extended
for the benefit of the DMAS and subject to the provisions
of § 2.35.

B. Documentied delays on the part of the provider will
automatically extend the above time frames to the extent
of the time delayed,

C. Extensions of the time frames shall be granted to the
department for good cause shown.
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D. Disputes relating to the timeliness established in §§
2.35 and 2.37, or to the grant of exitensions to the DMAS,
shall be resolved by application to the Director of the
DMAS or his designee.

PART IIL
APPEALS.

§ 3.1. Dispute resolution for nonstate operated nursing
facilities.

A. NF's have the righi fo appeal the DMAS's
interpretation and application of state and federal
Medicaid and applicable Medicare principles of
reimbursement in accordance Wwith the Adminisirative
Process Act, § 9-6.14.1 et seq. and § 32.1-325.1 of the Code
of Virginia.

B. Nonappealable issues.

1. The use of state and federal Medicaid and
applicable Medicare principles of reimbursement.

2. The organization of participating NF’'s into peer
groups according fo location as a proxy for cost
variation across facilities with similar operating
characteristics, The use of individual ceilings as a
proxy for determining efficient operation within each
peer group.

3. Calculation of the initial peer group -ceilings using
the most recent cost settled data available to DMAS
that reflects NF operating costs inflated to September
30, 1960,

4, The use of the moving average of the Skilled
Nursing Facility market basket of routine service
costs, as developed by Data Resources, Incerporated,
adjusted for Virginia, as the prospective escalator.

5. The establishment of separate ceilings for direct
operating costs and indirect operating cosis.

6. The use of Service Intensity Indexes to identify the
resource needs of given NFs patient mix relative to
the needs present in other NFs.

7. The development of Service Intensity Indexes based
on:

a. Determination of resource indexes for each
patient class that measures relative resource cost.

b. Determination of each NF's average relative
resource cost index across all patienis,

c. Standardizing the average relative resource cost
indexes of each NF across all NF’s.

8. The use of the DMAS Long Term Care Information
System (LTCIS), assessment form (currently DMAS-95),

Virginia Center on Aging Study, the State of Maryland
Time and Motion Study of the Provision of Nursing
Service in Long Term Care Facilifies, and the KPMG
Peat Marwick Survey of Virginia long-term care NF's
nursing wages to determine the patient class sysiem
and resource indexes for each patient class.

9. The establishment of payment rates based on
service intensity indexes.

§ 3.2. Conditions for appeal.

An appeal shall not be heard until the Tfollowing
conditions are met:

1. Where appeals result from desk or field audit
adjustments, the provider shall have received a
notification of program reimbursement (NPR) in
writing from the DMAS. .

2. Any and all moneys due to DMAS shall be paid in
full, unless a repayment plan has been agreed to by
the Director of the Division of Cost Settlement and
Audit.

3. ANl first level appeal requests shall be filed in
writing with the DMAS within 90 business days
following the date of a DMAS notice of program
reimbursement that adjustments have been made to a
specific cost report,

§ 3.3. Appeal procedure.
A. There shall be two levels of administrative appeal.

B. Informal appeals shall be decided by the Director of
the Division of Cost Settlement and Audit after an
informal fact finding conference is held. The decision of
the Director of Cost Settlement and Audif shall be sent in
writing to the provider within 90 business days following
conclusion of the informal fact finding conference.

C. If the provider disagrees with such initial decision the
provider may, at its discretion, file a notice of appeal to
the Director of the DMAS. Such notice shall be in writing
and filed within 30 business days of the date of the initial
decision,

D. Within 30 business days of the date of such notice of
appeal, the director shall appoint a hearing officer to
conduct the proceedings, fo review the issues and the
evidence presented, and to make a written
recommendation.

E. The director shall notify the provider of his final
decision within 30 business days of the date of the
appointed hearing officer's written recommendation, or
after the parties have filed exceptions to the
recommendations, whichever is later.

F. The director's final written decision shall conclude
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the provider’s administrative appeal.
§ 3.4. Formal hearing procedures.

Formal hearing procedures, as developed by DMAS,
shall contro! the conduct of the formal administrative
proceedings.

§ 3.5. Appeals time frames.

Appeal time frames noted throughout this section may
be extended for the following reasons;

A. The provider submits a written request prior to the
due date requesting an extension for good cause and the
DMAS approves the extension.

B. Pelays on the part of the NF documented by the
DMAS shall automatically extend DMAS's time frame to
the extent of the time delayed.

C. Extensions of time frames shall be granted to the
DMAS for good cause shown.

D. When appeals for multiple years are submitted by a
NF or a chain organization or common owners are
coordinating appeals for more than one NF, the time
frames shail be reasonably extended for the benefit of the
DMAS.

E. Disputes relating to the time lines established in § 3.3
B or to the grant of extensions to the DMAS shall be
resolved by application to the Director of the DMAS or his
designee.

§ 3.6. Dispute resolution for state-operated NFs.
A. Definitions.

“DAMAS” means the Department of Medical Assistance
Services,

“Division direcfor” means the director of a division of
DMAS.

“State-operated provider” means a provider of Medicaid
services which is enrolled in the Medicaid pregram and
operated by the Commeonwealth of Virginia.

B. Right to request reconsideration.

1. A state-operated provider shall have the right to
request a reconsideration for any issue which would
be otherwise administratively appealable under the
State Plan by a nonstate operated provider. This shall
be the sole procedure available {o state-operated
providers.

2. The appropriate DMAS division must receive the
reconsideration request within 30 business days after
the date of a DMAS Notice of Amount of Program

Reimbursement, notice of proposed action, findings
letter, or other DMAS notice giving rise to a dispute.

C. Informal review. The state-operated provider shall
submit to the appropriate DMAS division written
information specifying the nature of the dispute and the
relief sought. If a reimbursement adjustment is sought, the
writfen information must include the nature of the
adjustment sought, the amount of the adjustment sought;
and the reasons for seeking the adjustment. The division
director or his designee shall review this information,
requesting additional information as necessary. If either
party so requests, they may meet to discuss a resolution.
Any designee shall then recommend to the division
director whether relief is appropriate in accordance with
applicable law and regulations,

D. Division director action. The division director shall
consider any recommendation of his designee and shall
render a decision.

F. DMAS director review. A state-operated provider
may, within 30 business days after the date of the
informal review decision of the division director, request
that the DMAS Director or his designee review the
decision of the division director. The DMAS Director shall
have the authority to take whatever measures he deems
appropriate to resolve the dispute.

F. Secretarial review. If the preceding steps do not
resolve the dispute to the satisfaction of the state-operated
provider, within 30 business days after the date of the
decision of the DMAS Director, the provider may request
the DMAS director to refer the maftter to the Secretary of
Health and Human Resources and any oiher cabinet
secretary as appropriate. Any determination by such
secretary or secretaries shall be final.

PART IV.
INDIVIDUAL EXPENSE LIMITATION.

In addition to operating costs being subject to peer
group ceilings, costs are further subject to maximum
limitations as defined in VR 460-03-4.1943, Cost
Reimbursement Limitations.

PART V.
COST REPORT PREPARATION INSTRUCTIONS.

Instructions for preparing NF cost
provided by the DMAS.

reports will be

PART VI,
STOCK TRANSACTIONS.

§ 6.1. Stock acquisition.

The acquisition of the capital stock of a provider does
not constitute a basis for revaluation of the provider’s
assets. Any cost associated with such an acquisition shall
not be an allowable cost. The provider selling its stock
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continues as a provider after the sale, and the purchaser
is onlty a stockholder of the provider.

§ 6.2. Merger of unrelated parties.

A. In the case of a merger which combines two or more
unrelated corporations under the regulations of the Code
of Virginia, there will be only one surviving corporation. If
the surviving corporation, which will own the assets and
liabilities of the merged corporation, i$ not a provider, a
Certificate of Public Need, if applicable, must be issued to
the surviving corporation.

B. The nonsurviving corporation shall be subject to the
policies applicable to terminated providers, including those
relating to gain or loss on sales of NFs,

§ 6.3. Merger of related parties.

The statufory merger of two or more related parties or
the consolidation of two or more related providers
resulting in a new corporate entity shall be treated as a
transaction between related parties. No revaluation shall
he permitted for the surviving corporation.

PART VIL
NURSE AIDE TRAINING ANDP COMPETENCY
EVALUATION PROGRAM AND COMPETENCY
EVALUATION PROGRAMS (NATCEPs).

§ 7.1, The Omnibus Budgel Reconciliation Act of 1959.

The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1989 (OBRA
89) amended § 1903(a)(2)(B) of the Social Security Act to
fund actual NATCEPs costs incurred by NFS separafely
from the NF's medical assistance services reimbursement
rates.

§ 7.2, NATCEPs costs.

A, NATCEPs defined in VR

460-03-4.1941.

costs shall bhe as

B. To calculate the reimbursement rate, NATCEPs costs
contained in the meost recently filed cost report shall be
converted to a per diem amouni by dividing allowable
NATCEPs costs by the actual number of NF's patient days.

C. The NATCEPs interim reimbursement rate
determined in § 7.2 B shall be added to the prospective
operating cost and plant cost components or charges,
whichever is lower, to determine the NF’'s prospective
rate. The NATCEPs interim reimbursement rate shall not
be adjusted for inflation.

D. Reimbursement of NF costs for iraining and
competency evaluation of nurse aldes must take info
account the NF's use of irained nurse aides in caring for
Medicaid, Medicare and private pay patients. Medicaid
shall not be charged for that portion of NATCEPs costs
which are properly charged to Medicare or private pay

services, The final retrospective reimbursement for
NATCEPs costs shall be the reimbursement rate as
calculated from the mast recently filed cest report by the
methodelogy in § 7.2 B times the Medicaid patient days
from the DMAS MMR-240.

E. Disallowance of nonreimbursable NATCEPs costs shalf
be reflected in the year im which the nonreimbursable
costs were claimed.

F. Payments to providers for allowable NATCEPS costs
shall not be considered in the comparison of the lower
allowable reimbursement or charges for covered services,
as outlined in § 2.14 A.

PART VHI
CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECKS FOR NURSING
FACILITY EMPLOYEES.

& 8.1. Criminal records checks,

A. This section implements the requirements of §
32.1-126.01 of the Code of Virginia and Chapter 994 of the
Acts of Assembly of 1993 (Item 313 T).

B A
compensated
convicted of:

licensed nursing
employment

facility shall not hire for
persons who have been

1. Murder;

2. Abduction for immoral purposes as set out in §
18.2-48 of the Code of Virginia;

3. Assaults and bodily woundings as set out in Article
4 (§ 18.2-51 et seq.) of Chapler 4 of Title 18.2 of the
Code of Virginia;

4. Arson as set out in Articie 1 (§ 18.2-77 et seq.) of
Chapter 5 of Title 18.2 of the Code of Virginia;

5. Pandering as sef out in § 18.2-355 of the Code of
Virginia;

6. Crimes against nature involving children as set ouf
in § 18.2-361 of the Code of Virginia;

7. Taking indeéent liberties with children as set out in
§§ 18.2-370 or 18.2-370.1 of the Code of Virginia;

8. Abuse and neglect of children as set out in §
18.2-371.1 of the Code of Virginia;

9. Failure to secure medical attention for an injured
child as set out in § 18.2-314 of the Code of Virginia;

10. Obscenity offenses as set out in & 18.2-374.1 of the
Code of Virginia; or

11. Abuse or neglect of an incapacitated aduli as set
out in § 18.2-369 of the Code of Virginia.
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C. The provider shall obtain a sworn statement or
affirmation from every applicant disclosing any criminal
convictions or pending criminal charges for any of the
offenses specified in subsection B regardless of whether
the conviction or charges occurred in the Commonwealth.

D. The provider shall obfain an originai criminal record
clearance or an original criminal record history from the
Central Criminal Records Exchange for every person
hired. This informafion shall be obtained within 30 days
from the date of employment and maintained in the
employees’ files during the term of employment and for a
minimum of five years after employment terminates for
whatever reason.

E. The provider may hire an applicant whose
misdemeanor conviction is more than five years old and
whose conviction did not involve abuse or neglect or
moral turpitude.

F. Reimbursement to the provider will he handled
through the cost reporiing form provided by the DMAS
and will be limited to the actual charges made by the
Central Criminal Records Ezxchange for the records
requested. Such actual charges will be a pass-through cost
which is not a part of the operating or plant cost
components. :

PART IX.
USE OF MMR-240.

All providers must use the data from computer printout
MMR-240 hased upon a 60-day accrual period.

PART X.
COMMINGLED INVESTMENT INCOME,
DMAS shail freat funds commingled for investment
purposes in accordance with PRM-15, § 202.6.

PART XI
PROVIDER NOTIFICATION.

DMAS shall notify providers of State Plan changes
affecting reimbursement 30 days prior to the enactment of
such changes.

PART XII.
START-UP COSTS AND ORGANIZATIONAL COSTS.

§ 12.1, Stari-up costs.

A. In the period of. developing a provider’s ability to
furnish patieni care services, certain costs are incurred.
The costs incurred during this time of preparation are
referred to as start-up costs. Since these costs are related
to patient care services rendered after the time of
preparation, they shall be capitalized as deferred charges
and amortized over a 60-month time frame.

B. Start-up costs may include, but are net limited to,

administrative and nursing salaries; heat, gas, and
electricity; taxes, insurance; employee training costs;
repairs and maintenance, housekeeping, and any other
allowable costs incident to the start-up period. However,
any costs that are properly identifiable as operating costs
must be appropriately classified as such and excluded
from start-up costs.

C. Start-up costs that are incurred immediately before a
provider enters the Program and that are determined by
the provider, subject to the DMAS approval, to be
immaterial need not be capitalized but rather may be
charged to operations in the first cost reporting period.

D. Where a provider incurs start-up costs while in the
Program and these costs are defermined by the provider,
subject to the DMAS approval, to be immaterial, these
costs shall not be capitalized but shall be charged to
operations in the periods incurred.

§ 12.2. Applicability.

A, Start-up cost fime frames.

1. Start-up costs are incurred from the time
preparation begins on a newly constructed or
purchased huilding, wing, floor, unif, or expansion

thereof to the time the first patient (whether Medicaid
or non-Medicaid) is admitted for treatment, or where
the start-up costs apply only to nonrevenue producing
patient care functions or nonallowable functions, to the
time the areas are used for their intended purposes.

2, If a provider intends to prepare all poriions of its
entire facility at the same time, start-up costs for all
portions of the facility shall be accumulated in a
single deferred charge account and shall be amortized
when the first patient is admitted for treatment.

3. If a provider intends to prepare portions of its
facility on a piecemeal basis (i.e, preparation of a
fioor or wing of a providers facility is delayed),
start-up costs shall be capitalized and amortized
separately for the portion or portions of the provider's
facility prepared during different time periods.

4, Moreover, if a provider expands its NF by
constructing or purchasing additional buildings or
wings, start-up cosis shall be capitalized and amortized
separately for these areas.

B. Depreciation time frames.

1. Costs of the provider's facility and building
equipment shall be depreciated using the straight line
method over the lives of these asseis starting with the
month the first patient is admitted for treatment

2. Where portions of the provider's NF are prepared
for patient care services after the initial start-up
period, those asset costs applicable to each portion
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shall be depreciated over the remaining lives of the
applicable assets. If the portion of the NF is a
nenrevenue-producing patient care area or
nonallowable area, depreciation shall begin when the
area is opened for its intended purpose. Costs of
major movable equipment, however, shall be
depreciated over the useful life of each item starting
with the month the item is placed into operation.

§ 12.3. Organizational costs.

A. Organizational costs are those costs directly incident
to the creation of a corporation or other form of business.
These costs are an intangible asset in that they represent
expenditures for rights and privileges which have a value
to the enterprise. The services inherent in organizational
costs extend over more than one accounting period and
thus affect the costs of future periods of operations.

B. Allowable organizational costs shall include, but not
be limited to, legal fees incurred in establishing the
corporation or other organization (such as drafting the
corporate charter and by-laws, legal agreements, minutes

of organizational meeting, terms of original stock
certificates), necessary accounting fees, expenses of
temporary directors and organizational meetings of

directors and stockholders and fees paid to states for
incorporation.

C. The following types of costs shall not be considered
allowable organizational costs: costs relating to the issuance
and sale of shares of capital stock or other securities, such
as underwriters fees and commissions, accountant’s or
lawyer's fees, cost of qualifying the issues with the
appropriate state or federal authorities, stamp taxes, etc.

D. Allowabie organization c¢osts shall
capitalized by the organization. However, if DMAS
conciudes that these cosis are not material when
compared to total allowable costs, they may be included in
allowable indirect operating cosis for the initial cost
reporting period. In all other circumstances, allowable
organization costs shall be amortized ratably over a period
of 60 months starting with the month the first patient is
admiited for treatment.

generally be

PART XIIIL
DMAS AUTHORIZATION.

§ 13.1. Access to records.

A. DMAS shall be authorized fo request and review,
either through a desk or field audit, all information
related to the provider's cost report that is necessary to
ascertain the propriety and allocation of costs (in
accordance with Medicare and Medicaid rules, regulations,
and limitations) to patient care and nonpatient care
activities,

B. Examples of such information shall include, but net
be limited to, all accounting records, morigages, deeds,

contracts, meeting minuies, salary schedules, home office
services, cost reports, and financial statements.

C. This access also applies t¢ related organizations as
defined in § 2.10 who provide assets and other goods and
services to the provider.

PART XIV.
HOME OFFICE COSTS.

§ 14.1. General.

Home office costs shall be allowabie to the extent they
are reasonable, relate io patient care, and provide cost
savings o the provider.

§ 14.2. Purchases.

Provider purchases from related organizations, whether
for services, or suppiies, shall be limited to the lower of
the related organizations actual cost or the price of
comparable purchases made elsewhere.

§ 14.3. Allocation of home office costs.

Home office costs shall be allocated in accordance with
§ 2150.3, PRM-15.

§ 14.4. Nonrelated management services.

Home office costs associated with providing management
services o monrelated entities shall not be recognized as
allowable reimbursable cost.

§ 14.5. Allowable and nonallowable home office costs.

Altowable and nonallowable home office costs shall be
recognized in accordance with § 2150.2, PRM-15.

§ 14.6. Equity capital.

Item 398 D of the 1987 Appropriation Act (as amended),
effective April 8, 1987, eliminated reimbursement of return
on equity capital to proprieiary providers for periods or
portions thereof on or after July 1, 1987.

PART XV.
REFUND OF OVERPAYMENTS.

§ 15.1. Lump sum payment.

When the provider files a cost report indicating that an
overpayment has occurred, full refund shall be remitted
with the cost report. In cases where DMAS discovers an
overpayment during desk audit, field audit, or final
settlement, DMAS shall promptly send the first demand
letfer requesting a lump sum refund. Recovery shall be
undertaken even though the provider dispuies in whole or
in part DMAS' determination of the overpayment.

& 15.2. Offset.
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If the provider has been overpaid for a particular fiscal
year and has been underpaid for another fiscal year, the
underpayment shall be offset against the overpayment. So
long as the provider has an overpayment balance, any
underpayments discovered by subsequent review or audit
shall be used to reduce the balance of the overpayment.

§ 15.3. Payment schedule.

A. If the provider cannot refund the total amount of the
overpayment (i) at the time it files a cost report
indicating that an overpayment has occurred, the provider
shall request in writing an extended repayment schedule
at the time of filing, or (ii) within 30 days after receiving
the DMAS demand letter, the provider shall prompily
request in writing an extended repayment schedule,

B. DMAS may establish a repayment schedule of up to
12 months to recover all or part of an overpayment or, if
a provider demonstrates that repayment within a 12-month
peried would create severe financial hardship, the Director
of DMAS may approve a repayment schedule of up to 36
months.

C. A provider shall have no more than one extended
repayment schedule in place at ome time. If subsequent
audits identify additional overpayment, the full amount
shall be repaid within 30 days unless the provider submits
further documentation supporting a modification to the
existing extended repayment schedule to include the
additional amounts.

D. If, during the time an extended repayment schedule
is in effect, the provider ceases to be a participaling
provider or fails to file a cost report in a timely manner,
the outstanding balance shall become immediately due and
payable.

E. When a repayment schedule is used to recover only
part of an overpayment, the remaining amount shall he
recovered from inferim payments to the provider or by
lump sum payments.

§ 15.4. Extension request documentation.

In the written request for an extended repayment
schedule, the provider shall document the need for an
extended (beyond 30 days) repayment and submit a
written proposal scheduling the dates and amounts of
repayments, If DMAS approves the schedule, DMAS shail
send the provider written notification of the approved
repayment schedule, which shall be effective retroactive to
the date the provider submitted the proposal.

§ 15.5. Interest charge on extended repayment.

A. Once an initial determination of overpayment has
heen made, DMAS shall undertake full recovery of such
overpayment whether or not the provider disputes, in
whole or in part, the initial determination of overpayment
If an appeal follows, interest shall be waived during the

period of administrative appeal of an initial determination
of overpayment.

B. Interest charges on the unpaid balance of any
overpayment shall accrue pursuant to § 32.1-313 of the
Code of Virginia from the date the director’'s
determination becomes final.

C. The director'’s determination shall be deemed to be
final on (i) the due date of any cost report filed by the
provider indicating that an overpayment has occurred, or
(ii) the issue date of any nofice of overpayment, issued by
DMAS, if the provider does not file an appeal, or (iii) the
issue date of any administrative decision issued by DMAS
after an informal fact finding conference, if the provider
does not file an appeal, or (iv) the issue date of any
administrative decision signed by the director, regardless
of whether a judicial appeal follows. In any event, interest
shail be waived if the overpayment is completely
liquidated within 30 days of the date of the final
determination. In cases in which a determination of
overpayment has been judiciailly reversed, the provider
shall be reimbursed that portion of the payment to which
it is entifled, plus any applicable interest which the
provider paid to DMAS.

PART XVL
REVALUATION OF ASSETS.

§ 16.1. Change of ownership.

A, Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1985, Public Law 98-272,
reimbursement for capital upen the change of ownership
of a NF is restricied to the lesser of:

1. One-half of the percentage increase (as measured
from the date of acquisition hy the seller to the date
of the change of ownership), in the Dodge
Construction Cost Index applied in the aggregate with
respect to those facilities that have undergone a
change of ownership during the fiscal year, or

2. One-half of the percentage increase (as measured
from the date of acquisition by the seller te the date
of the change of ownership) in the Consumer Price
Index for All Urban Consumers {CPI-U} applied in the
aggregate with respect to those facilities that have
undergone a change of ownership during the fiscal
year.

B. To comply with the provisions of COBRA 1§85,
effective October 1, 1986, the DMAS shall separately apply
the following computations to the capital assets of each
facility which has undergone a change of ownership:

1. One-half of the percentage increase (as measured
from the date of acquisition by the seller to the date
of the change of ownership), in the Dodge
Construction Cost Index, or
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2. One-half of the percentage increase (as measured
from the date of acquisition by the seller to the date
of the change of ownership) in the Consumer Price
Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U).

C. Change of ownership is deemed to have occurred
only when there has been a bona fide sale of assets of a
NF (See § 2.5 B 3 for the definition of “hona fide” sale).

D. Reimbursement for capital assets which have been
revalued when a facility has undergone a change of
ownership shall be limited to the lesser of:

t. The amounts computed in subsection B above;
2. Appraised replacement cost value; or
3. Purchase price.

E. Date of acguisidon is deemed to have occurred on
the date legal title passed to the seller. If a legal titling
date is noi determinable, date of acquisition shall be
considered to be the dafe a certificate of occupancy was
issued by the appropriate licensing or building inspection
agency of the locality where the nursing facility is located.

VAR. Do¢, No. R#5-271; Filed February 1, 1995, 11:20 a.m.

BOARD CF OPTOMETRY

Title of Regulation; VR 5i8-81-1. Regulations of the
Virginia Board of Optometry.

Statutory Authority: $§ 54.1-103 and 54.1-2400 and Chapter
32 (§ 54.1-3200 et seq) of Title 54.1 of the Code of
Virginia.

Fublic Hearing Date: March 16, 1995 - 8 a.m.
Written comments may be submitted through April 21,
1595,
(See Calendar of Events section
for additional information)

Basis: Chapter 24 (§ 54.1-2400 et seq.) and Chapter 32 (§
54.1-3200 et seq.) of Title 54.1 of the Code of Virginia
provide the basis for these vregulations. Chapter 24
establishes the general powers and duties of the health
regulatory boards including the power fo establish
qualifications for licensure and the responsibility to
promulgate regulations. Chapter 32 establishes the Board of
Optometry and authorizes that board to regulate licensure,
collect fees, and set standards for practice. In addition, §
54.1-103 authorizes the board to promulgate regulations
specifying additional training or conditions for individuals
seeking licensure by reciprocity or endorsemeni and §
54.1-113 requires the board to adjust fees at the conclusion
of any biennium to assure that they are sufficient to cover
expenses but not excessive.

Purpose: The purposes of the proposed amendmenis are

to:

1. Eliminate duplicative regulations by repealing
existing public participation guidelines now found in a
separate set of regulations.

2. Establish a process and criteria for licensure
without examination for applicants previgusly licensed
in ancther state to comply with statuiory requirements,

3. Comply with the statutory requirement that boards
adjust fees when differences in biennial revenues and
expenses are greater than 1009 by proposing a
one-time fee reduction in licensure fees.

4. Respond to consumer complaints and to provide
better protection for the public by establishing a new
regulation for information to be contained on an
ophthaimic prescription for contact lens.

Substance: The key provisions of each amended regulation
are summarized as foliows:

Section 1.1, Public Participation Guidelines, 1is
repealed. The board has promulgated a separate set of
regulations, VR 510-01-2.

Section 1.2 C establishes a method for licensure by
endorsement provided that the applicant has passed an
examination approximately equivalent fo that reguired
for licensure in Virginia and has certified that all
other requirements have been met

Section 1.1 D sets the requirement that applicants who
have not passed an equivalent examination for initial
licensure may be required te pass a regional or
national practical examination.

Section 1.2 sets fees for licensure, renewal, and
administrative functions. Several fees have been
reduced for fiscal year 1995/96 to comply with
statutory requirements. In addition, proration of the
initial licensure fee is proposed, and the late renewal
fee has been reduced from $100 to $10. New fees
have been established to cover the costs of providing
duplicate certificates or licenses.

Section 3.1 4(f) establishes a new requirement for
sufficient and specific information on a contact lens
prescripiion,

Issues:

A, Licensure by endorsement.

Section 54.1-3214 of the Code of Virginia provides for
licensure without examination. The issue or problem is
how to permit gqualified individuals from other states to
practice in Virginia, providing expanded access to health
care services to the public while confinuing to protect the
public from unqualified practitioners.
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In addition to the Code section cited above, § 54.1-103
permits regulatory boards within the department to: (i)
promulgate additional regulations specifying training or
conditions for persons seeking licensure; and (ii)
promulgate regulations recognizing the licensure issued by
other siates as full or partial fulfillment of qualifications
for licensure,

The advantages of licensure by endorsement are. (i) the
board may specify the gqualifications necessary for
licensure in Virginia in addition to holding a current
license in another state. Consequently, the citizens of the
Commonwealth are better protected by licensing only those
optometrists who have passed an examination
approximately equivalent to the Virginia exam and who
have bheen practicing for several years without violations
or convictions; and (ii) the public is better served by
having access fo qualified optomeirists who may wish fo
relocate from another state or to leave federal service.
Endorsement is considered to be consistent with a
free-market system and conducive {o cost-containment in
health care. There are no disadvantages associated with
this proposal from the agency's or public’s standpoint.

The bhoard proposes new requirements for licensure by
endorsement as the least restrictive method for licensure
without examination which also provides safeguards for the
public.

B. Proposed amendments to fees.

The board is required by § 54.1-113 of the Code of
Virginia to reduce fees if the surplus in its funds exceeds
10% at the end of the biennium. Since the current surplus
for the board exceeds the allowable percentage, the
problem is the development of a proposed fee structure
that will result in a sufficient reduction in carrvover
revenue from previous years without creating a subsequent
shortfall in the budget. The board considered a permanent
fee reduction, but i was anticipated that such a proposal
would result in a deficit in hoard funds and would
necessitate an increase in fees at a later date.

To respond to the need to reduce fees, a proposed fee
structure for the 94/%6 biennium would reduce selected
fees for FY 95/96 and would result in a net surplus of
$444,528 or less than 109 of the projected budget of
$466,135.

The advantages and explanation of this proposal as the
least burdensome option are:

1. The one-time reduction in the renewal fee from
$150 ko 320 woukd benefit most the currently licensed
optometrists whose fees in previous years contributed
to the surplus.

2. The proration of the initial licensure fee clarifies
that charge and will benefii those who have applied
and are currenily in the process of. taking the
examination and being licensed.

3. The permanent reduction in the fee charged for
late renewal from $100 to $10 reflects more
accurately the actual administrative costs.

4. The permanent reduction in the registration fee for
professional designation from $200 to $100 is proposed
as more reasonable and reflective of actual costs to
the board.

The disadvantage of this proposal is that the one-time
reduction in the renewal fee from $§150 to $20 benefits
only those licensed now; however, the reduced fee
thereafter will benefit all the licensees. There are no
disadvantages associated with this proposal from the
agency’'s standpoint.

The board also proposes new fees for:

1. Licensure by endorsement - Since endorsement is
proposed as a new method of licensure in optometry,
a fee has to be established to cover the actual
administrative cosis of the application, credentials
review and documentation, and licensure. A fee for
endorsement ($195) includes the application and the
initial licensure fee.

2. Dupticate wall certificate and duplicate licenses -
Original certificates and licenses are provided to
licensees as a part of their application fee. Currently,
the board has no fee established in regulation to cover
its actual direct costs and staff time for producing and
mailing duplicates. Fees of $25 and $10 respectively
are proposed to reimburse the board for its costs for
this service.

C. Requirement for sufficient and specific information on
a contact lens prescription.

The board receives an average of two to three
complaints per month about the failure of an optometrist
to provide sufficient infermation for the complete and
accurate filling of a contact lens prescription by licensed
opticians. The current practice for some optometrists is
either to fit the contact lens themselves or to provide
general information to the optician for fitting. Consumers
of vision services are unable to obtain contact lenses as
original or vrefills because current practice by some
optometrists does not provide sufficient information. When
a patient needs a complete prescription for filling or
refilling, none exists.

The proposed amendments specify in regulation the key
elements of a complete contact lens prescription so that
the patient would have the opportunity to have it filled or
refilled by the practitioner of his choice. The consumer is
clearly bhenefited by this proposed regulation, which will
give him the option of purchasing contact lenses from any
qualified professional and eliminate the burden on the
public of additional costs incurred in filling or refilling the
prescription. The proposed regulation is the least
burdensome solution for the optometrist, because the
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elements of the prescription are c¢learly enumerated and
do not require additional costs for compliance. There are
no advantages from the agency's viewpoint, nor are there
disadvantages from the agency’s or public’s viewpoints
associated with this proposal.

Estimated Impact:

A. Projected number of persons affected and their cost
of compliance.

1,185 licensed optometrists will benefit from the one-time
renewal fee reduction in fiscal year 95/96 from $§150 to
$20.

For licensed optometrists who comply with the proposed
requirement of providing the c¢onsumer-patient with a
complete contact lens prescription, there willi no additional
costs of compliance. For the small percentage who violate
established standards of care, costs would include sanctions
by the board which may range from a fine of $250 to
disciptine against their license for more serious offenses.

Fifty-one optometrists who register their professional
designation will benefit from a proposed reduction in the
fee from $200 to $100.

Approximately 100 licensees per biennium will benefit
from the reduction in late fees from the current $100 to
$10.

Approximately five persons each year will be affected
by a new fee for providing a duplicate wall certificate
($25) or license ($10).

It is wvery difficult to estimate the numbers of
optometrists who may seek licensure by endorsement
under the proposed regulations. An estimated 10 to 15
persons per year may be impacted by the $195 fee for an
application for licensure without an examination fee.

B. Costs to the agency for implementation.

1. Fee reduction - The onetime reduction in fees
proposed in § 1.2 will reduce the surplus of $214,383
for FY 94-86 to $44,528 for the same period, bringing
the difference in revenue over expenditures within the
109 required by § 54.1-113. A one-time reduction was
chosen because it is projected that a permanent
reduction in fees would result in a deficit by the end
of FY 9698 and would necessitate promulgation of
amended regulations to raise fees.

2. Other approximate costs include:

$3,000 for printing and mailing amended regulations to
licensees and interested parties.

$1,000 per year for an estimated 109 increase in
disciplinary cases as a result of noncompliance with
new requirements for contact lens prescriptions.

Estimate is based on the costs for mailings and a
projection of two additional informatl
conferences/meetfings per year at a cost of $400 to
$450 per meefing.

C. Cost to local governments,
There will be no impact on local governments,

Summary:
Major elements of the proposed regulations include:

1. The elimination of the public participation
provisions, since the board has adopted public
participation guidelines in a separate regulation (VR
910:01-2);

2. The addition of a license by endorsement provision
to ensure the admission of qualified optometrists inio
Virginia;

3. The adiustment of fees to comply with (he
requirements of § 54.1-113 of the Code of Virginia
and

4, The requirement of an expiration date on all
prescriptions for ophthalmic goods and the specified
content required on contact lens prescriptions.

Section 1.1 has been stricken in its entirety, and § 1.2
has been renumbered § 1.1

Newly numbered § 1.1 C provides jor licensure by
endorsement. Subdivision C 1 relates fo the waiving
of certain examination requirements provided the
applicant’s origin  state’s examination is first
determined to be comparable to that used in Virginia.
Subdivision C 2 provides for the filing of application
for licensure by endorsement, including a requirement
for graduaiion from an accredited optometric school
or college, active clinical practice, continuing
education compliance, and freedom from current
disciplinary action or pending action. Provisions are
also made for an applicant who serves as a federal
service optomelrist. Applicants for licensure By
endorsement must take the Virginia Board of
Optomeiry's State Board Fxamination and pay
appropriate fees.

Subsection D provides for cases involving
nonequivalent examinations from other states.

Newly numbered § 1.2 revises the fees currently
collected by the board in keeping with § 54.1-113 of
the Code of Virginia. Also included in the revision to
this section Is a new “Application for Licensure by
Endorsement Fee,” and "“Duplicate Wall Certificate”
and “Duplicate License” fees. Further, for greater
clarity, the board has chosen to propose that the
“Examination Fee'' be further defined as the
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“dpplication for Licensure by Examination Fee” and
that the “Licensure Fee" be further defined as the
“Annual Licensure Renewal Fee.” Also, given that all
licenses pust be renewed on or before October 31,
including those only active for a few months, the
board has proposed the *“Initial Licensure Fee' be
prorated per month prior to annual renewal.

The title of Part IV 1s “Professional Designations,” yet
the fees associated with Professional Designations are
titled “‘Fictitious Name” in this section. Thus, the
board has proposed the renaming of the “Fictitious
Name” fee and “Annual Fictitious Name Registration”
fee to the “Professional Designation Application” fee
and “Annual Professional Designation Renewal” fee,
respectively.

The phrase “if appropriate” has been stricken from §
3.1 4 e, in effect requiring the expiration date be
mcluded  on  prescriptions  for ophthalmic goods.
Section 3.1 4 f has been moved to a newly created
subdivision  “g,” and subdivision ‘f" has been
rewritten to provide for information required to be
contained in contact lens prescriptions.

VR 510-01-1.
Optometry.

Regulations of the Virginia Board of

PART 1.
GENERALE PROVISIONS: LICENSURE
QUALIFICATIONS, FEES.
A Mpibing Hst
The exeecutive directer of the board will meintain a Hst
of persons and organizations who wit be mailed the
following documents as they become available:
+ “Meotice of intent” to promutlgate resulations
. . of . . or  “ing onal
ﬁmeeediﬂ-gs— the subjeet of whiekh is proposed ef
existirg regulations:
B- Being placed on st deletion:
ARy persen wishing to be placed on the mailing Hst may
have their pame added by writing the board: In additen;

the beard may; &t HS diseretien; add to the Hst any
ergaa&&kwn—wpubhe&tm&be&evesmﬁsewe

previded all information stated in Subseetion A of this
seetion:

Fhese on the list may be periedieally reguesied to
- indieate their desire o conlintie to reeelve deeuments eof

te be deleted from the list When mell s returned as

undeliverable; or when no Hmely respense is fortheoming
they will be deleted from the list

€ Notiee of intent:

Af least 30 days prior to publication of the notiee of
intent; ah informobional proeeceding a5 required by 3§
8-6:14:71; of the Cede of Virginin the board will publish a
“notiee of intent” This notice Wik contain a brief and
eoneise stotement of the possible repolation and will
oddress and invite any persen {o previde writien eomment
on the subjeet matier: Sueh notiee shall be iransmitted to
the Registrar for inelusien in the Virginia Register of
Reguiations:

D. Infermetion proceedings of publie hearinps for

infermational preeceding, which may toke the form of a
publie hearing; to receive public eomment on existing

pfeeee&mgSmaybehek&sepaf&te}yefmeeﬂjﬁaetwﬂw&h
ether informeationat proceedings:

E: Petition for rulemalking

Any persen may petiien the board to adoph amend; of
delete eny repulaHon: Any pelien reeeived iB a lmely
manner shall eppenr on the next agends of the hoard The
board shall bave the seole auwthority to dispese of the

E Netice of formulation and adeptien:

Prior to any mecting of the board eor subcemmitiee of
the beard of which the formulation or adoption eof
regiations is to eecenr; the subleet matier shell be
transmitted to the Registrer for inchusien in the Virginia
Register:

G- Advisery committees;

Fhe board may appoint advisory committees as i may
deem neeessary to  previde for adequate eitizen

participation in the formation; promulgation; adoption and
review of repulatons:

§ 2 /1.1 Applicants.

A. The applicant, in order to be qualified to be
examined by the board for licensure to practice optometry
in the Commonwealih, shali;

1. Be a graduate of a school of optometry approved
by the Councit on Optometric Education; have the
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registrar of the school provide an official transcript to
the boarg;

2, File at least 30 days prioer o the date of
examination, on & form supplied by the board, a
completed application which shall have affixed
securely in the space provided, two identical recent
passport-type photographs of himself, not less than 2
1/2 by 2 1/2 inches in size;

3. Submit an official report from the National Board
of Examiners in Optomeiry of the scores received on
all parts of the examination of the National Board of
Examiners in Optometry; and

4. Submit the prescribed examination fee.

B. If any applicant withdraws from the examination at

least 30 days prior to the examination date, all but the

prescribed adminisirative fee will be refunded. If the
applicant withdraws in 30 days or fewer prior to the

examination date, only the licensure fee will be refunded.

if an applicant is unsuccessful in passing the examination,
the applicant shall receive upon request a refund of the

licensure fee.

f. The applicant has graduated from an accredited
school or college of optometry.

3. In the case of a federal service optomelrist, the
commanding officer shall provide proof of
credentialing and quality assurance review. to satisfy
subdivisions 2 b, 2 ¢, 2 e, and 2 J of this subsection.
The state board of optometrv in which the federal
service optomelrist is currently licensed shall provide
the remainder of information required from this
subsection.

4. The applicant must fake and pass the law portion
of the Virginia Stalte Board Fxamination.

4. All appropriate fees must be paid as prescribed in
§ L2

D. In the event the examinations for initial lcensure
are determined not comparable, the board may require
the applicant fo take and pass a regional or national
practical examinalion.

§ 3 1.2 Fees.

C. The provisions for licensure by endorsement are

established in this subsection.

l. When a license is issued without examination,
subsections A, B, and D of this section may be
waived once the board determines that the
examination from the state from whick the applicant
s  applying for endorsement was approximately
comparable at the time of the initial licensure.

2. Am appiication for licensure by endorsement shall
be filed that certifies the following:

a. The applicant has successfully completed an
exarunation In optometry n any state of the
United States that is approximately comparable to
Virginia examination,

b. The applicant has been engaged in active clinicql
practice for at least 36 months out of the last 60
months mmediately preceding application;

¢. The applicant has completed all continuing
education requirements from the state in which he
is currently licensed;

d. The applicant has been ceriified fo be in good

standing from each stale in which he s currently

licensed,

e. The applicant has not committed any act which
would constitute a violation of § 54.1-3204 of the
Code of Virginia, and is not the respondent in any
pending or unresolved board action or malpractice
claim,

Fiscal years There-
94/93 95/96 after

Application for Licensure
by Examination Fee F150 FI150 $150

Initial Licensure Fee
{Prorated $8.00/month
prior to annual repewal) $95%  §O5%* $95%

First Exawmimation (Janwaryyr
after Remewat 150

Sevomd Exanrtmectton tFutyy
wfter Remewst 75

Applicarion for Licensure hy
Endorsement Fee (Includes
initiai licensure fee) %185 $1:185 $185

Examination Fee. certification
to use diagnostic

pharmaceutical agents $100 $100 $100

Annual Licensure Renewa! Fee

trenmewed amtertyy

(due October 31st) $150 320 8150
lLate Fee %100 10 $10
Administrative Fee $25 $25 $25

Frotitioos Name
Professicnal Designation
Application 5206
$100 g100 100

Annual Froctirtioos Name
Regi . P
Frofessional
Designation Renewal ({due

53+ Qctober 3ist ) $5tocation
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$50%* B350+ §50**

Reinsgtatenent Fee $250 $250 $250
Duplicate Wall Certificate $25 $25 $25
bDuplicate License 310 510 $10
*Max imum **per location
PART II.
EXAMINATIONS.

§ 2.1. Examinations.

A. For the purpose of § 54.}-3211 of the Code of
Virginia, the board adopts all parts of the examination of
the National Board of Examiners in Optomeiry as iis
written examination for licensure.

B. In addition, upon receiving a passing score on all
parts of the examination of the National Board of
Examiners in Optometry, an applicant shall pass a
practical examination administered or accepted by the
Virginia Board of Optometry. If the board chooses to use a
regional or national practical examination, the applicant
must pass this examination prior to licensure.

C. All candidates must take and pass the law portion of
the examinafion.

D. A candidate may take or retake the practical
examination or law examination upon payment of the
prescribed examination fee.

PART 1IL
UNPROFESSIONAL CONDUCT.

& 3.1. Unprofessional conduct.

It shall be deemed unprofessional conduct for any
licensed optometrist in the Commonwealth to:

1. Fail to use in cennection with the optometrist’s
name wherever it appears relating to the practice of
optometry one of the following: the word
“optometrist,” the abbreviation “0.D.,” or the words
“doctor of oplometry.”

2. Practice optometry under a name other than the
optometrist’s own name, except fo the extent
authorized by § 4.1, “Professional Designations.”

3. Fail to maintain records on each patient for not
less than five years from the date of the most recent
service rendered.

& A complete record of all examinations and
freatment made of a patient shall include but not be
limited to:

1> a. During a comprehensive eye examination:

a3} () Care history;

thr (2} Acuity measure;

fe¥ (3) Internal tissue health evaluation;
{4} (4) External tissue health evaluation;
tey ¢9) Refraction,

€& (6) Treatment, recommendations and directions to
the patients, including prescriptions; and

& (7) Name of attending optometrist.
2y b. During a contact lens examination:

fay (/) The requirements of subdivision 3 a 5 of
this section;

tb) (2) Assessment of corneal curvature;

{ey (3} Acuity through the lens;

té&y (4) Directions for the care and handling of
lenses and an explanation of the implications of
contact lenses with regard to eye health and vision;
and '

{eF (5) Name of attending optometrist.

Y c. During a follow-up contact lens examination:
tay (1) Assessment of fit of lens;

B (2) Acuity through the lens,

e} ¢3) Such further instructions as in & 33 3 a
2y subdivision 3 b (4) above as necessary for the

individual patient; and

td} (4) Name of attending 0.D.

4, Fail to include the following information on a
prescription for ophthalmic goods:

a. The printed name of the prescribing optometrist;
b. The address and teiephone number at which the
pafient’s records are maintained and the optometrist
can be reached for consultation;

¢. The name of the patient;

d. The signature of the optometrist;

e. The date of the examination, and ; i appropriate;
expiration date of the prescription;

1. Sufficient information for complete and accurate
filling of a contact lens prescription. This shall
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include but not be limited to the power, the fit, the
material or manufacturer, the curve or appropriate
designation, and the diameter when appropriate.

£ g. Any special instructions.

5 Refuse to provide a written prescription for
spectacie lenses upon the request of the patieni once
all fees have been paid.

6. Refuse to provide a written prescription for contact
lenses upon the request of the patient once all fees
have been paid and the prescription has been
established and the follow-up care completed.
Follow-up care will be presumed fo have been
completed if there is no reappoiniment scheduled
within 30 days after the last visit.

7. Advertise in a manner that is false, misleading, or
deceptive. False, misleading and deceptive advertising
shall include, but not be limited to, when the price of
ophthalmic goeds or services (or both) is advertised,
to fail fo state whai goods and services the advertised
price includes.

8. Administer any diagnostic pharmaceutical agents,
specified in § 54.1-3221 of the Code of Virginia,
without certification of the Board of Optometry to use
such agent.

9. Fail te post conspicucusly im the enirance or
reception area of the opfometric office, a chart or
directory listing the npames of all optomeirists
practicing at that particular location.

10. Vielate any provision of t{hese regulations
pertaining to professional designations.

11. Fail te maintain patient records, perform
procedures or make recommendations during any eye
examination contact lens examination or treatment as
necessary to protect the health and welfare of the
patient,

12, Practicing on an invalid license shall occur when
the requirements as set forth in § 5.1 A and C or §
6.1 A and B have not been met.

PART IV,
PROFESSIONAL DESIGNATIONS.

§ 4.1. Professional designations.

A, An opiometrist may practice in an office that uses
any of the following professional designations.

1. The name of the optometrist as i appears on his
license or renewal certificate; or

2. The name of an coptometrist who employs him and
practices in the same office; or

3. A partnership name composed of some or all
names of optometrists practicing in the same office; or

4. A fictifious name, if the conditions set forth in
subsection B of this section are fulfilled.

B. Optometrists licensed in this Commonwealth who
practice as individuals, partnerships, associations, or other
group practices may use a fictitious name for the
optometric office in which they conduct their practices,
provided the following conditions are met:

1. Each fictitious name shall be registered with the
board by a licensed optometrist, who must be
associated with the opiometric office and who shall
assume responsibility for compliance with this section.
Each fictitious name shall be approved by the board
and a fee shall be paid as prescribed by board
regulations prior to use of the name. Names which, in
the judgment of the hoard, are false, misleading, or
deceptive will be prohibited.

2. No licensed optometrist may, at any time, register
to practice optometry under more than one fictitious
name.

3. All advertisements, including but not limited to
signs, printed advertisements, and letterheads, shall
contain the word “optometry” or reasonably
recognizable derivatives thereof umless the name of
the optometrist is used with the fictitious name with
the O.D. designation, Doctor of Optometry or
optometrist.

4. In the enfrance or reception area of the optometric
office, a chart or directory listing the names of all
optomeirists practicing at that particular location shall
be kept at all times prominently and conspicuously
displayed.

5. The names of all opfometrists who practice under
the fictitious name shall be maintained in the records
of the optometric office for five years following their
departure from the practice.

6. Subsequent to the administration of any optometric
service, the optometrist of record shall place his name
in the record of the patient following a description of
the service rendered. If the treatment is rendered by
an optometrist other than the optometrist of record,
the name of that optometrist shall be placed in the
record of the patient.

7. The name of the licensed optometrist providing
care shall appear on the initial statement of charges
and on the receipts given to patients.

8. No fictitious name may be used which contains the
name of an inactive, retired, removed, or deceased
optometrist, except that for a period of no more than
one year from the date of succession to a practice, ai
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optometrist may list the name of the inactive, retired,
removed, or deceased opiometrist, so long as he does
so in conjunction with his own name, together with
the words, ‘‘succeeded by,” ‘succeeding,” or
“successor to.”

PART V.
"RENEWAL OF LICENSURE; REINSTATEMENT.

§ 5.1. Renewal fees,

A. Every person authorized by the board to practice
optometry shall, on or before October 31 of every year,
pay to the executive director of the Board of Optometry
the prescribed annual licensure fee.

B. It shall be the duty and responsibility of each
licensee to assure thaf the board has the licensee’s current
address. All changes of mailing address or name shall be
furnished¢ to the board within five days after the change
occurs. All notices required by law or by these rules and
regulations are to be deemed to be validly tendered when
mailed to the address given and shall not relieve the
licensee of the obligation to comply.

C. It shall be the duty of each person so licensed to
return the renewal application with the prescribed fee
prior to the expiration of their license postmarked no later
than October 31. Upon expiration of the license, the
executive director of the board shall notify the licensee of
expiration and reinstatement procedures. The license of
every person who does not return the compieted form and
fee by October 31 of each year shall be extended for 30
days until November 30 and may be renewed by paying
the prescribed late fee, postmarked no later than
November 30 provided the requirements of § 6.1 have
been met. After November 30, an unrenewed license is
invalid. The executive director may grant reinstatement
provided that the applicant can demonstrate continuing
competence; that the applicant has satisfied reguirements
for continuing education during the lapsed period; and that
the applicant has paid all unpaid renewal fees from the
time the license lapsed, and the prescribed reinstatement
fee. In addition to the foregoing reinstatement procedure,
the failure to renew a license may subject the licensee o
disciplinary action by the board.

D. The board may, in its discretion, require an applicant
who cannot satisfy §§¢ 1.2 and 2.1 and the requirement of
subsection C of § 5.1 of these regulations, to pass all parts
of the written examination of the National Board of
Examiners in Optometiry or the practical examination
administered or accepted by the board, or both.

PART VL
CONTINUING EDUCATION.

§ 6.1. Continuing education.

A. Each license renewal shall be conditioned upon
submission of evidence to the board of 12 hours of

continuing education taken by the applicant during the
previous license period.

B. It shall be the responsibility of each licensee to
submit evidence substantiating attendance of continuing
education courses, as required by subsection A of this
section, no later than October 31 of the license period.

C. The board will review courses for accepiability for
purposes of continuing education requirements if the
following information is provided:

I, The title of the course;

2. The sponsoring organization(s);

3. The name of the lecturer;

4, The qualifications of the lecturer,

5. An outline of the course’s content;

6. The length of the course in clock hours;

7. The method of certification of attendance or
completion if offered as a correspondence course; and

8. Number of credit hours requested.

D. The titles of all courses approved by the board will
be kept on a list maintained by the board. All courses
approved by the board shall pertain directly to the care of
the patient,

Courses excluded by the board shall include:

1. Courses which are designed to promote the sale of
specific instruments or products;

2. Courses offering instruciion on augmenting income;
and

3. Courses which are neither advertise¢d nor in fact
available to all optometrists or any courses for which
there is no independent assurance that no part of the
educational session is devoted to the promotion of
specific instruments, products, or marketing
philosophies.

E, When the annual license fee is submitted te the
executive director of the board, the licensee shall enclose
with it the required forms to indicate fulfillment of the
continuing education requirements for the previous period.
All continuing education must be completed prior to
October 31 unless extension or waiver has been granted by
the Continuing Education Committee. In the event that
continuing education has not been completed by October
31, the executive director of the board shall notify the
licensee that their license has lapsed. The board may
reinstate the license, upon showing of disability or undue
hardship, or upon showing that the licensee has complied
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with the requirements of subsection B of this section.

VA.R. Doc. No. R95-272; Fited February 1, 1995, 12:02 p.m.

DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES (STATE BCGARD
OF)

Title of Regulafion: VR 615-25-01:1. Minimum Standards
for Licensed Family Day Homes.

Statuiory Authority: §§ 63.1-196 and 63.1-202 of the Code of
Virginia.

The Board of Social Services has WITHDRAWN the
proposed amendments to the regulation entitled, “VR
615-25-01:1, Minimum Standards for Licensed Family Day
Homes,” which were published in 10:15 VAR, 3858-3879%
April 18, 1994,

VAR. Doc. No. R95-266; Filed Januery 31, 1995, 11:39 a.m,
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VIRGINIA STATE BAR

EDITOR’S NOTICE: The Virginia State Bar is exempt from
the Administrative Process Act in accordance with §
961441 A 2 of the Code of Virginia, which exempts
agencies of the Supreme Court.

Title ‘of Regulations: VR 1§7-01-301.
Virginia 5State Bar and Council.

Bylaws of the

Statutory Authority: § 54.1-3910 of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Date: Fuly 7, 1883

Summary:

The regulation is designed to outline state bar and
council meeting and committee procedures. The
regulation defines membership/officers of the stafe
bar and council and sefs forth policies relating fo
elections and voling.

VR 167-01-301.
Council.

Bylaws of the Virginia State Bar and

PART L
BYLAWS OF THE VIRGINIA STATE BAR.

Article 1.
Members.

§ 1.1. Membership of bar.

The Virginia State Bar is comprised of all attorneys
licensed to practice law in Virginia.

Article 2.
Officers.

§ 1.2. Officers of bar,
The officers of the Virginia State Bar shall be a
president, a president-elect, and a secretary-freasurer.

Article 3.
Election of President-Elect.

§ 1.3. Nominations.

In order fo qualify for election to the office of
president-elect, a candidate must be duly qualified as set
forth in Paragraph 4 of the Rules of Court, Part Six,
Section IV, and must file a nominating petition with the
executive director.

§ 1.4. Petition.

The nominating petition shall be signed by at least 50
members of the Virginia State Bar and shall be signed by
the candidate, who shall cerfify that he is qualified to run
for the office. The nominating petition must be received

by the executive director on or before March 15 of each
year.

§ 1.5. Method of election.

In the event only one nominating petition is received by
the executive director on or hefore March 15 of any year,
the electicn for the office of president-elect shall be held
at the next annual meeting in accordance with the
provisions of Article 4 of this part.

In the event two or more nominating petitions are
received by the executive director on or before March 15
of any year, the election of the president-elect will be in
accordance with the provisions of §§ 1.6 and 1.7.

§ 1.6. Mail ballots.

In the event nominating petitions for two or more
candidates are received by the executive director on or
before March 15 of any year, then:

1. The executive director shall prepare a ballot which
shall lst in alphabetical order the names of those
persons nominated to the office of president-elect; and

2, The ballot shall be mailed to all members on or
before April 15. The form of the ballof and the
procedure for the collection and tabulation of ballots
shall be determined by the executive director.

§ 1.7. Mail ballot elections.

The ballots shall be collected and counted in a manner
which assures the confidentiality of the members’ votes. A
plurality of the votes cast by all members shall elect, No
ballot received by the executive director after May 1 shall
be counied.

§ L.8, General provisions,

The following provisions shall be applicable to any
election of the president-elect under this article.
1. For purposes of these provisions, a “member” is an
active member in good standing of the Virginia State
Bar. Only such person may nominate, be nominated,
vote or be elected in any election for the office of
president-elect.

2. Records maintained by the executive director as to
membership and good-standing status shall be
controlling.

3. The failure to comply with the dates designated for
the concurrence of completion of certain acts shall not
invalidate any election, unless substantial prejudice
can be shown to have resulted therefrom.

4. For' purposes of determining voter and candidate
eligibility, the membership list maintained by the

Vol. 11, Issue 11

Monday, February 20, 1995

1733




Final Regulations

executive director as of March 15 shall be controlling.
Except to correct clerical errors in records mainlained
as of that date, no revisions or additions to the
membership list for purposes of the election shall be
made after March 15.

5. The executive director shall announce the resulis of
the election for the office of presideni-elect in a
newstetter, magazine or other mailing of the bar, afier
the election.

6. Any responsibility assigned herein to be discharged
by the executive director may be assured and
discharged by the executive commiftee, as ifs
discretion.

7. Any challenge to an election shall be resolved by a
commiftee which shall be chaired by the president
and shall include the presideni-elect, the immediate
past president and two members of council appointed
by the president who shall not be current members of
the executive committee.

Article 4.
Meetings.

§ 1.9. Notice of meetings.

The secretary shall give 30 days’ netice by mail of
annual meetings of the bar, and such writien notice of
special meetings of the bar as the executive commitice
shail prescribe in ifs call. Meetings of the organization
shall be held at such times and places and after such
notices as may be prescribed by the appropriate provisions
of Section IV, Rules of the Supreme Court for the
Integration of the Virginia State Bar and Council Bylaws.

§ 1.10. Guorum.

A quorum at any such meeting shall be as set forth in
the Court Rules. :

§ L.11. Program.

The program and order of business at any meeting of
the Virginia State Bar, unless otherwise ordered by the
council, shail be determined by the president in
consultation with the president-elect and the executive
director.

§ 1.12. Rules of order.

Proceedings at any such meeting shall be governed by
Roberts Rules of Order, except that no member shall
without unanimous consent speak more than (wice on any
one subject nor more than five minutes at any one time,

§ 1.13. Voting.

Voting at any such meeting shall be viva voce with each
active member present enfitled to vete, unless at least 10

active members shall either before or immediately after
such vote demand a vote by judicial circuits on a rofl
called in numerical order. In the latter event, each circuit
shall be entifled to one vote for each 25 aciive members
or fraction of 25 registered in that circuit. When a vote by
circuits is ordered, the active members presen{ from each
circuit shall cast the entire vofe to which such circuit is
entitled. If there be a division among fhe active members
present from any circuit as to how the vote of such circuit
shall be cast, the vote of such circuit shall be divided and
cast in proportion to the vote on such division, unless such
circuit at a meeting of its members shall have adopted
and caused to be certified to the secretary a resolution
providing that the entire vote of such circuif shall be cast
as a majority of the active members from that circuit
present and voting shall determine,

Provided however, that in any election for the office of
president-elect, voting shall be viva voce unless more than
one candidate shall be duly nominated, in which event
voting shall be by written ballot by judicial circuits as
provided in Article 3.

& 1.14. Registration.

An active member shall be deemed to be registered in
the circuit where he is entifled to voie for a member of
council provided that for the purpose of this section, no
member may change his registration within five days
preceding a meeting of the organization. At the opening of
the meeting the secretary shall post in a conspicuous place
a list showing the number of voles to which each circuit
is entitled and shall, upon the request of a member of any
circuit, also post a list of the active members officially
registered in that circuit. The lists so posted shall be
conclusive as io the number of votes te which each circuit
in which an active member is registered, may be appeal
to the floor; but the circuits or members affected shall not
vote on such appeal.

Article 5.
Committees.

§ 1.I5. Appointments.

Unless otherwise provided in the Court Rules, all
committees shall be appointed by the president, who shall
have power to determine the size of the committee and to
designate the chairman thereof and to fill any vacancy
therein.

§ 1.16. Quorurm.

A majority of any committee shall constitute a quorum.

Article 6.
Comrmnittee on Resclutions.

§ 1.17. Standing Committce on Resolutions.

There shall be a Standing Committee on Resolutions to
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consider and report on all resolutions offered from the
floor, which resotutions shall automatically be referred
without debate to the Committee on Resolutions, provided
that specific resolutions proposed in the written report of
any standing or special commitiee shall not be referred to
the Committee on Resolutions unless so ordered by the
meeting; and provided further that by a four-fifths vote
reference of any vresolution to the Committee on
Resolutions may be dispensed with, the metion for which
may be debated.

PART 11
BYLAWS OF THE COUNCIL.

Article 1.
Members.

§ 2.1. Membership of council.

The council is comprised of attorneys elecied or
appointed in accordance with applicabie provisions of § 4,
Rules of the Supreme Court for the Organization and
Government of the Virginia State Bar.

Article 2,
Election of Ceuncil.

¢ 2.2. Election of members,

The election of members of council for each circuit
shall be by one of the two following methods.

§ 2.3. Circuit bar meeting.

Prior fo March 1 of any year in which a council
member from the circuit is to be elected, the executive
director shall notify the chief judge of the circuit of the
need for a meeting of the bar of the circuit and the
number of vacancies to be filled. The executive director
shall obtain from the chief judge the date and location for
a meeting of the members of the circuit which shall be
held prior to May 1. The executive director shall mail a
written notice to the members of the meeting at least 14
days before such meeting.

All members whose Virginia State Bar membership
mailing addresses are maintained in the circuit may attend
and vote at the meeting. A quorum shall consist of those
members who vote at the meeting, No member shall vote
by proxy. Prior to the meeting, the execufive director
shall transmit to the chief judge or the designated
presiding officer a list of the members whose names
appear on the membership roster for such circuit. The
chief judge shall either preside at the meeting, designate
another active or retired judge of the circuit to preside, or
designate an atiorney to preside who is neither a
candidate for election to council nor associated in the
practice of law with a candidate nominated for election.

AL the circuit meeting, any member eligible to vote in
the circuit who is not then serving a second successive full

term on council shall be eligible for election. Nominations
may be made at the circuit meeting or by any member
eligible to vote in the circuit. No supporting petition or
second for such nomination will be reguired. After the
nominations are closed, an election by wriiten ballot shall
be conducted. In the event of a tie vote, the winner shail
be chosen by lot drawn by the presiding judge or his
designee,

Within 10 days after the meeting, the presiding officer
or the chief judge shall communicate the names of the
person or persons elected to the executive director,

§ 2.4, Mail ballot.

On or about March 1, the executive director shall cause
to be mailed to very member eligible to vote in the
circuit a notice of any vacancy or vacancies on council
and a brief description of the method of nomination and
voting. All members whose Virginia State Bar membership
mailing addresses are maintained in the circuit are
eligible to vote.

Nominations for election to council shall be by petition
filed by the candidate with the executive director. Such
petition shall be signed by not fewer than the other
members eligible to vote in the circuit, and shall be
accompanied by a statement of qualifications not
exceeding 150 words. Nominations must be filed in the
office of the executive director on or before April 1. Any
petition failing to comply with these requirements shall be
rejected.

On or before April 15, the executive director shall mail
to all eligible members of the circuit a ballot containing
the names of all persons nominated, along with each
nominee’s statement of qualifications,

Ballots shall be in a form prescribed by the executive
director and shall be collected and counted in a manner
prescribed by the executive director. In the event of a tie
vote, the executive director shall pick the winner by lot.
No ballot received by the executive director after May 1
shall be counted.

Write-in votes shall be permitted, but the executive
director may exclude illegible write-in votes. In those
instances where there are more candidates for council
positions than there are positions to be filled from the
circuit, the ballot will contain instructions to vote only for
the same number of persons as there are positions to be
filled; ballots which do not conform to this requirement
will not be counted.

§ 2.5. General provisions.

The following provisions shail
methods of election:

be applicable to both

1. The timeline for special elections to fill vacancies
on council shall be determined by the executive
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director.

2, For purposes of these provisions, a “member” is an
active member in good standing of the Virginia State
Bar. Only such person may nominate, be nominated,
vote or be elected in any council election.

3. Records maintained by the executive director as to
memberships, good-standing status and assignment of a
member to a particular circuit shall be controlling.

4. The failure to comply with dates designated for the
occurrence or completion of certain acts shall not
invalidate any election unless substantial prejudice can
be shown to have resulied therefrom.

5. In all elections the candidate receiving the highest
number of votes shall be elected.

In the event that more than one full term is to he
filled by circuit at any single election, the candidates
receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected.

In the event that a regular election and special
election to fill an unexpired term are held
simultanecusly in the same circuit, they shall be
conducted as a single election and the successful
candidate receiving the highest number of voies shall
be entifled to choose either a regnlar ierm or the
unexpired term, with the choice passing down in order
until the unexpired term is selected. The successful
candidate receiving the lower number of votes shall
he elected to fill the term not chosen. In the event
two or more unexpired terms are to be filled in the
same election, the longer unexpired term shall go to
the successful candidate receiving the highest number
of votes who choose to {ill an unexpired term.

6. As a part of the election process in each circuit
under these bylaws, the voting members of the circuit
shall prescribe the method for that circuit’s next
election and, in the event of a meeting, shall
determine the length of time during which ballots may
he cast in the next election, not o exceed one
business day. A vote to change the method of election
shall be by majority of votes cast. The ballot in each
circuit's election shall provide a space for the voting
member to indicate a preference for one of the two
election methods described by these bylaws. For the
meeting method, the ballot shall also provide a space
to indicate whether voting shall be allowed all day,
half day or only during the meeting. No guorum call
shall be required for any meeting,

7. For purposes of determining voter and candidate
eligibility, the membership list maintained by the
executive director as of March 15 shall be controlling.
Except to correct clerical errors in records maintained
as of that date, no changes in circuit membership,
revisions or additions to the membership I[ist for
purposes of the election shall be made after March

5.

8. The executive director shall announce the results of
council elections in a newsletter, magazine or other
mailing of the bar after the election.

9. Any challenge to an election shall be resolved by a
comitittee which shall be chaired by the president
and shali include the president-elect, the immediate
past president, and two members of council appointed
by the president who shall not be current members of
the Executive Committee.

Article 3.
Secretary Treasurer (Executive Director).

§ 2.6. Duties.

The secretary-treasurer (executive director} shall
perform all duties prescribed by the rules and these
bylaws, and in addition such ofher duties as may be
delepated to him from time to time by the council or
Executive Committee. He shall act as secretary of the bar,
of the council and of the Execufive Committee,

§ 2.7. Surety bond.

The secretary-treasurer (executive director) shall give
bond of $250,000 with corporate surety conditioned for the
faithful performance of his duties, the premium of which
shall be paid by the bar.

Article 4.
Notices of Meetings.

§ 2.8. Notice of meetings.

The secretary shall give 20 days notice by mail of all
meetings of the council, and five days’ notice by mail of
all meetings of the executive commitiee. Notice of mailing
shall commence on the date of mailing.

Article 5.
Meetings.

§ 2.9, Bar meetings.

In the absence of specific action by the council, the
Executive Committee shall fix the time and place of the
annual meetings of the bar, and may call any special
meetings of the bar at such time and place as it shall
designate.

§ 2.10. Council meetings.

In the absence of specific action by the council, the
Executive Committee shall fix the time and place of all
meetings of the council. There shall be at. least iwo
meetings annually. Special meetings of the council may be
called at any time by fthe Executive Commitiee. The
Executive Committee shall call a special meeting at the
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written request of 12 members of the council.
§ 2.11. Called meetings.

The Executive Commitiee shall meet on the call of the
president or of the presideni-elect and a meeting shall be
called at the wriiten request of three members of the
commiitee.

§ 2.12. Rules of order.

Proceedings at all meetings shall he governed by
Roberts Rules of Order, except that ne member shall
without unanimous consent speak more than twice on any
one subject or more than five minutes at any one time.

Article 6.
Executive Committee.

§ 2.13. Membership.

There shall be an Executive Committee consisting of 10
members, six of whom shall be elected annually by and
from council, with the president, president-elect, immediate
past president and president of the young lawyers
conference.

§ 2.14. Quorum.

A quorum of the Executive Cornmitiee shall consist of
five members thereof.

§ 2.15. Allocation of funds.

The Executive Committee shall have authority to
allocate funds as required by Rule 9(f) within the amounts
available; to employ such assistanis as it deems necessary,
and fix their duties and compensations; o cause proper
books of accounting to be kept and audited annually, and
cause proper financial statements of receipts and
expendifures to be prepared and presented to the council
and to the bar; to adopt and promulgate such forms as
may be necessary for putting into effect these bylaws and
the Rules of Court; and between meetings of the council to
perform such other duties and functions as are prescribed
for the coumncil in the Rules of Couri, except such
functions and duties as the council may reserve to itself
or may delegate to other committees.

Article 7.
District Committees,

$ 2.16. Designation of committees.

The several district committees provided for by Part 6,
§ 4, Paragraph 13 of the Rules of Court and elected by
the council shall be known as district committees under
numerical designation of the respective districts, for
example, First District Committee, etc, A committee shall
consists of nine or, in the discretion of council, 18, 27 or
36 members. Two members of a nine-member commitiee,

four members of an 18member committee, six members
of a 27-member committee, and eight members of a
36-member comimittee shail be nonlawyers, but no member
of the council shall be a member of a district committee.

& 2.17. Organization of committees.

Effective July 1, 1992, the district commitiees shall be
comprised of the following judicial circuits:

First District Committee: Circuits I, 3, 5, 7, and 8
Second District Committee: Circuits 2 and 4 (2
sections)

Third District Committee: Circuits 6, 11, 12, 13 and 14
(3 sections)

Fourth District Commitiee: Circuits 17 and 18 (2
sections)
Fifth District Committee: Circuits 1% and 31 (3
sections)

Sixth District Committee: Circuits 9 and 15

Seventh District Committee; Circuits 16, 20 and 26
Eighth District Committee: Circuits 23 and 25

Ninth District committee: Circuits 10, 21, 22, and 24
Tenth District Committee: Circuits 27, 28, 29 and 30 (2
Sectiong)

§ 2.18. Notice to members.

The secretary shall notify the members of each
committee of their appointments and the committee of
each district shall meet within 40 days thereafter and shall
elect from their members a chairman, vice-chairman,
secretary and assistant secretary and such other officers
as they deem necessary, all of whom shall serve at the
pleasure of the committee.

Article 8.
Standing Comumittees.

§ 2.19. Committee on Legal Ethics.

There shall be a standing committee, to be appointed by
the president and to be known as the Committee on Legal
Ethics. The committee shall consist of nine active
members of the bar, a majority of whom shall bhe
members of the council. All powers and duties of the
council with respect to legal ethics, not otherwise
delegated or reserved, shall be exercised and discharged
by the committee,

§ 2.20. Committee on unauthorized practice of law.

There shall be a standing committee, to be apnointed by
the president and to be known as the Committee on the
Unauthorized Practice of Law. The commitiee shall consist
of nine members, Seven of the members shall be active
members of the bar, five of whom shali be members of
the council. Two of the members shall be nonlawyers. All
powers and dufies of the council with respect to the
unauthorized practice of law, not otherwise delegated or
reserved, shalt bhe exercised and discharged by the
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committee.
§ 2.21. Committee on Lawyer Discipline.

There shall be a standing committee, to be appointed by
the president and to be known as the Comimittee on
Lawyer Discipline. The commitiee shall consist of 12
persons, 10 of whom shall be active members of the bar
and two shall be nonlawyers. In addition, the Vice
Chairman of the Virginia State Bar Disciplinary Board
shall be an ex-officio, nonvoiing member of the committee.
At least two of the lawyers who are members shall be
members of the council. AH members shall serve a
three-year term and the president shall appoint members
to the commiitee s¢ as to allow for the retiremeni from
the committee of one-third of its membership at the end
of each fiscal year. No member shall serve more than two
consecutive three-year terms. Al powers and duties of the
council with respect to operation of the bar’s disciplinary
system, not otherwise delegated or reserved, shall be
exercised and discharged by the committee.

§ 2.22. Cominittee on Professionalism.

There shall be a standing committee to be appointed by
the president and to be known as the Commiitee on
Professionalism. The committee shall consist of 16 active
members of the bar, at least five of whom shall be
members of the council, and at least one of whom shall,
when initially appointed, be an officer or member of the
Board of Governors of the Young Lawyers Conference. In
addition, the Virginia State Bar Counsel shall be an
ex-officio member of the committee. Five members shall
be appointed for a one-year term effective July 1, 1990.
Five members shall be appointed for a two-year term
effective July 1, 1990. Six members shall be appointed for
a three-year effective July 1, 1980. All member
subsequently appointed shall serve for a three-year term.
No member may serve more than two consecutive
three-year term. All powers and duties of council with
respect to the implemenfation of Paragraph 13.1 of Part
Six, Section IV of the Rules of the Supreme Court of
Virginia, and with respect to professionalism in the
practice of law in Virginia, not otherwise delegated or
reserved, shall be exercised and discharged by the
committee,

§ 2,23, Commitiee on Lawyer Advertising and Solicitation.

There shall be a standing committee, to be appointed by
the president and to be known as the Committee on
Lawyer Advertising and Solicitation. The committee shall
consist of 12 persons, 10 of whom shall be active members
of the bar and two shall be nonlawyers. At least two of
the lawyers who are members shall be members of the
council. Three of the lawyers who are members and one
nonlawyer member shall be appointed for a three-year
term effective retroactively on July 1, 1992, Four of the
lawyers who are members shall be appointed for a
one-year term effective retroactively to July 1, 1992, All
members subsequently appointed shall serve for a

three-year term. No member shall serve more than two
consecutive three-year terms. All powers and duties of the
council with respect to monitoring compliance with the
Code of Professional Responsibility governing lawyer
advertfising and solicitation, including the issuance of
advisory opinions regarding the same, not otherwise
delegated or reserved, shall be exercised and discharged
by the committee.

Article 9.
Votes by Mail or Telephone.

§ 2.24. Voting.

By unanimous consent of the members of any
committee, all questions before such cemmittee may be
settled hy mail ballot or telephone call.

Article 10,
Vacancies in Committees.

§ 2.25. Vacancies,

All vacancies in commitiees appointed by the president
shall be filled by him. Vacancies in other committees shalil
be temporarily filled by the president, or his appointees,
to act until the next meeting of the council.

Article 11.
Sections.

§ 2.26. Sections.

The council may create and abolish sections as it may
consider necessary or desirable to accomplish the purposes
and serve the interests of the Virginia State Bar and of
the sections and shall prescribe the powers and duties of
the sections. The bylaws of any section shall be subject to
approval of council.

* %k ok % % ok k ok
Title of Regulation: VR 167-01-401. Rules of Disciplinary

Procedures for Virginia State Bar Staff and District
Commiitees.

Statutory Authority: § 54.1-3909 of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Date: July 7, 1993.

Summary:

The regulation is designed tfo outline the procedures to
be followed by the Virginia State Bar upon receipt of
a charge of misconduct against an aftorney including
investigative procedures and actions to be faken by
the subcommittees and district commitfees in response
to the charges.

VR 167-01-401. Rules of Disciplinary Procedures for
Virginia State Bar Staff and District Committees.
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§ 1. Definitions.

Each reference hereaffer o “Paragraph 13”7 means
Paragraph 13 of the Rules of the Supreme Court of
Virginia, Part Six, Section IV.

All terms defined in Paragraph 13 shall have the same
meaning in these Rules and are hereby incorporated by
reference herein.

“Bar official” means any Virginia State Bar officer,
council member, board member, commitiee member,
employee or counsel

“Chairman,” unless otherwise specified in the context,
means the chairman or acting chairman of a district
commiittee, or of a designated section or panel thereof.

“Director of Public Information” means the person
designated by the Executive Director of the Virginia State
Bar as Director of Public Information and alse includes
any assistants so designated.

“Disharment” means revocation.

“Disciplinary Investigation” means any inquiry or
proceeding by any bar official concerning any possible
misconduct or crime by, or any disability on the part of,
an attorney, unless such inquiry or proceedings has
resulfed in, or been the basis for, any public record action
against the attorney by the board or a commiftee.

“Disciplinary records” means any record of any
proceeding in which the respondent has been found guilty
of misconduct, including those proceedings in which the
board’s or court’s finding of misconduct has heen appealed
to the Supreme Court of Virginia or in which the
respondent has surrendered his license to the Supreme
Court of Virginia or has been found guilty of a crime.
"Disciplinary records” shall also include those cases in
which a charge of misconduct has been dismissed under
Rules IV(B)(2)(¢) or (e}, IV(B)(4), V{A) (4 (D (D) (c) or (&),
or V{AY)(£y(2) of the Council Rules of Disciplinary
Procedure.

“Disciplinary trial” means any public record proceedings
against an aftorney predicated upon misconduct, crime,
disability or a petition by an attorney under Paragraph 13
1 for revocation of his license while charges are pending
against him before the boeard, a committee or a court.

“Executive Committee” means “Executive Committee” as
defined in Article 6 of the Bylaws of the Council.

“Investigation” means that investigation conducted by
bar counsel or committee’s counsel following the filing of
a charge of misconduct with a district committee.

“Preliminary investigafion” means that investigation
conducted by bar counsel prior to the filing of a charge of
misconduct with a district committee.

“Revocafion” means revocation of an attorney's license
(i} by the board whether for misconduct, crime, disability
or suspension or revocation in another jurisdiction or (ii)
by a court, whether purssant to Paragraph 13 T or ¢
54.1-3935 of the Code of Virginia.

§ 2. Preliminary investigation by bar counsel.

Upon receipt of a charge of misconduct against an
attorney, bar counsel shall initiate a preliminary
investigation. Bar counsel shall conclude the preliminary
investigation within 60 days of the date on which the
charge of misconduct was received by the bar.

Bar counsel or committee’s counsel may issue such
summons or subpoena as such counsel may reasonably
deem necessary for effective conduct of the preliminary
investigation,

At the conclusion of the preliminary investigation, bar
counsel shall:

1. Dismiss the charge of misconduct upon a finding
that the charge has no basis in fact;

2. Dismiss the charge of misconduct upon a finding
that the charge, if proved, would not constitute
misconduct; or

3. File a written charge of misconduct with a district
committee.

Bar counsel may, at the time of filing the charge of
misconduct with the district committee, recommend that
the charges of misconduct be dismissed by the
suhcommittee upon any of the bases set forth in § 4 B 2
without further investigation.

§ 3. Investigations by bar counsel or commitiee counsel.

A. When filing charges of misconduct with a district
committee, bar counsel shall notify the chairman thereof
of bar counsel’s recommendation that the matter be
dismissed immediately as provided in subdivision 3 of § 2
or that it be investigated by a member of bar counsel’s
staff, by a district committee member, or both, The
district commitfee chairman shall promptly notify bar
counsel of any disagreement with bhar counsel’s
recommendation as to who should conduct the
investigation, If bar counsel and the district committee
chairman are unable to agree, the standing committee or
a member thereof serving as ifs designee, shall determine
by whormn the investigation is to be conducted.

Bar counsel shall also inform both the respondent and
the complainant in writing that the maiter has been filed
with the district committee,

B. Unless the charges of misconduct have been
dismissed by the subcommittee, bar counsel or committee
counsel shall submit to the subcommittee a report of

Vol. 11, Isstie 11

Monday, February 20, 1995

1739



Final Regulations

investigation within 120 days of the filing of the charges of
misconduct with the district committee. When submitting a
report of investigation to the subcommiitee, bar counsel or
committee counsel shall include a recommendation as to
the appropriate disposition of the charges of misconduct
and shall indicate any agreement with the respondent with
respect to such recommendation.

Bar counsel’s recommendation shall be that:

1. The charges of misconduct be dismissed upon any
of the bases set forth in § 4 B 2, infra;

2. The charges of misconduct be set for hearing
pefore a district committee or certified to the board;

3. The
disposition agreed upon by bar counsel
respondent; or

investigation be concluded pursuant o a
and the

4. The matter be continued for further invesiigation.
§ 4. Action by the subcommittee.

A. The subcommitiee may conduct ifs meetings and take
action by any practical wmeans, including written,
telephonic or facsimile communication, so long as all
members have simultaneously participated in the
deliberative process.

B. Upon receipt of bar counsel's recommendation of
dismissal or a report of investigation, the subcommitiee
shall:

1. Refer the matter to bar counsel for further
investigation;

2. Dismiss the charges of misconduct when:

a. As a matter of law the conduct gquestioned or
alleged does not constituie misconduct, or

b. (i) The evidence available shows that the
respondent did not engage in the misconduct
questioned or alleged, or (ii) there is no credible
evidence to support any allegation of misconduct by
respondent, or (iii) the evidence available could not
reasonably be expected to support any aillegation of
misconduct under a ‘clear and ceonvincing”
evidentiary standard, or

¢. (i) The alleged or questioned misconduct is
clearly not of sufficient magnitude o warrant
disciplinary action, and respondent has taken
reasonable precautions against a recurrence of
game, or (i) the subcommittee concludes that the
respondent has engaged in misconduct and that the
matter should be dismissed with ferms.
subcommitiee dismisses fthe charges of misconduct
with terms and the respendent fails to comply with
such terms, the subcommittee shall set the charges

If the:

of misconduct for a hearing before the district
committee, or

d. The alleged misconduct is
superseding law, or

protected by

e. There exist exceptional circumstances militating
against further proceedings, which circumstances
shall be set forth in writing.

3. Subject to the approval of the district committee or
panel, certify the charges of misconduct fo the
disciplinary board. Certification hereunder shall be
based on a reasonable belief that the respondent has
engaged or is engaging in misconduct which, if
proved, would justify a suspension or revocation of
respondent’s license to practice law;

4. Impose one of the following conditions or sanctions:
a. A private reprimand, with or without terms;
b. A public reprimand, with or without terms; or

5. Set the charges of misconduct for hearing hefore
the district committee. Notwithstanding any other
provision of these rules, any member of the
subcommitiece may require that the charges of
misconduct be set for such hearing.

No action under- subdivision 4 of this section shall be
taken by the subcommittee except by unmanimous vote
and with the concurrence of both bar counsel and the
respondent.

C. In any case where ferms are included in the
disposition, the subcommittee shall specify the time period
within which compliance shall be completed and the
alternative disposition in the event the terms are not
complied with. Bar counsel shall be responsible for
monitoring compliance with terms and reporiing any
noncompliance to the subcommittee. If the respondent fails
to comply with the terms within the stated time period, as
determined by the subcommittee, the alternative
disposition shall be imposed.

Wherever it appears that the respondent has not
complied with the terms imposed, bar counse! shall serve
notice on the respondent requiring him to show cause why
the alternative disposition should not he imposed. Such
show cause proceeding shall be set for hearing before the
district committee at its next available hearing date. The
burden of proof shall be on the respondent to show by
clear and convincing evidence that he has complied with
the terms imposed.

D. All decisions of the subcommitiee shall be reported
to the district committee within 30 days of such action.
Any report of decisions to certify charges of misconduct
shall be made by the chairman of the subcommittee or
his designee, who shall furnish a brief and concise
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narrative of the complaint and the subcommittee’s reasens
for its decision. The disirict committee shall then either
approve or disapprove the decision to certify., If the
district committee disapproves the decision, the district
committee shall set the charges of misconduct for hearing
in accordance with the procedures set forth in § 5, infra.

§ b, Action by the district committee.
A. Hearing procedure.

1. Notice of hearing. Bar counsel shali issue the notice
required by Paragraph 13(B)(6)(a).

2. Summons and subpoena. Any summons or subpoena
issued on behalf of the district committee shall be
issued by bar counsel. The commifiee chair may
guash such summons or subpoena upon motion of the
respondent or a third party, for good cause shown.
The commiiiee chair may for cause decline to issue
any particular suminons or subpoena requested by
respondent or his counsel.

3. The record. Unless otherwise specified by the
district cornmittee chairman, bar counsel shall make
the necessary arrangements to preserve a true an
complete record of the hearing. :

4, Hearing procedure.

a. Preliminary explanation. The presiding district
committee member shall state in the presence of
the respondent and the complainant, if there be one:

(1) A summary of the alleged misconduct,

(2) The nature and purpose of the hearing as an
investigative proceeding,

(3) The procedures to be followed during the
hearing,

(4) The disposition available to the district
committee following the hearing.

b. Exclusion of nonessentiali persons. Only the
following may be present throughout the hearing
members of the disirict committee, the respondent,
the complainant, counse! for the respondent and the
complainant, bar counsel, the executive director,
committee’s counsel, members of the standing
committee on lawyer discipline, and the court
reporter. Counsel for individual witnesses, other than
the respondent and the complainant, may attend the
hearing during their client’'s testimony.

¢. Presentation of evidence.
(1) Bar's evidence. Bar counsel or committee’s

counsei shall present on behalf of the bar the
evidence supporting the allegations in the notice.

District commitiee members may examine witnesses
testifying in support of the allegations. Respondent
shall be afforded the opportunity to cross-examine
the bar’'s witnesses and to challenge any
documentary or material evidence introduced on
behalf of the bar.

(2) Respondent’s evidence. Respondeni shall be
afforded the opportunity to present wiinesses, other
evidence and argument on behalf of respondent. Bar
counsel or commiitee’s counsel and district
committee members may cross-examine respondent’s
witnesses or challenge respondent’'s documentary or
material evidence,

(3) Other counsel. Neither counsel for the
complainant, if there be one, nor counsel for any
witness, may examine or cross-examine any witness,
introduce any other evidence, or preseni any
argument.

(4) Admissibility of evidence. The presiding district
committee member shall rule on the admissibility of
evidence, which rulings may be overruled by a
majority of the remaining district commitiee
members participaiing in the hearing. The district
committee shall not be bound by the strict rules of
evidence.

d. Final argument. The district commitiee shall
afford a reasonable opportunity for argument on
behalf of the respondent and the bar.

e. Deliberations. The disirict commitiee members
shall thereafter deliberate in private. After due
deliberation and consideration the disirict committee
shall vote on the disposition of the matier.
Commiftee’s counsel, if any, shall be excluded from
the private deliberations and voting on the matter.
In determining what disposition of the matter is
warranted, the district commiftee may consider any
prior disciplinary records of respondent.

f. Disposition. After due deliberation and
consideration, the district committee may either:

(1) Dismiss the matter, or a part thereof, as not
warranting further action when in judgment of the
district committee:

{(a) As a maiter of law the conduct questioned or
alleged does not constitute misconduct,

(h) (i) The -evidence available shows that the
respondent did not engage in the misconduct
guestioned or afleged, or (ii) there is no credible
evidence to support any allegation of misconduct by
respondent, or (iii) the evidence available could not
reasonably be expected to support any allegation of
misconduct under a ‘“clear and convincing”
evidentiary standard,
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(c) The aileged or questioned misconduct is clearly
not of sufficient magnitude to warrant disciplinary
action, and respondent has taken precautions against
a recurrence of same,

{(d) Tne alleged misconduct is
superseding law, or

protected by

(e) There exist exceptional circumstances militating
against further proceedings, which circumstances

shall be set forth in writling by the district
committee chairman, whereupon the district
committee chairman shall prompily notify
respondent, the complainant and bar counsel,

simultaneously, in writing, and shall furnish to each
its reasons for dismissing the complaint.

{2) Determine fhat the respondent has engaged in
misconduct, 1issue its distriet committee
determination, and dispose of the matiter In
accordance with the procedures prescribed in the
Rules of Court, Part 6, Section IV, Paragraph
13(B)}(7) through (12); or

(3) Assign to bar counsel for invesiigation any
matter perceived by the district committee during
the hearing but outside the substantive scope of the
conduct specified in the notice of the hearing.

B. Imposition of terms. In any case where terms are
included in the disposition, the district committee shall
specify the time period within which compliance shall be
completed and the aliernafive disposition in the event the
terms are not complied with. Bar counsel shall be
responsible for monitering compliance with terms and
reporting any noncompliance to the district committee. If
the respondent fails to comply with the terms within the
stated time period, as determined by the district
committee, the alternative disposition shall be imposed.

Whenever it appears that the respondent has not
complied with the terms imposed, bar counsel shall serve
notice on the respondent requiring him to show cause why
the alternative disposition should not be imposed. Such
show cause proceeding shall be set for hearing before the
district committee at its next available hearing date. The
burden of proof shall be on the respondent to show by
clear and convincing evidence that he has complied with
the terms imposed.

C. Continuance of hearing. Once a district commiftee has
scheduied a hearing, no continuance shall be granted
unless in the judgment of the chairman or the disirict
commiftee the continuance i necessary to prevent
injustice.

D. Change in composition of district committee hearing
a matter. Whenever a hearing has been adjourned for any
reason and any of the members initially constituting the
quorum for the hearing is unable to be present, the
hearing of the matier may be completed by:

1. Furnishing to any such absent member or members,
a transcripf of the proceedings conducted in his
absence, or

2. Substituting ancother commitiee member for any
absent member, or members, and furnishing te such
substitute a iranscript of the prior proceedings in the
matter,

For purposes of applying this rule, any show cause
proceeding involving the issue of compliance with i{erms
shall be deemed a new hearing and not a continuation of
the hearing which resulted in the imposition of terms.

E. Request by complainant to withdraw complaint. No
potential disciplinary matter shall be dismissed soclely upon
a request by a complainant to withdraw the complaint.
Such matter may be dismissed following such request on
the basis of any of the factors listed in § 4 B 2.

§ 6. Similarity between charges of misconduct and pending
civil or criminal litigation.

Except in cases where, in the discretion of the
committee, unusual circumstances exist, processing of
complaints shall not be deferred or abated because of
substantial similarity to the material allegations of pending
¢riminal or civil litigation.

§ 7. Disclosure of exculpatory evidence.

Bar counsel shall make a timely disclosure to the
respondent of all known evidence that fends to negate the
misconduct of the respondent or mitigate iis severity.

§ 8. Records retention.
A, Current matters.

1. Dockets. The Clerk of the Disciplinary System shall
maintain current records of matters pending before
the committees, the board, or any court of this
Commonwealth.

2. Files. The Clerk of the Disciplinary System shall
maintain a current file for each matter being
investigated and for each matter pending before the
board or a court of the Commonwealth.

B. Closed matters: files.

The Clerk of the Disciplinary System shall retain the
closed files of any charge of misconduct resulting in a
disciplinary record for a period of five years from the
date of the final finding of misconduct. All other closed
files may be destroyed one year after the file’s closure.

Whenever a closed file is destroyed, the following
information shall be preserved in lieu thereof:

;

a. The name and bar identification number of

Virginia Register of Regulations

1742



Final Regulations

respondent;
b. The name and last known address of the
complaining party, if there be one;

c. The date the matter was initially received by the
bar;

d. The date of the dismissal or discipline;
e. A summary of the charge of misconduct; and

f. The disposition of the matier. Such disposition
shall state precisely the basis for dismissal or the
ganction imposed.

Such summary information shall be retained for five
years whenever the charge of misconduct is
dismissed upon a finding of no misconduct and for
10 years whenever the respondent is found to have
engaged in misconduct.

C. Order books. The Clerk of the Disciplinary System
shall preserve a copy of all district committee
determinations and board or court orders in which an
attorney has been found to have engaged in misconduct.

§ 9. Public dissemination of disciplinary information.

A. Disciplinary investigation. A Virginia Siate Bar official
shall not, during the investigation of a disciplinary matfer
or after conclusion of such investigation without further
action having been initiated as a matter of public record,
initiate communication with a member of the public or
communications media concerning such matter; however, if
the subject matter of such investigation is independently a
matter of public record and as a result thereof inquiry is
made to said official by anyone concerning the subject
matter, then such official shall only state without
elaboration either:

1. That an appropriate official, committee or bhoard is
conducting an inquiry into the matier, or

2. That an investigation of the matter has terminated
with a determination that further proceedings were
not warranted.

B. Post trial. Subject to any prohibition in Paragraph 13
and following eniry of an order by a district commiitee,
the board {(other than under Paragraph 13 E) or by a
court imposing public discipline, a statement quoting
pertinent portions of such order or pleadings shall be
issued to the public communications media by the bar.

§ 10. Dissemination of
disciplinary authorities.

disciplinary information to

Whenever an atforney has been publicly disciplined, the
Clerk of the Disciplinary System shall cause a summary or
3 copy of the public order imposing such discipline to be

forwarded to the appropriate disciplinary authorities for
other jurisdictions, federal or state, wherein it is
reasonable to expect that such attorney may he licensed
and he may cause such summary or copy to be forwarded
to any agency, private or governmenial, which
disseminates such information to disciplinary authorities, to
lawyers, or to the public.

§ 11. Election of district committee members.

Before nominating any individual for membership on a
district committee, the council members making such
recommendation shall first determine that the nominee is
willing to serve on the district committee and will
conscientiously discharge his responsibility as a member of
the district committee. The Bar Council members making
the nominations shall also obtain a statement from the
nominee, in writing, that he is willing to serve on the
district commitiee, if elected.

§ 12. Investigative assistants.

Bar counsel and the executive direcior shall be
responsible for maintaining the availability of sufficient
investigative assistance through bar employees, State Police
or retained investigators to effectively investigate potential
disciplinary matters.

§ 13. Substantial compliance with procedural requirements.

The actions reguired by these Rules of Disciplinary
Procedure are procedural in nature and not substantive.
Substantial compliance herewith shall be deemed
sufficient. Noncompliance with any one or more of such
actions shall not of itself be grounds for dismissing
proceedings against a respondent. Respondent may
introduce evidence of such noncompliance and present
argument that such noncompliance so prejudiced his rights
as to deny him a constitutional right of due process.

§ 14. Expenses.

Reasonabie expenses incurred by the bar and its
witnesses under these procedures or under Paragraph 13
shall be paid upon submission of any claim.

§ 15. Appeals.

Upon the eniry of any appealable order of a court
constituted under § 54.1-3936 of the Code of Virginia or of
a circuit court in a proceeding instituted under Paragraph
13 J.(2) or (3) that is deemed by bar counsel to be
adverse to the Virginia State Bar, bar counsel may, if so
advised, take such steps as shall be necessary to preserve
any right of appeal or right to petition therefor. In such
event, bar counsel shall promptly notify the executive
committee in writing of the action so taken.

§ 16. Disqualification of district commifiee member or
member of law firm of district commitiee member.
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Service on a district committee shall be deemed to be
professional employment within the meaning of DR 4-101,
DR 5-161, DR 5-102, DR 5-105, DR 8-101(A), and DR
9-101¢(A) and (B). Such service shall also be deemed
public employment and public responsibility within the
meaning of DR 8-101¢(A) and DR 9-101(A) and (B).
“Consent” under DR 4-101, DR 5-101, DR 5-105 shall be
deemed to include, and hereby require, censent by the
bar. Bar counsel shall have the power to give such
consent on behalf of the bar.

§ 17. Vacancy on district committee,

Whenever a vacancy occurs on a district commitiee,
either through delinquency, resignation, disability or death,
the executive committee may fill the vacancy.

A majority of a committee or a panel of a committee
may request the executive commitiee to declare that a
committee position held by any particular committee
member has hecome vacant when, in the judgment of the
majority, such member has become, or has been for any
reason, unavailable for or delinquent in the conduci of the
committee’s business. Similarly, upon request of bar
counsel, the executive committee shall have the power to
declare such vacancy. Before such vacancy is declared,
the particular committee member shall be afforded notice
and a reasonable opportunity to be heard.

§ 18, Virginia Lawyer Referral Service.

Bar counsel shali implement procedures to enable the
Virginia Lawyer Referral Service to remove from iis
referral lists the name of any member whe is charged
with misconduct and referred to a district committee, the
board or a court, or who agrees to or is placed under
disciplinary terms. Such procedures shall also enable such
members to be thereafter reinstated on the referral list
forthwith (i) following termination of such proceedings
without respondent having been subjected to any limitation
on his license to practice or terms having been imposed,
of (ii) following the removal of any such limitations or
successful compliance with terms. imposed.

§ 15. Reconsideration of action by the subcommittees and
district committees.

No matter dismissed by a subcommittee or district
committee shall be reconsidered except by a unanimous
vote of those having participated in the decision to dismiss
the matter unless the basis for reconsideration is evidence
not known or available to the district committee when the
matter was dismissed in which case it may be
reconsidered by a simple majority of a quorum. No action
by a district committee imposing a reprimand or certifying
4 maftter to the board shall be reconsidered unless a
majority of the district committee votes to reconsider the
action. No member shall vote to reconsider same unless it
shall appear to such member to be necessary to prevent
an injustice or to be warranied by specific exceptional
circumstances militating against adherence to the initial

action by the disirict commiftee. Any decision to change
an earlier district committee action must occur at a
district committee meeting.

§ 20. Statistical reports.

Upon request of the Standing Committee on Lawyer
Discipline, the Clerk of the Disciplinary System shall
provide a report of all cases not reported upon within 120
days of the date of filing the charge of misconduct with
the district committee.
§ 21. Administrative district
committee officers,

responsibilities of the

It shall be the responsibility of ithe district committee
chairman, secretary, or any other member of the district
commiftee so selected, to call such meetings of the
subcommittee and the district committee as are necessary
to effectively discharge the responsibitity of that
committee. Such officers, or members so designated, shall
arrange for meeting sites for disirict comimiftee meetings
and hearings, determine that a quorum will he present for
such meeting or hearing and prompily advise bar counsel
whenever it appears that a quorum will not be present. In
those instances where a subcommitiee or district
committee wishes to conduct its affairs via telephone
conference call, the chairman, secretary, or other member
of the committee so designated, shall ascertain a mutually
convenient time and date for those persons participating in
such conference call. Thereafter, such responsible person
will notify bar counsel of the time, date, and parties who
will participate in such conference call and bar counsel
will make appropriate arrangements for that call.

It is the intent of council that the district committee will
attend to the administrative affairs of its committee so as
to promote the orderly and efficient discharge of its
responsibilities.

E

Title of Reguiation. VR 167-01-581. Disciplinary Beard
Rules of Precedure.

Statutory Authority: § 54.1-3809 of the Code of Virginia.

Effective Date: July 7, 1993.

Summary:

The regulation is designed to outline the procedures to
be followed by the Disciplinary Boeard for misconduct

hearings, hearings following criminal convictions,
reinstatement hearings, and hearings following
disharment or suspension in another jurisdiction.

Appeals of district comunitiee determinations relating
to bar disciplinary matters are also included.

VR 167-01-501. Disciplinary Board Rules of Procedure.
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PART L
GENERAIL PROVISIONS,

§ L1. Definitions.

All definitions in Paragraph 13 of Section IV of Part Six
of the Rules of the Virginia Supreme Court and in the
Virginia State Bar Council Rules of Disciplinary Procedure
are incorporated herein.

§ 1.2. Meetings of the board.

The hoard, or any guorum thereod, shall meet upon the
call of the chairman, the vice-chairman or any quorum, at
such time and place as may be designated by such
chairman, vice-chairman or gquorum within a reasonable
time prior to the date of the meeting so called.

§ 1.3. Assighments and disqualification.

The chairman shall establish a roster of board members
sufficient fo constitute a quorum for action on the matter
to which they are being assigned. Any board member shall
be ineligible to serve whenever (i) he or any member of
his firm is invoived in any significant way with the matter
over which the guorum would act; (ii) he or any member
of his firm was serving on the district committee which
cerfified the mailter to the board or has otherwise acted
on the matter; or (iii) a full-fime judge would be required
to withdraw from consideration of, or presiding over, the
maiter under the Canons of Judicial Conduct adopted by
the Virginia Supreme Court as Section III of Part Six of
its Rules of Court. Any board member may, upon
reasonable notice to the Clerk of the Disciplinary System
or o the chairman, vice-chairman or other board member
presiding over a maifer, disqualify himself from
participation in consideration of any such matter,
whenever such member believes that the would be unable
to participate objectively in consideration of such matter.

PART IL
MISCONDUCT HEARINGS.

§ 2.1. Certification of charges of misconduct by a district
committee,

Upon receipt of certification by a subcommittee or
district committee of any charge of misconduct, the Clerk
of the Disciplinary System shall open a current file for
such matter on behalf of the board and shall forthwith
notify har counsel of receipt of such certification. The
Clerk of the Disciplinary System shall, within a reasonable
time after receipt, cause ie be served by certified mail
upon the respondent a clear and concise statement of the
charges certified to the board and date, time and location
of the hearing and shall provide a copy of such mailing to
bar counset. If the respondent fails to file with the board
within 21 days after the mailing of the aforesaid notice by
bar counsel a written demand that further proceedings
hefore the heard be terminated and further proceedings
be conducted pursuant te § 54.1-3935 of the Code of

Virginia, then a quorum of the hoard shall be designated
to hear the matter., Thereafter, the Clerk of the
Disciplinary System shall promptly make the necessary
arrangements for such hearing. If the respondent files a
demand that further proceedings hefore the hoard be
terminated, then bar counsel shalt promptly prepare and
file with the appropriate circuit court the pleadings
required by § 54.1-3935 of the Code of Virginia, after
which the board’s file in the matter will be closed. The
original of such demand shall be filed with har counsel.

§ 2.2. Summons; subpoena.

Sua sponte, or upon written request by bar counsel or
by respondent or his counsel, the board and the Clerk of
Disciplinary System may issue sumrmons or subpoena
refurnable at a time and place io be prescribed.

§ 2.3. Agreements as to disposition.

Whenever bar counsel and the respendent are in
agreement as to the material facts controlling a charge of
misconduct and desire to enter into an agreed disposition
of the complaint, the parties may submit a proposed
disposition agreement to five members of the board
selected by the chairman. The five members so selected
will constitute a panel of the hoard. If the proposed
disposition agreement is accepted by the majority of the
panel so selected, the disposition agreement will be
adopted by order of the board. If the disposition
agreement is not accepted by the panel, the charge of
misconduct will then be set for hearing before another
panel of the board at the earliest possible date. No
member of the panel which considered the proposed
disposition agreement shall be assigned to the panel which
hears the charge of misconduct.

& 2.4. Hearing procedure.

A. Request by complainant to withdraw complaint. No
allegations or charges of misconduct shall be dismissed
solely upon a request by a complainant to withdraw a
complaint,

B. Preliminary explanation. The chairman, or other
member selected o preside over the hearing, shall state in
the presence of the respondent and the complainant, if
there be one, a summary of the alleged misconduct, {he
nature and purpose of the hearing, the procedures to be
followed during the hearing, and the dispositions available
to the board following the hearing.

C. Exclusion of persons. All persons other than hoard
members, respondent, bar counsel, executive director, the
complainant, if there be one, the witness testifying, counsel
to any of the aforesaid, members of the Standing
Committee on Lawyer Discipline, the Clerk of the
Disciplinary System and a court reporter shall be excluded
throughout a private hearing. Witnesses who are not
testifying shall be excluded from a public hearing on
motion of bar counsel, the respondent, or the board until
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excused.

D. Continuance of a hearing. Once a hearing has been
scheduled by the board, no continuance shall be granted
except for good cause by the designated presiding board
member, No continuance will be granted because of a
conflict with the schedule of the respondent or
respendent’s counsel unless such continuance is requested
in writing by counsel for the respondent within five days
of the date of the notice of the hearing. Any request for a
continuance shall be made to the presiding member of the
board panel hearing the matter.

E. Change in composition of board hearing panel
Whenever a hearing has been adjourned for any reason
and any of the members initially consiituting the quorum
for the hearing is unable to be present, the hearing of the
matter may be completed by:

1. Furnishing to any such absent member or members,
a ftranscript of the proceedings conducted in his
absence, or

2. Substituting another board member for any absent
member, or members, and furnishing to such
substitute a transcript of the prior proceedings in the
matter.

F. Opening statements. Brief opening statemenis by bar
counsel and on behalf of respondent shall be permitted.

G. Presentation of evidence,

1. Bar counsel shall intreduce the evidence supporting
the aliegations of misconduct, which evidence shall
then be subject fo cross-examination or other
appropriate challenge by respondent.

2. Evidence may be introduced on behalf of the
respondent which evidence shail then be subject to
cross-examination or other apprepriate challenge by
bar counsel.

3. Bar counsel may introduce any available evidence
in rebuital to the evidence introduced on behali of
respondent,

4. Bar counsel may first make closing argument.

5. Closing argument may then be made on behalf of
respondent.

6. Bar counsel may make a rebuttal closing argument.

7. Neither counsel for the complainant, if there be
one, nor counsel for any wiiness, may examine or
cross-examine any witness, introduce evidence, or
present any argument,

8. The presiding board member shall rule on the
admissibility of evidence, which rulings may be

overridden by a majority of the remaining board
members participating in the hearing.

H. Deliberations. As soon after the conclusion of the
evidence and arguments as may be practicable, the board
shall deliberate in private. The board may address any
legal questions it may have to the Office of the Aftorney
General.

I. Disposition. If the board concludes that:

1. The evidence fails to show under a “clear and
convincing” evidentiary standard that the respondent
had engaged in misconduct, the board shall dismiss
the matter.

2. There has been presented “clear and convincing”
evidence that the respondent had engaged in
misconduct then the board shail:

a. State in writing:
(1) A brief statement of its findings of fact; and

(2) The nature of the misconduct evinced by such .
facts; and

b. Impose the following sanction:
(1) Dismissal with terms;

(2) Issuance of an admonition or public reprimand,
with or without terms;

(3) Suspension of the license of the respondent for
a stated period not exceeding five years; or

{4) Revocation of the license of the respondent.

J. Orders, findings, and opinions. In the event the board
finds that the respondent has engaged in misconduct, it
shall, prior to determining the appropriate sanction to be
imposed, inquire of either the respondent or bar counsel
or both whether the respondent has therefore been the
subject of any disciplinary sanction in this or any other
jurisdiction and shall give the bar and the respondent an
opportunity to present evidence and arguments in
aggravation or mitigation.

Following the decision of the board as to the disposition
of a maiter, the presiding member or a member
designated by him shall prepare the appropriate written
statements, findings, opinions or orders, which shall be
signed by the presiding member. Dissenting opinions may
be filed.

No motion for reconsideration or modification of the
board’s decision shall be considered unless it is filed with
the Clerk of the Disciplinary System and the presiding
member of the hearing panel within 10 days of the
hearing before the board. The moving party shall file an
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original and eight copies of the motion and all supporting
exhibits with the Clerk of the Disciplinary System. Such
motion shall be considered only to prevent manifest
injustice upon the ground of:

1. Illness, injury or accideni which prevented the
respondent or a witness Irom atiending the hearing
and which could not have been made known to the
board within a reasonable time prior to the hearing,
or

2, Evidence which:

a. Was not known to the respondent at the time of
the hearing and could not have been discovered
prior to, or produced at, the hearing in the exercise
of due diligence; and

h. Would have clearly produced a different result if
the evidence had heen iniroduced at the hearing.

If such a motion is timely filed, the Clerk of the
Disciplinary -System shall promptly forward copies to each
memhber of the hearing panel. The presiding member of
the hearing panel shall consult with the members prior to
acting on the motion. The panel may act on the motion
without requiring a response from bar counsel, and either:

1. Refuse the motion, or

2. Order a new hearing or such other relief as it
deems appropriate.

No relief shall be granted without allowing bar counsel
an opportunity to oppose the motion in writing, except that
the board may, in its discretion, delay entry of iis order
until such opposition is received. If no relief is granted,
the board shall enter its order disposing of the case.

K. Imposition of terms. In any case where terms are
included in the disposition, the hoard shall specify the
time period within which compliance shall be completed
and the alternative disposition in the event the terms are
not complied with. Bar counsel shall be responsible for
monitoring compliance with terms and reporting any
noncompliance to the board. If the respondent fails to
comply with the terms within the stated time period, as
determined by the board, the alternative disposition shall
be imposed.

Whenever it appears that the respondent has not
complied with the terms imposed, har counsel shall serve
notice on the respondent requiring him to show cause why
the alternative disposition should not be imposed. Such
show cause proceeding shall be set for hearing before the
board at its next available hearing date. The burden of
proof shall be on the respondent to show by clear and
convincing evidence that he has complied with the terms
imposed.

PART IIL

APPEAL OF A DISTRICT COMMITTEE
DETERMINATION.,

§ 3.1. Placing matter on docket for review,

Upon receipt of notice from the Clerk of the
Disciplinary System that the respondent has timely filed
an appeal from a district committee determination, the
board shall place such matter on its docket for review.

§ 3.2. The record.

The record shall be prepared by the chairman of the
district committee from which the appeal was taken and
shall be filed with the Clerk of the Disciplinary System,
The record shall consist of notice of the district commiittee
hearing; the franscript of testimony (if any); and exhibits
received or refused by the district committee; the district
commiftee determination; and all briefs, memoranda, and
other papers filed with the district committee by the
respondent or the bar. Upon petition of the respondent, for
good cause shown, the board may permit the record to be
supplemented to prevent an injustice.

§ 3.3. Notice of filing of the record.

The Clerk of the Disciplinary System shall notify the
respondent when the record of the proceeding before the
district committee is received.

§ 3.4. Filing of briefs.
Briefs shall be filed as follows;

1. The respondent shall file an original and eight
copies of an opening brief in the office of the Clerk
of the Disciplinary System within 40 days after the
filing of the record in such office. ‘

2. The bar shall file an original and eight copies of its
brief in the office of the Clerk of the Disciplinary
System within 25 days after the filing of the opening
brief.

3. The respondent may file an original and eight
copies of a reply brief within 14 days after the filing
of the bar’s brief.

& 3.5. Oral argument.

Oral argument shall be granted unless waived by the
respondent.

PART 1IV.
HEARINGS FOLLOWING CRIMINAL CONVICTION.

§ 4.1, Suspension upon proof of conviction of crime,
Upon receipt of a certified copy of an order of any

court of competent jurisdiction stating that an attorney has
been found guilty of a crime, the chairman, or
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vice-chairman or other appropriate board member shall
forthwith enfer am order suspending the license of the
attorney. The Clerk of the Disciplinary Sysiem shall then
cause to be served upon the attorney by certified mail a
copy of the proof of conviction, a copy of the board’s
suspension order, and a notice fixing the time and place
of hearing to determine whether the license of the
attorney should be revoked or further suspended, which
hearing shall not be less than 14, nor more than 3¢, days
afier the date of the board’s suspension order.

& 4.2, Continuance of hearing.

Upen receipt of a writien request from the attorney that
the matter be coniinued pending appeal, the board shall
continue the matter; otherwise the hearing shall be set not
less than 14, nor more than 30, days after the date of the
hoard’s suspension order.

§ 4.3, Final disposition.

A, Reversal of criminal conviction. Upon receipt of
proof by the attorney that the conviction has been
reversed, the suspension of the attorney’s license shall
automatically be terminated and an order to such effect
shall be forthwith entered by the board.

B. Hearing procedures. Insofar as applicable, the
procedures sef forth in § 1.3 and § 2.4 G through 24 J
shall govern the hearing under this part.

C. Copies of notices, orders, responses or answers by the
attorney. The Clerk of the Disciplinary System shall
furnish to the board members designated for the matter
copies of the proof of conviction, proof that the conviction
is final, the order of ihke board suspending the atforney,
notice of hearing, any notice of any continuance and any
matters filed by the attorney. The atiorney shall furnish to
the Clerk of the Disciplinary System an original and eight
copies of any communications or other materials he may
file with the board in such matter.

D. Conviction becoining final. If, at the time fixed for
hearing, the atiorney fails io appear, or if the board after
hearing shall find that the conviclion has become final,
the board shall ferthwith enter an order revoking the
license of the attorney, a copy of which shall be forthwith
served upon the attorney by certified mail by the Clerk of
the Bisciplinary Systemn.

PART V.
DISABILITY HEARINGS.

§ 5.1, Suspension upon proot of prior adjudication of or
hospitalization for disability,

Upon r1eceipt of a notice from the Clerk of the
Disciplinary System with supporting documentary evidence
that (i} an attorney has been adjudicated by a court of
competent jurisdiction to suffer from disability, or (i) the
attorney has been voluntarily or involumtarily admitted to

a hospital (as defined in § 37.1-1 of the Code of Virginia)
for treatment of any addiction, inebriety, insanity or
mental illness, the chairman or vice chairman or other
appropriate board member shall forthwith enter an order
suspending the license of the attorney and shall forthwith
cause to be served upon the atiorney by certified mail a
copy of the board’s order suspending his license.

§ 5.2. Suspension in ahsemce of prior adjudication of or
hospitalization for disability.

A. Upon receipt of notice or evidence that an attorney
is or may be suffering from disability and in the absence
of prior adjudication of or hospifalization for disability, the
bar counsel shali cause an investigation to be made fto
determine whether there is probable cause t¢ believe that
the disability exists,

B. If the bar counset defermines that there is probable
cause to believe that the attorney suffers disability, he
shall promptly notify the board which shall promptly hold
a hearing substantially in accordance with the procedures
established for notice and hearings in proceedings relating
to misconduct.

C. The following additional provisions apply to such
notice and hearings:

1. Guardian ad litem. The notice of any hearing to
determine whether an aftorney suffers from disability
shall request the attorney o advise the board whether
he has refained counsel to represent him at the
hearing. Unless counse! for the aitorney enters an
appearance with the board within 10 days of the date
of the notice, the board shall appeint a guardian ad
litem to represent the atforney at the hearing.

2. Psychiatric examination. Following a hearing ang
prior to a decision the board may by order require
the attorney to undergo a psychiatric examination by
a psychiatrist selected by the board. A written report
of the results of such examination, along with written
reports from any other psychiatrists who have
examined the atiorney, may be considered as evidence
by the board. Such reporis shall he filed with the
Clerk of the Disciplinary System.

§ 5.3. Termination of suspension.

A. Upon receipt of documentary evidence that a courf of
competent jurisdiction has adjudicated that the attorney's
disability has terminated, the board shall promptly enter
an order terminating the suspension of the attorney’s
license.

B. In all other cases the beard shall hold a hearing on
the termination of the disability promptly upon receipi of
a request from the attorney. Such hearing shall be
conducted substantizlly in accerdance with the procedures
established for hearings related to misconduct, and suhject
to the following additional procedures:
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1. The burden of proving the termination of disability
shall be on the attorney;

2. The board may appoint a guardian ad litem for any
attorney not represented by counsel in such
proceedings;

3. Evidence generally will be limited o changes in the
attorney’s mental condition subsequent to the original
determination of disability; and

4, The board may, either prior or subsequent to
hearing, require the attorney to undergo a psychiatrie
examination by a psychiatrist selected by the board. A
written report of the results of such examination,
along with written reports from any other psychiatrists
who have examined the attorney, may be considered
as evidence by the board.

PART VL
HEARINGS FOLLOWING DISBARMENT OR
SUSPENSION IN ANOTHER JURISDICTION.

§ 6.1. Suspension upon proof of suspension or disharment
in another jurisdiction.

Upon receipt of a notice from the Clerk of the
Disciplinary System that an order in another jurisdiction
suspending or revoking the license of any attorney has
become final, the chairman, vice chairman or other board
member shall forthwith enter an order suspending the
license of the attorney and shall forthwith cause to be
served upon the aftorney by certified mail a copy of the
proof of such suspension or disbarment, a copy of the
hoard's order suspending the license of the atforney, a
notice fixing a time and place for a hearing to determine
what action the board should take, and a statement that
the purpose of the hearing is to furnish te the attorney an
opportunity to show cause why the same discipline that
was imposed in the other jurisdiction should not be
imposed by the board.

§ 6.2, Continuance of hearing.

Unless continued by the board for good cause, the
hearing shall be set not less than 21, nor more than 30,
days after the date of the board’s suspension order.

§ 6.3. Final disposition.

A, The Clerk of the Disciplinary System shall furnish to
the board members designated for the matter copies of
the proof of suspemsion or revocation of the attorney’s
license, the board’s order suspending the license of the
attorney, the notice of hearing, any notice of continuance
of the hearing, and any materials filed by the attorney.
The attorney shall furnish to the Clerk of the Disciplinary
System an original and eight copies of any communications
or other materials he may file with the board in reference
to such matter.

B. Insofar as applicable, the procedures set forth in §
1.3 and § 2.4 G through 2.4 J shall govern the hearing
under this part.

PART VIL
REINSTATEMENT HEARINGS,

§ 7.1. Reinstatement hearings.

Upon receipt of a petition for reinstatement from the
Clerk of the Supreme Court of Virginia, the Clerk of the
Disciplinary System shall advise the petitioner in writing
of receipt of the petition and will arrange a suitable
hearing date with the petitioner and bar counsel.

1. Appointment and quorum. A quorum shall he five
members of the board.

2. Powers of the board in reinstatement cases, The
board is empowered to hold a hearing and make its
recommendation either to approve or disapprove the
petition to the Supreme Court.

3. Hearing date. The date of the hearing shall be
détermined by the chairman. The Clerk of the
Disciplinary System shall cause to be filed eight copies
of the transcript, exhibits, pleadings and orders from
the original disciplinary proceeding to the extent same
are available upen the scheduling of a hearing date.

4. Investigation. The Office of Bar Counsel shall
conduct such investigation and make such inquiry as it
deems appropriate.

5. Notice. Reasonable notice of filing of the petition
and the date of the hearing shall be mailed by the
Clerk of the Disciplinary System to all members of
the bar of the circuit or circuits in which the
petitioner maintains his principal office at the time of
his revocation or suspension. Such notice shall also be
mailed by the Clerk of the Disciplinary System to the
members of the district commitiee who heard the
original complaint, the complaining witness or
witnesses, and such other individuals as the Clerk of
the Disciplinary System deems appropriate,

6. Grounds of reinstatement. On written request by bar
counsel, pefitioner shall file with the Clerk of the
Disciplinary System within 21 days after receipt of the
request an original and eight copies of a bill of
particulars seiting forth his grounds for reinstatement.

7. Hearing.

a. On the date set for the hearing, the petitioner
shall have the right to representation by counsel, to
examine and cross-examine witnesses and to present
evidence in his own behall. Evidence in opposition
to the petition may be heard by the board. The
testimony shall be taken and preserved together
with. all exhibits (or copies thereof) received in
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evidence. The testimony will be transcribed.

b. Bar counsel shall appear and represent the
Commonwealth and its citizens. Legal advice to the
board, if required, shall be rendered by the Office
of the Attorney General

8. Character wiitnesses. Character witnesses supporting
the pefitioner will be heard, the number thereof to bhe
limited to five. In addition, the board will consider
any letters as to the character of the petitioner.

8. Determination by the board. The board will within
60 days of the receipt of the f{ranscript forward the
record and its recommendation to the Supreme Court
with a copy to the petiticner and bar counsel.

PART VIIL
REVIEW OF COSTS IMPOSED; REVIEW OF NOTICES.

§ 8.1. Review of costs imposed.

Whenever a respondent disagrees with the costs assessed
by the Clerk of the Disciplinary System pursuant to the
Ruies of Court, Part Six, Section IV, Paragraph 13(X)(10),
the respondemt may peiition the beard for review. Such
petition and eight copies must be filed within 10 days of
the date on which the notice assessing cosis was mailed to
the respondent by the Clerk of the Disciplinary System.
The board shall thereupon review the costs assessed to
determine if they were computed accurately or if
immediate payment would constitute a hardship on the
regspondent. There shall be ng oral hearing of the
respondent’s petition.

Upon review of the respondent’s petition, the board shall
enter an order confirming the costs assessed by the Clerk
of the Discipiinary System, or assessing such other costs as
the board deems proper. The board shall also specify the
date by which the costs must be paid {o the Clerk of the
Disciplinary Systern.

§ 8.2. Review of notices.

Whenever it appears that an attorney has not given the
notice of suspension or revecation, or has failed i¢ attend
to the orderly disposition of client matters as required by
the Rules of Court, Part 6, Section IV, Paragraph 13(K)(1),
but such atterney asserts that the appropriate notice was
given, the Clerk of the Disciplinary System shall set such
controversy for hearing. The attorney shall bear the
burden of proving that he did give notice of the
disharment or suspension to all clienis for whom the

attorney was handling matters and to all opposing
attorneys and the presiding judges in then pending
litigation. The attorney must also show that efforts

expended in the disposition of his client matiers were
appropriate under the eircumstances.

Upon review of the evidence presented, the board will
announce its findings of fact in an appropriate order.

L T A

Title of Regulation: VR 167-061-601. Mandatory Continuing
Legal Education Regujation.

Statutory Authority: ¢ 54.1-3910 of the Code of Virginia,
Part 6, § IV, Paragraph 17 of Rules of Virginia Supreme
Court.

Effective Date: July 7, 1983

Summary:

The regulation outlines reporting requirements for
maintaining active membership in the Virginia State
Bar, and sets forth the standards and procedures for
course approval and accreditation of Ssponsors.
Compufation examples are provided to aid in the
determination of credits. Additionally, the regulation
delineates restoration/reinstatement procedures and
sels forth exemption and walver possibilities.

VR 167-01-601, Education

Regulation.

Mandatory Continuing Legal

§ 1. Definitions.

Asg used in this regulation, the foliowing definitions shall
apply:

“Accredited sponsor’” means an organization whose
entire coniinuing legal education program has been
accredited by the board, pursuant fo § 5 of this regulation.

“Active member,” as defined by Paragraph 3(a) of
Section IV, Part Six, Rules of Virginia Supreme Court,
means a person who is admitted to practice law in the
courts of this Commonwealth and who is engaged in.the
practice of law, either full time or part time, salaried or
nonsalaried.

“Approved course” means a course expressly approved
by the beard for the relevant reporting period or a course
offered by an accredited sponsor during the reporting
period for which the sponsor is accredited.

“Board” means the
Continuing Legal Education
Paragraph B of the Rule.

Virginia State Bar Mandatory
Board established by

“Course” or “program” means a discrete continuing legal
education offering, regardless of length or daily schedule.

“Course or program offered in-house” means one
sponsored by a single private law firm, a single corporate
law department or a single federal, state or local
governmental agency or military branch for lawyers who
are members or employees of the firm, department,
agency or branch.

“credits,” or “hours credit’

"Credit hours,” “hours,”
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means the units used for measuring completion of
mandatory continuing legal education as reauired by the
Rule.

“Ethics credits” mean credit hours which apply toward
mandatory continuing legal education in the area of legal
ethics or professionalism as required by the Rule,

“Faculty member” means a person qualified by practical
or academic experiences to teach the subject he covers.

“Limited intellectual property admission member’™ means
an attorney admitted pursuant to § 54.1-3901 of the Code
of Virginia for the practice of patent, trademark, copyright
and unfair competition causes only.

“Member” as defined by Paragraph 2 of Section IV,
Part Six, Rules of the Virginia Supreme Court, means all
attorneys at law in this Commonwealth,

“Newlv-admitted member” means a person first admitted
to practice during the current reporting period.

“Panpel(s)” means a comimitiee or committees organized
by the board for the purpose of expeditiously considering
and deciding matters arising under the Rule and this
regulation. :

“Program sponsor” or ‘“spensor” means any person or
entity presenting or offering to present one or more
continuing legal education programs.

“Qualified ethics” or “professionalism component” means
a clearly identified segment of a course or program which
meets the requirements of § 3 D of this regulation and
which segment is devoted to one or more topics embraced
in recognized formulations of rules of professional conduct
or codes of professional responsibility applicable to
attorneys. Such a segment must be appropriately described
or entitled in course materials and must have a defined
duration in the course or program schedule.

“Reporting period” means a period of one year
beginning on July 1 of one year and ending on June 30 of
the next year.

“Rule” means the provisions of the Mandatory
Continuing Legal Education Rule established by Paragraph
17 of Section IV, Part Six, Rules of Virginia Supreme
Court.

“Specially approved course or program’ means a course
which does not meet the standards of § 3 B and C of this
regulation but which, because of its significant value to the
practice of a member who has sought approval, has been
approved by the board for such member. As to such
member, the term “approved course” includes a specially
approved course or program.

“.§ 2. Requirements and computations.

A. Each active member, other than a newly-admitted
member or a member with a limited intellectual property
admission as defined in § 1 of this regulation, shall
complete, during each reporting period in which he is an
active member for any part thereof, a minimum of 12
credit hours of approved continuing legal education
courses, of which at least two hours shall be in the area
of legal ethics or professionalist, by obtaining credit in
the manner hereinafter provided, unless expressly
exempted therefrom pursuant to the provisions of § 10 of
this regulation.

B. Credit will be given to a member who personally
attends an approved course and to a member who
prepares written materials for an approved course and fo
a member who personally participates as an instructor for
such course. Credit in the area of legal ethics or
professionalism will he given a member who atiends a
course approved for credit in such area, and to a member
who personally prepares materials for a qualified ethics or
professionalism component of such course, and to a
member who personally participates as an instructor for
such a component.

C. Credits for attendance will be awarded on the basis
of time spent in persenal attendance at an approved
course which meets the standards of this regulation.
Credits for teaching will be awarded on the basis of time
spent in personal participation as an instructor at an
approved course. However, no credit will be awarded for
teaching and preparation of a “specially approved course
or program.” Credit hours will be computed by calculating
the total instructional minutes attended or taught for the
course, rounded to the nearest half hour. Credit will not
be given for time spent in meal or coffee breaks. Credit
will not be given for keynote speeches or introductory
remarks or time spent on any subject matter which is not
directly related to instruction pertinent to that course.

EXAMPLES:

1. A member attends a one-day course or seminar
with seven segments, each lasting 50 minutes. Two of
the segments are in the area of legal ethics or
professionalism under the standards set forth in § 3 of
this regulation. Credit hours will be computed by
calculating the total instructional minutes rounded to
the nearest half hour. Since there are 350 total
instructional minutes (five hours, 50 minutes) the
board will round this time to the nearest half hour
and the member will receive six hours credit, not
seven. Of such six hours credit, one and one-half
hours (100 minutes rounded to the nearest half hour)
will be in the area of legal ethics or professionalism.

2. A member attends a course or program which is
presented all day Friday and on Saturday morning.
The member attends a three hour, 15 minute Friday
morning session; a two hour, 15 minute Friday
afternoon session; and a three hour, 10 minute
Saturday morning session. Since the total instruction

Vol. 11, Issue 11

Monday, February 20, 1995

1751



Final Regulations

time is eight hours and 40 minutes for the two-day
program, the hoard will round this time fo the nearest
half hour and the member will receive eight and
one-half hours of credit.

3. A member attends a course or program which is
advertised as having been “approved by the Virginia
Mandatory Continuing Legal Education Board” for six
credit hours, of which one and ore-half apply in the
area of legal ethics or professionalism. No further
computation need be made by the member if he
attends the entire course or program.

4. A member personally teaches any of the courses in
the previous ezamples. The teaching member will
receive cyedit hours for feaching time computed in
the same fashion as the credit hours are computed for
the attending member.

5. A member is a teacher at a one-day course or
program with seven segmenis, each lasting 50 minutes.
Application forms are filed certifying that the member
taught one segment and also atiended one segment.
The member did not attend or teach the other five
segments, Since the member attended or taught 100
total instructional minutes for the course, the board
will round this time to the nearest half hour and the
member will receive one and one-half hours of credit.
The memhber does not receive one credit hour for 50
minutes feaching plug one credit hour for the other 50
minutes attending.

D. Credits for preparation will be awarded on the basis
of time spent by the member (i) in preparing written
materials which meet the standards of this regulation for
uyse in the presentation of an approved course; and (ii) in
preparing a personal presentation as an instructor for an
approved course. The member of preparation minutes
eligible for credit skall not exceed four times the number
of instructional minuies in the presentation which is being
prepared. Credit hours will be computed by calculating the
total minutes spent in preparation for the course, rounded
fo the nearest halt hour. In no event shall more than eight
hours of credit be awarded for preparing a single course
Or program,

EXAMPLES:
1. A member prepares thorough, high-quality
instructiona! written materials which appropriately

cover the subject matler for an approved program
which lasts 120 minuies. The member certifies that
eight hours or more was spenf preparing the written
materials. The board will award eight credit hours for
preparation time. This does not exceed the maximum
limit of four times the presentation time of the
program and is consistent with the maximum limit of
eight hours of credit for preparing a single course or
program.

2. Samie as example 1| above except the member also

taught the entire program and certifies that an
additional eight hours or more was spent preparing
for the presentation as an instructor. This is a {otal
preparation time of 16 hours, The board will still
award eight credil hours for preparafion time because
this i5 the maximum limit of four times the
presentation fime and also because this is the
maximum Ymit of credit for preparing a single course
or program. However, the member will be awarded
two credit hours for teaching time and will therefore
receive a total of 10 credit hours for the activities in
preparing and teaching the program.

3. A member teaches at a course approved for five
credits including one ethics credit. The member
certifies that he faught the morning ethics segment of
20 minutes. The member further certifies that one
hour and 20 minutes was spent preparing for the
presentation. Since the member taughi 20 minutes the
hoard will round this time to one half hour teaching
credit. Eighty minutes (four thmes the presentation
time) of the member's preparation time is also
eligible for credit. The board will round this time to
the nearest half hour and the member will receive
ong and one-half hours of preparation credit. The
member will therefore receive a total of iwe hours
CLE credit including two hours ethics credit for
preparing the ethics segment.

E. A one-year carryover of credit hours will be
permitted, so that accrued credit hours in excess of one
year’s requirement may be carried forward to meet the
requirement of the following vear. From the 1990-91
reporting period an active member may carry forward a
maximum of 10 credit howrs toward the 1991-92
requirement, nene of which may be counted toward the
two hours required in the area of legal ethics or
professionalism. Thereafter, a membher may carry forward
a maximum of 12 credit hours, not more than two of
which, if earned in the area of legal ethics or
professionalism, may be counfed toward credit hours
required in such area.

F. A member shall not receive credit for any course
attended in preparaticn for admission fo practice law in
any state, nor for aftending the legal ethics course
required by Paragraph 13.1 of the Rules of the Virginia
Supreme Court, unless such course has been approved by
the board pursuant to this regulation. A member shall not
receive credit for teaching that is directed primarily to
persons preparing for admission to practice law. Regular
fuil-time, part-time and adjunct academic faculty shall not
receive credit for teaching any law school courses
(undergraduate or graduate) or bar review courses. A
member attending law classes, for a purpose other than
preparing for admission to practice law, may receive
credii in accordance with the manner described in
subsection C of this section.

¢ 3. Standards for approval of programs.
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A. A course is approved for credit if it has been
specifically approved by the board or is presented by an
accredited sponsor previousty designated by the board
under the provisions of § 5 of this regulation. A course is
.approved for credit in the area of legal ethics or
professionalism if and to the extent specifically approved
by the board. A course presented by an accredited sponsor
is also approved for credit in the area of legal ethics or
professionalism if and to the extent so represented by such
SPONSor.

B. The course must have significant intellectual or
practical content. Its primary objective must be to increase
the attendee’s professional competence and skills as an
attorney, and to improve the quality of legal services
rendered to the public.

C. The course must pertain to a recognized legal subject
or other subject matter which integrally relates to the
practice of law, or to the professional responsibility or
ethical obligations of the participants.

D. A course may be approved for credit in the area of
legal ethics or professionalism only to the extent that the
course constitutes or contains one or more qualified ethics
or professionalism components as defined in § 1 of this
regulation. A minimum scheduling of 30 minutes in the
aggregate of one or more qualified ethics or
professionalism components is required before an approved
- course can be approved for credit in the area of legal
ethics or professionalism.

EXAMPLES:

1. A sponsor's application for approval of a one-day
program comprising seven 50-minute segments states
in relevant part “each speaker will devote ten minutes
of allotted time to ethical considerations.” The
program does not contain a qualified ethics component
and is not eligible for approval for credit in the area
of legal ethics. The requirement that a qualified
component he a “clearly defined segment” is not met.
Such segment must be capable of identification on the
schedule and have a defined beginning and end.

2. A sponsor's application for approval of a one-day
program reveals in relevant part that the opening
30-minute morning segment is clearly identified as
devoted to ethical considerations and that the
concluding 20 minutes of the afternoon session is also
clearly identified as devoted to ethical considerations.
Asgsuming that other requirements for course approval
are met, the board will approve the program for one
hour credit in the area of legal ethics or
professionalism. (See § 2.)

E. Courses must be conducied in a seiting physically
suitable to the educational course or program. A suitable
writing surface should be provided.

"' F. Thorough, high quality instructional written materials

which appropriately cover the subject matter must be
distributed to all attendees at or before the time the
course is presented. A mere agenda or topical outline wili
not be sufficient.

G. Each course shall be presented by a faculty member
or memmbers qualified by academic or practical experience
to teach the subjects covered.

H. An audio or video program presented in a group
setting (at least two attorneys in attendance) lending itself
to discussion and exchange of ideas among the attendees
will be approved, whether or not faculty or moderators
are present in person or by telephone, provided that the
subjects, faculty qualifications and written materials
comply with this regulation. No course will be approved
that inveolves only self-study.

I. A program offered “in-house” will be approved by the
board if it meets the standards of this regulation and if

the approval procedures prescribed by this regulation are
foliowed.

J. Participation in deliberative groups concerned with
law reform, judicial administration, or regulation of the
profession will not be approved for credit.

K. A course that does not meet the requirements of
subsections B and C of this section may, on application of
a member, be approved as a ‘“specially approved course
or program” for the applicant where the board is satisfied
that the course has significant value fo the applicant’s
practice. Thus, for example, in appropriate cases courses
on engineering, accouniing or medical topics may be
approved for a particular member.

§ 4. Procedure for approval of programs.

A. A member or course sponsor desiring approval of a
course or program shall submit to the board all
information called for by the “Application for Approval of
a Continuing Legal Education Course.” The content of this
application has been promulgated by the bhoard and may
be changed from time fo time. A member seeking
approval of a course as a “specially approved course or
program” should include on the Application for Approval
of a Continuing Legal Education Course, or as an
attachment thereto, a statement of why the course has
significant value to the member’s practice. The board shall
then determine whether or not the course or program
satisfies the requirements of § 3. If the course or program
is approved, the board also shall determine the number of
hours credit to be awarded. The board shall notify the
requesting member or sponsor of its decision within 60
days after receipt of the completed application. The board
shall maintain and make available a list of all approved
courses and programs for each reporting period. An
approved course or program iS accredited only for the
reporting period for which.it is approved. A “specially
approved course or program” i$ accredited only for the
member for whom approved.
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B. The sponsor of an approved course or program
should include im its brochures or course descriptions the
information contained in the following illustrative
statement; “This course or program has been approved by
the Virginia Mandatory Coniinuing Legal Education Board
for...... hours of credit, of which..... hours will also apply in
the area of legal ethics or professionalism.” An
announcement 18 permissible only after the course or
program has been specifically approved pursuant to an
application submitted directly by the sponsor.

C. The sponsor of an approved course or program that
has not yet been approved after application should
announce: “Application for approval for this course or
program is pending with the Virginia Mandatory
Continuing Legal Education Board.”

D. At each presentation of an approved course or
program or one for which approval is pending, the sponsor
shall make available copies of the board’s Certification of
Attendance at an Approved Course or Program for
completion by attendees and the board’s Certification of
Teaching at an Approved Course or Program for
completion by instructers and shall coliect those executed
and turned in. The content of these certifications has heen
proemulgated by the board and may change from time to
time. Within five days following the final presentation of
the course, the sponsor shall submit to the board the
forms turned in by the attendees and instructors.

E. In the instance of a course or program presented
while an application for approval is pending, it will be the
responsibility of the sponsor te notify each member in
attendance, within 30 days after the course or program is
presented, whether the course or program was approved
and if so, the number of credit hours for which approved.
If suck course or program is not approved, then such
attending member will not receive any credit hours for
attendance. However, a member may seek approval in the
manner specified in § 4 F.

F. Any member seeking credit after atfending, or any
sponsor seeking approval after presenfing a course or
program, shall submit to the board all information called
for on the Application for Approval of a Continuing Legal
Education Course. The board will then determine whether
the program qualifies under this regulation and, if so, how
many credit hours are approved. The heard will promptly
notify the applicant of its decision.

& 5. Procedure for accreditation of sponsors.

A. Any sponsor may apply for approval of individual
courses by complying with the criteria of § 3 of this
regulation and the procedures of § 4.

B. If the board determines that a sponsor regularly
provides a significant volume of coatinuing legal education
courses, that these courses uniformly meel the approval
criteria of § 3 of this regulation, and that the sponsor will
maintain and submit the records directed by this

reguilation, the board may designate such a course
provider as an “accredited sponsor” under the Rule. Such
designation shall be effective for a period of no more than
two years unless renewed,

C. A sponsor applying for status as an accredited
sponsor shall submit to the board all information called
for on the Application for Status as Accredited Sponsor of
Continuing Legal Education.

D. An accredited sponsor shall be subject to and
governed by the applicable provisions of the Rule and this
regulation, including the quality standards of § 3 of this
regulation and the record keeping and reporting
requirements of this section. Accordingly, for example, an
accredited sponsor may represent in its descriptive
literature that a course or program generates credits in
the area of legal ethics or professionalism only to the
extent the course containg one or more gqualified ethics
components as provided in § 3 of this regulation.

E. The approval procedure of § 4 does not apply to
accredited sponsors. An accredited sponser must notify the
board at least twe weeks in advance of a program of the
name, date, location and credit hours allowable for a
particular course, including, where appropriate, credit
hours in the area of legal ethics or professionalism. The
hoard may request additional information regarding a
course or program. The board will provide the sponsor
with copies of the board's Certification of Attendance and
Certification of Teaching for each course or program and
the sponsor shall make available, collect and transmit such
forms in accordance with the requirements of § 4 D.

F. The board may at any tlme reevaluate and revoke
the status of an accredited sponsor. If the board finds
there is a basis for revocation of the accreditation granted
to an accredited sponsor, the board shall send notice by
certified mail to that sponsor of the revocation within 30
days of the board’s decision.

G. Law firms, professional corporations, and corporate
law deparfments are not eligible {o become accredited
SpONSOrs.

§ 6. Delegation.

To facilitate the orderly and prompt administration of
the Rule and this regulation, and to expedite the processes
of course approval, sponsor accreditation and the
interpretation of this regulation, the board may organize
itself into panels for the purpose of considering and
deciding matiers arising under the Rule and under this
regulation.

§ 7. Board’s determination and review.

A. Pursuant to directions established by the board, a
panel shall, in response to writien requests for approval of
courses or programs or for awarding of credit for the
attendance at or teaching in approved courses, waivers,
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extensions of time deadlines and interpretations of this
reguiation, make a written response describing the action
taken. A panel may seek a determination of the bhoard
before taking action. At each meeting of the board, the
panel shall report on all determinations made since the
last meeting of the board.

B. An aggrieved party may file with the board a written
appeal of an adverse decision by a panel within 30 days
after notice of the adverse decision has been mailed to
him. No form of appeal is required but the aggrieved
party shall state in narrative form the action complained
of and all of the reasons he believes the decision of the
panel is erroneous.

C. The board shall review any adverse determination of
a panel which has been appealed fo it pursuant to § 7 B
of this regulation. The aggrieved party may present
informatton to the board in writing or in person, and at
such time and place as the board may direct. If the board
finds that a panel has incorrectly interpreted the facts, the
provisions of the Rule or the provisions of this regulation,
it may take such action as may be appropriate. The board
shall advise the aggrieved party of its findings and any
action taken.

D. Pursuant to Paragraph 17 of Section IV, Part Six,
Rules of the Virginia Supreme Court, the Virginia State
Bar may from time to time establish fees for processing
application, approving courses and accrediting sponsors,
the remittance of any of these may be required before
action is taken by the board.

E. All decisions of the board under this regulation shall
be final and binding on all persons affected thereby and
no appeal or other relief therefrom shall lie, except as
specifically provided in § 9.

§ 8. Reporting of certification procedures.

A. Where a sponsor makes copies of the Certification of
Attendance and the Certification of Teaching available at a
course or program, each active member who wishes credit
may complete the form and turn it in fo the sponsor or
its representative.

B. Where a member attends a course or program, and
for any reason the member does not return to a sponsor
the Certification of Attendance or the Certification of
Teaching on the day of a course or program, the member
who wishes the board to record credit may obtain a copy
of the form from the board or a sponsor, complete it and
forward it to the board.

C. Each active member shall submit on or before June
30 of each reporting peried Certification of Attendance or
Certification of Teaching at an approved course(s) for the
minimum educational requirement.,

D. Following the end of each reporting period, the board
- shall advise each active member of his status respecting

completion of the annual educational requirement. Such
notice shall indicate the hours forwarded from the
previous year, the hours earned during the reporting
period and the {otal. This notice shall be entitled the
“MCLE End of Year Report.”

E. If the active member accepis the MCLE End of Year
Report as accurately reflecting his credit hours for the
period, including any teaching credits or carryover hours
from the previous reporting periocd, and the form lists 12.0
or more CLE credits of which 2.0 or more are ethics or
professionalism credits, the member does not need to file
his form with the MCLE Board. If a member believes that
the information reflected on the board’s records is in
error or incomplete, then the corrected MCLE End of
Year Report must be filed and received by the MCLE
office no later than July 31. If the MCLE End of Year
Report lists less than 12.0 CLE credits or less than 2.0
ethics credits, then an amended MCLE End of Year
Report must be filed and received by the MCLE office no
later than July 31.

F. Certifications of Attendance at an Approved Course or
Program filed for credit for the previous reporting period
after June 30 are accepted for credit only when
accompanied by the MCLE End of Year Report.

G. After July 31, a member who wishes lo receive
credit for credif hours earned during the previous
reporting period may forward to the board a certification
on the appropriate forms$ together with remittance of the
late filing fee. Any credits approved shall be recorded for
the previous reporting period and shall be eligible for the
one year carryover into the current reporting period in
the same fashion as other credits. A member may not
apply for credits earned earlier than the next preceding
reporting period.

& 9. Noncompliance.

A. An active member who has neither complied with the
educational and reporting requirements of the Rule and
this regulation, nor obiained a waiver or extension for
good cause shown by July 31 of each reporting period,
shall be subject to suspension of such active member’s
license to practice law as is provided by Paragraph 13.2
of Section IV, Part Six, Rules of Virginia Supreme Court.

B. Pursuant to Paragraph 13.2 of Section IV, Part Six,
Rules of Virginia Supreme Court, whenever the hoard
determines that an active member has neither completed
the mandatory continuing legal education requirements of
the Rule and filed the certification required by § 8 of this
regulation nor obtained a waiver or extension in
accordance with §§ 12 and 13 of this regulation, the
member shall be deemed to be delinquent.

§ 10. Restoration and reinstatement.

A A déiiuquent member may be restored to good
standing only following (i) his certifying the the

Vol. 11, Issue 11

Monday, February 20, 1995

1755



Final Regulations

Secretary-Treasurer of the Virginia State Bar of
compliance with the requirements of the Rule in the
manner provided by § 8 of this regulation and a
determination by the board that he has completed the
mandatory confinuing legal education requirements of the
Rule and paying any required fees, or (i} the obtaining of
a waiver or extension in accordance with §§ 12 and 13 of
this regulation.

B. A delinquent member who i$ suspended pursuant to
Paragraph 13.2 shall not further engage in the active
practice of law until he has been reinstated. A suspended
member may be reinstated only after paying any reguired
fees and certifying compliance with the Rule as provided
in Paragraph 13.2 and this regulaticn.

C. Where a default in compliance is cured by earning
credit hours in a subsequent reporting period, credit hours
applied to correct the defaulf shall not be applied to
satisfy the requiremenis of any other period.

D. A member suspended for an entire reporting period
must show attendance at 12.0 CLE credit hours including
2.0 ethics credits earned within the previous 12 months.
This member cannot rely on credits earned through
carryover in the previous reporting period,

§ 11. Exemptions; newiy admitied members; limited patent,
trademark, copyright and unfair competition admissions.

A, The Rule exempts from the certification requirement
two specific categories of active members: a newly
admitted member or a person admitted fo practice solely
pursuant to the provisions of § 54.1-3901 (limited patent,
trademark, copyright and unfair competition practice) of
the Code of Virginia.

B. A newly admitied member i$ exempt from filing a
cerfification for the reporting period in which he is first
admitted to practice in the Commonwealth. A newly
admitted member will nol receive credit under this
reguiation for attending or teaching any course prior to his
admission to the Virginia State Bar.

EXAMPLE: Attorney A is first admitted to practice
law in October 1986. Attorney A is not required to
comply with the minimum continuing legal education
requirement of the Rule and this regulation by taking
or teaching approved courses unfil on and after July
1, 1987. Attorney A also shall not be required to file
the certification required by § & of this regulation
until June 30, 1988. If Attorney A attends or teaches
approved courses between October 1986 and July 1,
1987, he may “carry over” to the next reporting
period credits in accordance with § 2 of this
regulation. Attorney A, beginning on July 1, 1987, will
be subject to said requirement as long as he is an
active member of the Virgina State Bar.

C. An active member admitted to practice only under
the provisions of § 54.1-3901 of the Code of Virginia, which

limits- & member to the practice of patent, {rademark,
copyright and unfair competition causes, is alsc exempt
from the requirements of the rule,

§ 12. Waivers,

A. A waiver may be socught by filing with the board a
request, together with any appropriate or required
supporting material or documentation (e.g. doctors’ letters,
medical records). The filing of any waiver request does
not toll the running of any time limit set forth in this
regulation or the Rule regarding suspension.

B. A waiver shall be valid for a single reporting period,
uniess renewed or extended by the board. A waiver will
be granted only for good cause,

C. If the waiver is based on medical reason, condition,
illness or hospitalization, then the appiication for waiver
shall be a completed form entitled: “Request for Waiver
Based on Hospitalization, Illness or Medical Reason.” It
must he completed and signed by the admitting, family or
attending health care provider, and it must set forth the
medical condition, hospitalization or illness which prevents
the member from compieting the required MCLE courses
for the period for which the waiver is being requested and
have attached te it any appropriate supporting material or
documentation.

D. If the waiver is based on nonmedical reasons, then
the grounds should be stated in a letter {o the board and
any appropriate supporting material or documentation
should be attached.

E. All waiver requests should be prompily submitted
when the grounds for the waiver request become known to
the applicant or applicant’s representative. Failure to file a
waiver request in a timely manner may be considered by
the board in determining whether to grant a waiver. A
prudent lawyer will use the carryover of credits provision
of the Rule to avoid most nonmedical based waiver
requests.

§ 13. Extensions.

A, An extension may be sought by filing with the beard
a request, together with any appropriate or required
supporting material or docurnentation (e.g. doctors’ letters,
medical records). The filing of an extension request does
not toll the running of any time limif set forth in these
regulations or the Rule regarding suspension.

B. An extension shall be valid for the specific time
period granted by the board unless renewed or extended.
An extension will be granted only for good cause.

C. If the extension is based on medical reason,
condition, illness or hospitalization, then the application for
extension shall be a completed form entitled: “Request for
an Extension Based on Hospitalization, Iliness or Medical
Reason.” It must be completed and signed by the
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admitting, family or atfending health care provider, and it
must set forth the medical condition, hospitalization or
illness which prevents the member from completing the
required MCLE courses for the period for which an
extension is being requested and have attached to it any
appropriate supporting material or documentation.

D. If the extension is based on nonmedical reasons, then
the grounds should be stated in a letter to the hoard and
any appropriate supporting material or documentation
should be attached.

E. All extension requests should be prompily submitted
when the grounds for the extension request become known
to the applicant or the applicant’s representative, Failure
to file an extension request in a timely manner may be
considered by the board in determining whether to grant
an extension. A prudent lawyer will use the carryover of
credits provision of the Rule fo avoid most nonmedical
based extension requests,

§ 14. Representations by members.
A member who makes a materially false statement in

any document filed with the board shali be subject to
appropriate disciplinary action.

Vol. 11, Issue 11

Monday, February 20, 1995

1757



8641

suocyomday fo 1015180y vnadin

Virginia MCLE Board
Virginia State Bar
707 East Main Street, 15th Floor
Richmond, VA 23219-2803
(804) 775-0577

CERTIFICATION OF ATTENDANCE (FORM 2)

Ta ¢nsure proper credit, pursuant to Paragraph 178, C and [ of Section TV, Part Six, Rules of the Sunreme Court
af Yirginia, please list your bar [} number, social security number and print full name uned nddrafs.
The information provided will be availahle for inspection by the public under the Freedom of Information A<t

3 Check it new aldress

Member Name: V5B Member Number;
Official Address
of Record: Social Security Number
{optional)
Daylime Phone: { ¥
Ll L=l
Zip Code
Course ID Number:
Sponsor:
Course/Program Titde:
CLE (Ethics) Credits: 4 )
CERTIFICATION
Date{s) Atnended: Tocaton(sk
{ ) Tanended 1be full progzam. [members will reccive the CLE (Fihics) credits shown above.
( ] [ atwndcd a ol of (brafmins} of CLE. of which { ) thasfiine} were in Fthics.

NOTE: Credit is awirded for actua) time in auendince rounded o the nearest ball hour

Pz St

Aatenadly Lahe senenment shath be sobgeet
O ApPEURCe Jiscpinary i ten.

A $50 Late Filing Fee Will Be Charped
For Al Forms ieccived After July 3.

MAY BE PHOTOCOPED

Virginia MCLE Board
Yirginia State Bar
707 East Main Street, 15th Fleor
Richmond, VA 23219-2803
{804) 775-0577

CERTIFICATION OF ATTENDANCE (FORM 3)

To ensure proper credit, pursuant fo Paragraph [7B, C and D of Section 1Y, Pact Six. Rules of the Supreme Court
_of Vieginia, please 181 your bag [} number, social sscurisy number and print fall nanze ang address.
The infurmiatiun provided will be availuble for inspection by the pubiic under 1he Freedom of Information Ack

O Check if new address

Member Name: V8B Member Number:

Official Address

of Record: Socil Security Number:
foptional}

Dayume Phona: (

)

T

Zip Code
Course 1D Number:
Sponsor.
Course/Program Tidle:
CLE (Ethics) Credits: ( )]
CLERTIFICATION
Dute(s} of Teaching: faxationtsy___ ~
{ ) My toaching semnent was e thrsiminsy of CLE. ol which __Hinrs/mins} were in Elhics.
( ) Inaddition, [ mtended o totad of e Ahrsmansd D CRY. ob whichy ) (thrs/mims) were 1a B

{ ) Dapeny ____ Rubrs preparing for wacking my septhent of the conrwe

NGTE: No mere than foar €8 houes of prepacation credd may be clasmedper one b 1 T himg Gone, stk a0 mere tun cight (39
hours Iotal for any one course, )

Dhawe BN

A watenally Libse spatemwenn sinall be subyegy
[ appropriate descpnary acion

A BSU Late Filing Fee Will e Charged
For All Forms Received Aller July 3t

MAY BE PHUOTOCOPHED
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Virginia MCLE Board BOARD USE ONEL Y

Virginia State Bar

707 East Main Street, Suite 1500 Course D Lettert
Richmond, VA 23219-2803 CLE hours Deferrai Date /7
(804) 775-0577 Ethics hours Denial fate I

APPLICATION FOR CLE COURSE APPROVAL (FORM 4)

O Check if new address

I. Appiicant: VSB member 4 Course Spansor:

Name: Sponsor Represcnlative™ —_
Address: Address:
Daylime phone: ( ) Phone: ( )

2, Tide of Program:

3. Total CLE bours: including { ) Ethics hours
To qualify for credit Ethics components must be clearly identified on the course schedule and total 2 minimum
of 30 minutes. A sample of the Ethics material distributed must be altached.

4. Check all that apply: Live Video Audio Satellite Interactive video

In-house _____  Targeiaudience; Clienls . . Auomeys

5. Datefs)

Location(s)
6. Course Regi ion Fee: §
7. REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS:
a, Program Schedule or agenda
b, Faculty nameis) and credenuial(s}
c.  Summary of culrse maknals table of contents and yepresentalve sample}

§. Description of marenals: Totat pages Bound Iooseleal Outline
Matenals are distnhuted: Before program AL program Other

9. Physical Faciliies:  Conicrence room Chissroom _ . Theater style  Wnnng surtace

10, Mumber of sttomeys Present of anucipated: Numnbur of RURIWOINeYS: — .

11, SPONSOR agzees to provide Cuenificaion of Aucndance forms (Tann #2) and {eritication of Teachine (omis Jone #3) @
Virpinia atomeys aticnding or wahng the progrum. The spensat aerees i cilioeh and seml thase tonns ke e Viegina MCLE
Board inmediawly (milewing the program. {NOL Appiscable (o Bdividid Monbers

17. BAR MEMBERS: I the progrum docs nok cover a recopmized kepal tope, attwh st ienent o bew Bk cioes reles o sour

practice.

13, BAR MEMBERS:

I cernty tha Lagended . CLE hours, ucluding € ) lthues bours, b Lhe above-nsied vourse.
sepONSORS MUST FILE A 825 FEE WITH THIS ARFLICATION,

FEL PAID: / ¢ Signature

MAY BE PHOTOCOFED

|INOSERe 4 VAR Menher Ur S Kepreseniave

A materially {alse Matement shall be subsect
I appropriale disciphnary aulum

suore[ngay jeurq



Final Regulations

BOARD FOR CONTRACTORS

Title of Regulation;: VR 228-01-2. Beard for Contractors
Regulations (REPEALED).

Title of Regulation: VR 226-01-2:1. Board for Comtractors
Regulations.

Statutorv Authority; §§ 54.1-201 and 54.1-1102 of the Code
of Virginia.

Effective DPate: March 31, 1995,

Summary:

The final revisions fo the Board for Contractors
licensing regulations add definitions for terms used but
net previously defined, clarify definitions for
classifications and specialties in which contracting
businesses are authorized fto practice, add
requirements for certification of Class C contractors,
clarify the status of reinstating a license/certificate,
amend the standards of conduct lo specify grounds for
disciplinary action more clearly and to add two new
standards, and adjust fees in accordance with the
requirements of ¢ 54.1-113 of the Code of Virginia.
The regulations are also rewritfen to simplify and
clarify the language throughout.

Summary of Public Comment and Agency Response: A
summary of comments made by the public and the
agency’s response may be obtained from the promulgating
agency or viewed at the office of the Registrar of
Regulations.

Agency Contact: Copies of the regulation may be obtained
from Geralde W. Morgan, Assistant Director, Board for
Contractors, 3600 West Broad Street, Richmond, VA 23230,
telephone (804) 367-2785. There may be a charge for
copies.

VR 220-01-2:1. Board for Confractors Regulations.

PART L
DEFINITIONS.

§ L1, General definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in these
regulations, unless a different meaning Is provided or is
plainly required by the coniext, shall have the following
meanings:

“Affidavit” means a writfen statement of facts, made
voluntarily, and confirmed by the oath or affirmation of
the party making it, taken before a notary or other person
having the authority to administer such oath or
affirmation.

“Certificate holder” means a firm holding a Class C
contractor cerfificate issved by the Board for Contractors

to act as a contractor as defined in § 54.1-1100 of the
Code of Virginia.

“Controlling financial Interest” means the direct or
indirect ownership or cootrol of 50% or more of the
applicable indicia of ownership of a firm.

“Firm” means any sole proprietorship, parinership,
association, limited liability company, or corporation wiich
is required by § 541-1100 of the Code of Virginia fo
obtain a license/certificate.

“Full-time employee” means an employee who spends a
minimum of 30 hours a week carrying oul the work of the
licensed/certified contracting business.

“Licensee” means a firm holding a license issued by the
Board for Contractors fo act as a contractor, as defined in
§ 54.1-1100 of the Code of Virginia.

“Net worth” means assets minus liabilities. For purposes
of these regulations, assets shall not inciude any property
owned as tenants by the entirely.

“Reciprocity” means an arrangement by which the
Iicensees of two states are allowed fo practice within each
other’s boundaries by mutual agreement.

“Reinstatement” means having a license or certificate
restored to effectiveness after the expiration date has
passed.

“Renewal” means continuing the effectiveness of a
license or certificate for another period of time.

“Responsible manpagement'” means the
individuals:

following

1. The sole proprietor of a sole proprietorship
2. The partners of a general parinership
3. The managing partners of a limited parinership
4. The officers of a corporation
5. The managers of a limited liability company
6. The officers or directors of an association or both
“Sole propriefor” means any individual, not a
corporation, who Is trading under his own name, or under
an assumed or fictitious name pursuant to the provisions
of §¢ 59.1-69 through 39.1-76 of the Code of Virginia.
[ “Tenants by the entirety” means a fenancy which is
created between a Hhusband and wife and by which
together they hold fitle to the whole right of survivorship

so that, upon death of either, other takes whole (o
exclusion of deceased heirs. |

Virginia Register of Regulations
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§ 1.2. Definitions of license/certificate classifications.

The following words and terms, when used in these
regulations, unless a different meaning is provided or is
plainly required by the contexf, shall have the following
meanings:

“Building coantractors” (Abbr: BLD) means those
individuals whose contracts include construction on real
property owned, controlled or leased by another person of
commercial, industrial, institutional, governmental,
residential (single-family, two-family or multifamily) and
accessory use buildings or structures. This classification
also provides for remodeling, repair, improvement or
demolition of these buildings and structures. A holder of
this license/certificate can do general confracting but his
scope of work cannot include any work covered under the
following trade or specialty licenses:

alarm security
asbestos
biliboard/sign

blasting

electrical

electronic communication
elevator/escalator
environmental systems
fire alarm

fire sprinkler

fire suppression

gas fitting

HVAC

irrigation

passive energy

plumbing

The building classification does include the functions
carried out by the following specialties:

commercial improvement
home improvement
farm improvement

landscape services

miscellaneous
modular/mobile building
recreational facilities

The above specialties are not inclusive of all of the
functions covered by the building classification.

“Electrical contractors” (Abbr: ELE) means those
individuals whose contracts include the construction,
repair, maintenance, alteration or removal of electrical
systems under the National Electrical Code. This
classification provides for all work covered by the
National Electrical Code Including electrical work covered
by ALS, ESC, and FAS classifications. A firm holding an
electrical license is responsible for meéting all applicable
fradesman certification standards adopted by each lpcalily.

“Highway/heavy contractors” (Abbr: H/H) means those
individuals whose contracts include construction, repair,
improvement or demolition of the following:

bridges

dams

foundations

drainage systems
parking lots

public transit systems
rail roads

roads

runways

streets

structural signs & lights

tanks

The functions carried out by these confractors include
but are not limited to the following:

building demolition
clearing

concrete work
excavating

grading

nonwater well drilling
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paving
pile driving
road marking

These contractors also install, mainfain or dismantle the
following:

1. Power systems for the generation and primary and
secondary distribution of electric current ahead of the
cystomer’s meter;

2. Pumping stations and treatment planfs;

3. Telephone, telegraph or signal systems for public
utilities;

4. Water, gas and sewer lines up to five feef from any
building or structure.

“HVAC contractors” (Abbr: HVA) means those
individuals whose work includes the installation, alteration,
[ of ]| repair [ or maintenance ] of heating systems,
ventilating svstems, cooling systems, sicam and hot water
heating systems, boilers, [ process piping, | and mechanical
refrigeration systems [ , including tanks incidenial to the
system ] . This classification does not provide for | proeess
piping; | fire suppression installations, sprinkler system
installations [ ; electriea]l work covered vader the NEC in
conjuncton with HVAC systems, or | gas piping [ er
storage {ank instaHations ] A firm holding a HVAC
license is responsibie for meeting all applicable tradesman
certification standards adopted by each localily.

“Plumbing contractors” (Abbr; PLB) means those
individuals whose contracts include the installation,
maintenance, extension, or alfteration or removal of all
piping, fixtures, appliances, and appurtenances in
connection with any of the following:

[ backflow prevention devices ]
hoilers

[ domestic sprinklers ]

hot water baseboard heating systems
hot water heaters

hydronic heating systems

[ process piping ]

public/private water supply systems within or adjacent
to any building, structure or conveyance

sanifary or storm drainage facilities

[ steam heating systems ]

[ storage tanks incidental to the Installation of related
systems }

venting systems

These comtractors also install, maintain, extend or alter
the following:

liquid waste systems
sewerage systems

storm water systems
water supply systems

This classification does not provide for [ proccss piping
1 gas piping or the function of fire sprinkler contracting
as noted abhove |1 . A firm holding a plumbing license is
responsible for meeting all applicable tradesman
certification standards adopted by each locality.

“Specialty contractors” means those Individuals whose
contracts are for specialty services which do not generally
fall within the scope of any other classification within
these regulations.

§ L.3. Definitions of specialty services.

The following words and terms, when used in these
regulations, unless a different meaning is provided or is
plainly required by the confexi, shall have the following
meanings:

“Alarm/security systems contracting” (Abbr: ALS) means
that service which provides for the installation, repair,
improvement or removal of alarm systems or security
systems annexed fo real property. This classification covers
only burglar and security alarm instaillations. A firm
holding an ALS license/certificate is responsible for
meefing all applicable (radesman certification standards
adopted by each locality. The electrical classification also
provides for this function.

“Asbestos contracting” (Abbr: ASB) means that service
which provides for the installation, removal or
encapsulation of asbestos confaining materials annexed fo
real property. No other classification or Specially service
provides for this function.

“Billboard/sign contracting” (Abbr: BSC) means that
service which provides for the insfallation, repair,
improvement or dismantling of any billboard or structural
sign permanently annexed fo real property. H/H is (he
only other classification that can perform this work [
excepl that a contractor in this specialty may connect or
disconnect signs fo existing electrical circuits. A building
contractor may install signs incidental to work covered
under their classification | . No trade related plumbing,
electrical or HVAC work is included in this classification.

Virginia Register of Regulations
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“Blast/explosive contracting” (Abbr: BEC) means that
service Which provides for the use of explosive charges
for the repair, improvement, alieration or demolition of
any real property or any structure annexed to real
property.

“Commercial improvement contracting” (Abbr: CIC)
means that service which provides for additions, repairs or
improvements to nonresidential properfy and multifamily
property as defined in Virginia Uniform Statewide Building
Code, The BLD classification also covers this work. The
CIC classification does not provide for the construction of
new buildings, accessory buildings, electrical plumbing,
HVAC or gas work.

“Electronic/communication service contracting” (Abbr:
ESCy means thal service which provides for the
installation, repair, improvement or removal of electronic
or communications sysfems gnnexed to real property
including {elephone wiring, computer cabling, sound
systems, data links, data and neftwork Installation,
television and cable TV wiring, antenna wiring and fiber
optics instaliation, all of which operate al 50 volis or less.
A firm holding an ESC license/certificate is responsible for
meeting all applicable lradesman certification standards
adopted by each locality. The electrical classification also
provides for this function,

“Elevator/escalator contracting” (Abbr: EEC; means that
service which provides for the Installation, repair,
improvement or removal of elevators or escalators
permanently annexed to real property. A firm holding an
EEC license/certificate is respensibie for meeting all
applicable tradesman certification standards adopfed by
each locality. No other classification or specialty service
provides for this function,

“Environmental monitoring well coniracting” (Abbr:
EMW) means that service which provides for the
construction of a well to monitor hazardous substances in [
the ] ground | water | .

“Equipment/machinery coniracting” (Abbr: EMC) rmeans
that service which provides for the installation or removal
of equipment or machinery such as conveyers or heavy
machinery. It dees nof provide for any electrical,
plumbing, process piping or HVAC functions.

“Farm improvement conifracting” (Abbr: FIC} means that
service which provides for the installation, repair or
improvement of a nonresidential farm building or
structure, or nonresidential farm accessory-use structure,
or additions thereto. The BLD classification also provides
for this function. The FIC specially does not provide for
any elecirical, plumbing, HVAC or gas fitting functions.

"Fire alarm sysiems contracting” (Abbr: FAS) means
that service which provides for the insfallation, repair or
improvement of fire alarm systems which operate at 50
_ volts or less. The electrical classification also provides for

- this function. A firm with an FAS license/certificate is

responsible for meeting all applicable
certification standards adopted by each locality.

tradesman

“Fire sprinkler contracting” (Abbr: SPR} means that
service which provides for the installation, repair,
improvement or removal of sprinkler systems using water
as a means of fire suppression when annexed to real
property. | No other elassifiention of speeialty provides for
HHs serviee: | This specialty does not provide for the
instaliation, repair or maintenance of other fypes of fire
Slippression systems.

“Fire suppression contracting” (Abbr: FSP) means that
service which provides for the installation, repair,
improvement or removal of fire suppression sysfems
including but not limited fo halon and other gas systems;
dry chemical systems; and carbon dioxide systems annexed
to real property. No other classification provides for this

function. The FSP specialty does not provide for the
instaliation, repair or  maintenance of water sprinkler
systems.

“Gas fitting contracting” (Abbr: GF(C) means that service
which provides for the instaliation, repair, improvement or
removal of gas piping and appliances annexed to real
property.

“Home improvement contracti